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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE Q 7

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Lori A. Weaver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
Commissioner 603-271-9544 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9544
> Fax: 603-271-4332 TDD Access: 1-800-735.2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Katja 8. Fox
Director
April 24, 2025

~ Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A, Ayotie
~and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Heaith,
to enter into Sole Source amendments fo existing contracts with the Contractors listed below to
continué providing guardianship services for individuals with mental illness or developmental
disabilities, or adults requiring protective services, by exercising a contract renewal option by
increasing the total price limitation by $3,772,919 from $3,772,919 to $7,545,838 and by
extending the completion dates from June 30, 2025 to June 30, 2028, effective July 1, 2025, upon
Governor and Council approval. 3% Federal Funds. 97% General Funds.

The original contracts were approvéd by éoverhor and Council on June 12, 2024, item

#25.
Contractor | Vendor | Area Served Current Increase Revised
Name Code Amount (Decrease) Amount
.| Office of Public 166528- '
: Guardian B0 Statewide $3,073,437 $3,073,437 $6,146,874
4 {Concord, NH) :
Tri-County
Community
Acton | 17719-
Program, Inc. BO0Y Statewide $699,482 $699,482 $1,398,964
(Tri-County
CAP)
(Berlin, NH) o : ‘
Total; $3,772,919 $3,772,919 $7,545,838

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget
liné items within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

See attached fiscal details.
EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because MOP 150 requires all amendments to agreements
originally approved as sole source to be identified as sole source. RSA 547-B establishes the
Public Guardianship and Protection Program for guardianship services in accordance with NH
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and the Honarable Council
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RSA 135-C:60-and NH RSA 171-A:10. NH RSA 547-B:6 requires the Department to contract with
one or more organizations designated by the New Hampshire Supreme Court as a public
guardianship and protection program. The Contractors are the only organizations designated by
the New Hampshire Supreme Court.

The purpose of this request is to exercise available contract renewal options for the
Contractors to continue providing guardianship services, statewide, for individuals with mental
lliness or developmental disabilities; as well as incapacitated adults who are abused, neglected,
or exploited, which leaves them at risk of substantial harm because of their inability to provide for
their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their personal affairs.

Approximately 850 individuals.will be served during State Fiscal Year 2026.

Public guardianship and protection program services are necessary to meet the State’s
statutory obligations to safeguard incapacitated individuals who are in state institutions as well as
in community mental health and developmental service programs, statewide. Services provided
ensure guardianships are maintained and limited in accordance with the standards in RSA 464-A.

Contracted services include mentoring and training services for family members who are
willing to serve as guardians but require a period of support. Providing this support may remove
the need for public guardianship in these cases, which results in a fiscal savings due to not
needing to engage permanent public guardianship services. The Contraclors agree to seek
reimbursement from other payer sources, including social security, when providing guardianship
and protection services.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreements, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to one (1) additional
year, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties
and Governor and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services
for the one (1) year available.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department would be
noncompliant with the requirements of NH RSA 135-C: 60; NH RSA 171-A: 10, II; and NH RSA
161-F: 52. Additionally, individuals with mental illness, developmental disabilities and
incapacitated aduits who are abused, neglected or exploited, would be left at greater risk of harm
because of their inability to provide their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their
personal affairs.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 93.667, FAINs 2401NHSOSR and
250 1NHSOSR.

Respectfully submitted,
= _

\

Lori A, Weaver
"Q/' Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for eitizens to achieve health and independence.



FISCAL DETAILS SHEET

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

05-95-92-922010-4114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH Div,
BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, GUARDIANSHIP SVCS

Office of Public Guardian
State Class / . Increased
Fiscal Class Title Job Number| Current Budget {Decreased) Revised Budget |
Account
Year Amount
2025 |102-500731 Contragts for Prog Sve 92204114 $1,479,905.00 $04 $1,479,905.00f
2026 [102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $0.00) $1,479,905; $1,479,905, 00
Subtotall  $1,479,905.00 $1,479,905.00 $2,959,810.00
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.
State " Class / B Increased
Flseal Class Title Job Number| Current Budget | (Decreased) Revised Budget
Account
Year Amount
' 2025 |102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $699,482.00 304 $699,482.00
2026 |102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92204114 $0.00) $699,482] $699,482,00,
Subtotal $699,482,00 5899,482.00] $1,398,964.00

Offlce of Public Guardian

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH AND SOGIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT, HHS: ELDERLY & ADULT SVCS DIV,
GRANTS FOR SOCIAL S8VC PROG. SOCIAL SERVICES ELOCK GRANT

State Class | Increased
Fiscal Class Title Job Number| Current Budget {Decreased) Revised Budget
Account
Year Amount
2025 J074-500589 GRANTS FOR PUB ASST AND REL 48130201 $177.394 $0; $177,384
2026 |103-502664 Contracts for Operational Services 48130201 $0 $177,384 $177,304
o Subtotal $177,394 $177,3%4 $354,788

Office of Public Guardian

05-95-93.930010-5947 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT. HS: DLTSS-DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS,
DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, PROGRAM SUPPORT’

State Class / Increased
Fiscal Class Title Job Number| Current Budget {Decreased) Revised Budget
Accaount
Year | Amount
2025 1102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 93005947 $1,416.138 30 51,416,138
2026 1102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 93005947 50 51,416,138 $1,416,138
Subtotal $1,416,138 $1,416,138 $2,832,278
| Grand Totai| $3,772,919] $3,772,919| $7,545,838]

Gavernor and Council Letter Attachment
Fihancial Detai!
Pagelofl
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Docusign Envelope ID; 4F97F 30A-CE38-400E-830D-312E65E58CDD

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1

This Amendme-nt to the Guardianship Services contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State™ or "Department”) and Office of Public Guardian ("the
Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 12, 2024 (ltem #25), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
-agreement of the parties and-approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2026

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$6,146,874 '

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1, to read:
1. This Agreement is funded by: ’

1.1. 3% Federal funds, Social Services Block Grant, as awarded on November 19, 2024,
by the DHHS-Administration for Children and Families, ALN 93.667, FAIN
2501NHSQOSR.

1.2.  97% General Funds

[nitial
‘ {ss
Office of Public Guardian A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials,

6/3/2025
$8-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-01-AQ1 Page 1 0of 3 Date 3/
v7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID: 4F97F30A-CE38-400E-830D-312E65E58CDD

-

All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2025, upon Governor and Council approval.

INWITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Signed by;
'6/4/2025 a ¥op’

Date Name: Kaja Fox
Title:  pirector

E2

Office of Public Guardian

Signed by:
6/3/2025 | Lisabaitt Solaky Stevens
Date Name: Lisabritt Solsky Stevens

Title:  cgo
Office of Public Guardian A-5-1.3
§85-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-01-A01 Page 2 of 3

v.7.12.23



Docusign Envelope ID: 4F97F30A-CE38-400E-830D-312E65E58CDD

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution. =

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

ﬁo:usmnedby
6/5/2025 [T?mjm H.nsivo
BTIHOH60

Date Name: Robyn Guarino
- Title:

Attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:
" Office of Public Guardian A-5-1.3
$5-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-01-A01 Page 30of 3

v.7.12.23



Docusign Envelope:ID: 4F97F30A-CE38-400E-830D-312E65E58C0D
State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

L, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that OFFICE OF PUBLIC
GUARDIAN is a New [Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered o transact business in New Hampshire on July 14, 1983.1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 30453 .
Certificate Number: 0007167916

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 24th day of April AD. 2025.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY
l, EC‘\O Mm\f\ . hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected OfficéFaf the Corporalion/LLC; cannot be contract signatary)

1.1ama: duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Ol& e 9. FPLA}D(/{ C & Uga.hdl 497
(Corporatron/LLG)Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on %14 Nt fi .20 E at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
(Daie)
VOTED: That Lf 54 b?’"l ’H' 50‘6’4@ QWS’ C £ {may list more than one person)
‘(Name and Title of Contract Slgnatory)
01 L QN NI

is duly authorized on behalf of @LCICLU J/l QLE)UC to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
{Name of Chfporalion/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execule any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
:may in hisfher judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3.1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s)
listed-above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation, To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: o J H {35

Rev. 03/24/20
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ACORD
v

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DDIYYYY)
4/24/2025

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT :CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to thé certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER .

Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Setrvices, LLC
45 Constitution Avenue

P.O. Box 511

CONTACT

NaMe:  Rachel Giunta
PHONE

(i€, No, Ext): 800-238-3840

[ 72X Noy: B03-224-8012
Eﬁ‘.‘;‘}éess, Rachel_Giunta@ajg.com t

Concord NH 03302-0511 _ INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
License#: 0D62293| INSURER A : Ohio Security Insurance Company 24082

INSURED OFFIGFP-03| \nsurer B ; Ohio Casually Insurance Company 24074

Office of Public Guardian .

2 Pillsbury Street P INSURER ¢ : Eastern Alliance Insurance Company 10724

Suite 400 INSURER D : Allied World Assurance Company Ltd

Concord NH 03301 INSURER E : Everest Indemnity Ihsurance Company 10851

| NsuReRF:

‘COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 1382671261

REVISION NUMBER:

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE

THIS 13 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INS ADDL[SUBR FOLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
'LTI§ TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD [ WVD, POLICY NUMBER (MMDD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
A [ X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY BZ5(26)59482402 21512025 2/5/2026 | EACH OCCURRENCE £1,000,000
DAMAGE T0 RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ 100,000
. ' MED EXP {Any one person) $ 15,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $ 1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,600,000
POLICY - JECT |:| LOG PRODUCTS - COMP/OR AGG | § 2,060,600
OTHER: ] 8
- A | AUTOMOBILELIABILITY BZ5(26)59452402 252025 | 252026 | GOMBIEDSINGLELIMIT 1 5 4,000,000
ANY AUTC BODILY INJURY (Perperson) | §
DWNED SCHEDULED -
e ALY - Scieo BODILY INJURY (Per accident) |
IRED X | NON-OWNED PROFERTY DAMAGE 5
| 7%} AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY Men ) ' i
$
B | X | UMBRELLALIAB | X | occur USC(26)59482402 2/5/2025 2/5/2026 | EACH OGCURRENGE $ 1,000,000
EXCESS LIAB | cLAMS-MADE AGGREGATE $ 1,000,000
DED ‘ | RETENTION § 5
C |WORKERS COMPENSATION 01-0000124869-05 si30i2024 | azoi2025 X [BERpre | [T
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN 1 :
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNERIEXECUTIVE [ E.L. EACH ACCIDENT § 500,000
OFFICER/MEMBEREXCLUDED? - N/A
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| § 500,000
If yas, describe und
DESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | § 500,000
D | Ermors & Qmissions 0311-7133 2/5/2025 2/5{2026 | Per Occ/$1,000 Ded ' 2,000,000
E . 28-110012618 2/5/2025 2/8/2026 | Claim Made Retro Date 02A11/2016
Crime Employee Dishonesty $4,500,0600

3A State: NH Excluded: Michael Fuerst, Raymond Bower & Roger Jobin.
Covering operations usual to insured. 1hroughout the policy term.

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

State of NH

Dept. of Health & Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301-3857

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

7%

’

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




OPG Mission Statement

The OPG Articles of Agreement and By-Laws articulate the following objectives and mission:

This corporation is created forthe following reasons:

A. The provision of guardianship, co-guardianship and conservatorship services for individuals
found to be legally incapacitated pursuant to N.H. RSA 464-A and other applicable statutes.

B. To be designated as the Public Guardianship and Protection Program pursuant to N.H. RSA
547-B. .

C. The provision of protective services, other than guardianship services that are consistent
with the intent of N.H. RSA 464-A, Such protective services may include, but not be limited
to, power of attorney, client représentative, or services as a representative or protective
payee.

D. The provision of guardianship and other fiduciary services to minors.

E. The provision of private fiduciary services.

The mission statement expresses OPG's already well established philosophy as follows:

“It is the goal of this corporation to protect the legal and human rights and civil liberties of all individuals
it serves by exercising the highest ethical standards in decision making on behalf of others and by
ensuring that the individual dignity of its clients is respected.”



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
Financial Statements
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%VACHON CLUKAY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

- . . ‘ 608 Chestnar Sireet » Manchester, Mew Harapshire 03104
& COMPANY PC (603) 6227070 + Fax: (603) 622-1452 « wwwvachonelukay.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
; Office of Rublic Guardian, Inc.

Opinion

We have ‘audited the accompanying financial statements of the Office of Public Guardian, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and
2022, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the: Office of Public Guardian, Inc. as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in
its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. ‘

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with-auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the
Office of Public Guardian, Inc. and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained -
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit epinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, ‘whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or

-events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Office of Public Guardian, Inc.'s
ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are
available to be issued. '

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue. an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and



therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a.substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregidte, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

. In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

o  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a tést basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design -audit
proéedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the-purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Office of Public Guardlan Inc.'s internal control. Accordmgly,
no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
‘accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

o Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Office of Public Guardian, In¢.'s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time,

We are required to communicate with those chérged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
* planned scope and timing ‘of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 18, 2025




OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash $ 1,034,568 $ 995992
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible ) :
receivables of $30,000 in 2023 and 2022 112,048 113,055
Contracts receivable 234,507 - 216,346
Prepaid expenses 32,970 32489
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,414,093 . 1,357,882
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Condominium unit 1,181,782 1,181,782
Office furniture and equipment 136,986 142,105
Computer equipment 03,715 185,508
1,412,483 1,509,395
Less accumulated depreciation 692,471 739,186
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 720,012 770,209
OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted cash 9,362 4,068
Investments-restricted 177,096 168,078
Software, net of accumulated amortization.of $19,052 in 2023 and $143,527 in 2022 - -
TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS 186,458 172,146
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,320,563 $ 2,300,237
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES: ;
Accounts payable b 26,807 $ 31,636
Accrued liabilities: . . )
Accrued payroll 60,573 49,850
Accrued vacation 221,036 248,249
Other 54,236 50,397
Current portion of long-term liabilities 27,607 26,329
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 390,259 406,461
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES: .
Mortgage notes payable, less current portion of $25,796 in 2023 and $24,602 in 2022 396,236 422,039
Notes'payable, less current portion of $1,811 in 2023 and $1,727 in 2022 27,822 29,633
TOTALNONCURRENT LIABILITIES 424,058 451,672
TOTAL LIABILITIES 814,317 858,133
NET ASSETS:
Without donor restrictions:
Undesignated 1,319,788 1,269,958
With'donor restrictions: }
Purpose restrictions 86,458 72,146
Endowment funds 100,000 100,000
TOTAL NET ASSETS 1,506,246 1,442,104
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 2,320,563 $ 2,300,237

See notes to financial statements
3



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS:

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

Fees and grants from governmental agencies
Other fees
Investment return, net ‘
Other income .
TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

EXPENSES:
Program services :
Management and general
TOTAL EXPENSES
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS:

Investment return, net
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - July 1
NET ASSETS - June 30.

See noftes to financial statements
4

2023 2022
$ 2,734,060 $ 2,511,367
2,278,676 2,310,973
2,514 1,655
3,070 1,578
5,018,320 4,825,573
3,421,530 3,483,670
1,546,960 1,352,908
4,968,490 4,836,578
49,830 (11,005)
14,312 (23,782)
14,312 5(23,782)
64,142 (34,787)
1,442,104 1,476,891
$ 1,506246 $ 1442,104




OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN; INC,
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

F
SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes

OTHER EXPENSES:

Occupancy
Professional services
Computer and software expénses
Staff development
Office expenses
Travel
Insurance
Depreciation and amortization
Bad debts
Mortgage interest
QOther
Total

Supporting Services

Management Total

Program and Supporting: Total
Services General Services Expenses
$ 2485784 § 1,045,159 $ 1,045,159 $ 3,530,943
391,790 164,730 164,730 556,520
192,283 80,846 80,846 273,129
3,069,857 1,290,735 1,290,735 4,360,592
42,985 18,073 18,073 61,058
8,642 3,633 3,633 12,275
58,022 24,396 24,396 82,418
11,248 4,729 4,729 15,977
120,998 50,874 50,874 171,872
58,691 26,131 «26,131 84,822
"47,246 47,246 47,246
50,197 50,197 50,197
12,499 12,499 12,499
.16,260 5,871 5,871 22,131
34,827 12,576 12,576 47,403
$ 3,421,530 $ 1,546,960 $ 1,546,960 $ 4,968,490

See notes to financial statements
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Supporting Services

Management Total
Program and Supperting Total
Services General Services Expenses
SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:
Salaries $ 2,544,185 § 918,704 $ 918,704 § 3,462,889
Employee benefits 373,700 134,943 134,943 508,643
Payroll taxes 202,188 73,011 73,011 275,199
3,120,073 1,126,658 1,126,658 4,246,731
OTHER EXPENSES:
Occupancy 64,169 23,171 23,171 87,340
- Professional services 19,337 6,982 6,982 26,319
Computer and software expenses 61,458 22,192 22,192 83,650
Staff development 11,735 4,238 4,238 15,973
Office expenses ’ 118,440 42,769 42,769 161,209
Travel 58,691 - 58,691
Insurance 50,772 50,772 50,772
Depreciation and amortization 55,139 55,139 55,139
. Bad debts 10,238 10,238 10,238
" Mortgage interest 17,155 6,195 6,195 23,350
Other 12,612 4,554 4,554 17,166
Total $ 3,483,670 $ 1,352,908 $ 1,352,908 $ 4,836,578

See notes to financial statements
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‘OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from clients and third-party payers
Cash received from governmental agencies
Interest and dividends
Cash paid to employees
Cash paid to suppliers
Net.Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of investments
Realized gains on investments
Cash received from interest and dividends
Net Cash Provided for Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Payments on mortgages and notes
Net Cash Used for Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
Cash, Beginnirig of Year
Cash, End of Year

Supplemental Data:
Interest paid
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments

See notes to financial statements
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2023 2022
$ 2,270,254  § 2,284,992
2,715,899 2,521,704
2,514 1,655
(3,547,433) (3,479,855)
(1,376,322) (1,347,150)
64,912 ~ (18,654)
(4,272) (13,084)
7,092 10,966
2474 2,223
5,294 105
(26,336) (25,117)
(26,336) (25,117)
43,870 (43,666)
1,000,060 1,043,726
$ 1,043,930 $ 1,000,060
$ 22,131 $ 23350
4,746 (36,971)
$ 26877 $ (13,621




OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC,
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 1--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Organization and Purpose

The Office of Public Guardian, Inc. (the “Entity”) was incorporated as a non-profit organization on
July 14, 1983. The Entity was established to provide guardianship, co-guardianship and conservatorship
services for individuals found to be legally incapacitated pursvant to New Hampshire State law
(RSA 464-A) and other applicable statutes. Protective services other than guardianship may include, but
are not limited to, power of attorney, client representative, or setvices as a representative or protective

payee.
Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Office of Public Guardian, Inc. conform to accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to non-profit organizations, except as indicated
hereafter. The following is 2 summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.

Buasis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting and have been
prepared to focus on the Entity as a whole and to present balances and transactions according to the
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject

to donor or certain grantor restrictions. These net assets may be used at the discretion of management and
the Entity’s Board of Directors.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions — Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor-imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Recognition of Contributions and Donor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. The Entity reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restri¢tions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction end or purpose
restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to

" net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from

restrictions.



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 ‘

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and other cash accounts with a maturity of 90 days or
less. For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of the following: .

2023 2022
As presented on the Statements of Financial Position:
Cash . . $ 1,034,568 $ 995992
Cash, restricted 9,362 4,068

$ 1,043,930 § 1,000,060

\

Significant Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Entity’s cash balances exceed amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).
Deposits held by the bank at June 30, 2023 include cash of $879,872 which is not covered by depository
insurance. As of June 30, 2022, the uninsured cash balance was $615,969. However, to date, no losses
have been experienced on any of these accounts.

Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted cash and investments consist of cash and investments for the Graupner Endowment. Fund, a
donor restricted contribution.

Investments

Investments, consisting of equity and fixed income mutual funds, are reported at their fair values in the
statements of financial position. Net investment: retirn/(loss) is reported in the statements of activities and
consists of interest income, realized and unrealized gains and losses, less external investment expenses.

Property and Equipment ) ,
. . /
Property and equipment are stated at cost. The Entity's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major
improvements and to charge operations currently for expenditures which do not extend the lives of related
assets, The provision for depreciation is determined by the straight-line method at rates intended to

depreciate or amortize the cost of related assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Years
Furniture and equipment 3-10
Buildings and improvements 10-40

Depreciation expense was $50,197 and $55,139 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
Bad Debis
The Entity uses the reserve method for aécounting for bad debts. For the years ended June 30, 2023 and

2022, the Entity reserved $30,000 as an allowance for uncollectible receivables. Management estimated
these allowances by evaluating the probability of collection on a per account basis.



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Accrued Vacation

Full time employees accrue Paid Time Off (PTO) during their first year of employment at a rate .of 9.38
hours per completed month of service. After the first year of service employees are credited with 150 to
262.5 hours of PTO for that year on January 1st, based on each employee’s years of service. Employees
may carry over 37.5.t0 150 hours of unused PTO into each calendar year based-on their years of service.
Any accrued, but unused PTO is payable to the employee upon separatlon from employment and has been
recorded as a liability at year end.

Income Taxes

The Entity is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for
Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Entity has been detérmined by the Internal Revenue
Service not to be a "Private Foundation™ within the meaning of Section 509(a} of the Code. The Entity is
annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS.

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income Taxes requires the
Entity to report uncertain tax. positions for financial reporting purposes. The Entity had no uncertain tax
positions ag of June 30, 2023 and, accordingly, does not have any unrecognized tax benefits that need to
be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements. '

‘Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and equivalents, accounts receivable, contracts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses
are carried in the financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently
short-term nature of the transactions. The fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates,
which for certain accounts may differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon’
immediate liquidation.

Revenue Recognition

The Entity recognizes contributions, donations, and other miscellaneous income when cash is received.
Interest income is recognized monthly as accrued. The Entity recognizes revenue from contracts with
customers in the form of guardianship services provided to individuals. Services provided to individuals
are charged to governmental contracts when eligible, and for those not eligible, charged as “private pay.”

The Entity has revenue derived from governmental contracts for guardianship services provided, which
are based upon certain performance requirements. Revenue from governmental contracts is recognized
when the Entity has met the performance requirements specified by contract provisions. For governmental
contracts, services are billed on-a monthly basis in arrears.

Private pay guardianship services are billed in one of three methods: hourly for. services related to
estate/financial matters and monthly flat rate for guardianship over person; per diem for court appointed
guardianship over person; and on a percentage basis for trusts and guardianship services of a minor. Per
diem services are billed in advance, while hourly, flat rate. and percentage-based services are billed after
services have been provided. The Entity recognizes revenue for private pay services at the point in time
when customers are billed. Receivables may be recorded in advance of services provided.
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on-a functional basis in the
statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are aitributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited, based primarily on percentage allocations calculated based
on hours worked (time and effort). The expenses that are allocated include employee benefits, payroll
taxes, occupancy, professional services, computer and software expense, office expense, mortgage
interest, and other miscellaneous expenses.

Advertising Expense
The Entity expenses advertising costs as. incurred.
Pervasiveness of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

NOTE 2--AGENCY FUNDS

The Entity maintains guardian accounts on behalf of the wards of the State of New Hampshire in a
custodial capacity, These funds amounted to approximately $28,368,809 and $32,737,761 as of
June 390, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The assets and related obligations have not been reflected on the
Statements of Financial Position at June 30, 2023 or 2022,

NOTE 3--ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE

The Entity's primary source of support are fees and grants received from the State of New Hampshire
totaling $2,734,060 (54% total revenue), and $2,511,367 (52% total revenue) for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Revenue is recognized as earned under the terms of the contract
based on units and level of services provided. Other support originates as charges for private services,
interest, and other income. The State contract has been renewed through the fiscal year ended June 30,
2024,

NOTE 4--LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY -

The Entity regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. Cash reserves in excess of daily operational needs are invested in money
market and savings accounts to maximize investment return while maintaining safety and liquidity.

The following table reflects the Entity’s financial assets as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, reduced by
amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statemnént of financial
position date because of donor restrictions.
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Financial assets available for general expenditure, reduced by donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following:

Cash § 1,043,930 § 1,000,060
Investments 177,096 168,078
Accounts receivable 112,048 113,055
Contracts receivable 234,507 216,346
Total Financial Assets' 1,567,581 1,497,539
Less:
Net assets with donor restrictions (186,458)  (172,146)
Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs
for General Expenditures Within One Year $ 1,381,123 § 1,325,393

"NOTE 5-INVESTMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

The Entity reports under the Fair Value Measurements pronouncements of the FASB' Accounting
Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10), which establishes a framework for measuring fair value.
That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below.

Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Enfity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 — Inputs to the valuation include:

Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;

Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active;
Inputs-other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means.

a © @

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 — Inputs to the valiation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized
within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is
categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entirc measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire
measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and
does not necessarily correspond to our assessment of the quality, risk, .or liquidity profile of the asset or
liability.

12



OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 ' ;

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Equity and fixed income mutual funds: Valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which |
the individual securities are traded.

The following tables set forth by fevel, within the fair value hierarchy, the Entity’s assets measured at fair.
value on a recurring basis, as of June 30, 2023 and 2022:

Assets at Fair Value as of Tune 30, 2023

) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equity mutual funds $ 111,622 111,622
Fixed income mutual funds 65,474 65,474
Total Assets at Fair Value $ 177,096 $ - $ - § 177,096

Agsets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2022

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equity mutual funds £$ 112,765 ' $ 112,765
Fixed income mutual funds 55,313 ) 55,313

Total Assets at Fair Value $ 168,078 $ - $ - - $ 168,078

NOTE 6-ENDOWMENTS !

The Board of Directors of the Entity has interpreted the State Prudent Management of Institutional Funds
Act (SPMIFA) as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the
donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor st1pu1at1ons to the contrary. Because: of this
interpretation, the Entity classifies the original value of the gift as donor restricted net assets which are
permanently restricted. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund is classified as
donor restricted net assets until approved for expenditure when it is reclassified to unresiricted net assets.
The Entity appropriates amounts for expenditure in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence
prescribed by SPMIFA. In accordance with SPMIFA, the Entity considers the following factors in
making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds: (1) duration and
preservation of the endowment funds; (2) the purposes of the Entity and the endowment fund; (3) general
economic conditions; (4) effect of inflation and deflation; (5) the expected total return from income and
the appreciation of investments; (6) other resources of the Entity; and (7) the investment policy of the
Entity.

The Entity has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a
predictable stream of income of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of those endowment assets over the long -term. Endowment assets include
those assets of donor-restricted funds that the Entity must hold in perpetuity or for donor-specified
periods. Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a
manner that is intended to achieve an after-cost total real rate of return, including investment income as
well as capital appreciation, which éxceeds the annual distribution with acceptable levels of risk. The
Entity expects its endowment assets, over time, to produce an average return of approximately 10%
annually. Actual returns in any given year may vary from this amount.
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC GUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

To- satisfy its long-term rate of return objectives, the Entity relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation and current yield. The Entity targets a
diversified asset allocation which includes equity and debt securities. This is intended to result in a
consistent inflation-protection rate of return that has enough liquidity to make an annual distribution of
approximately $5,000 on average while growing the fund, if possible.

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds

may fall below the level that the donor or SPMIFA requires the Entity to retain as a fund of perpetual
duration,

The following tabulation summarjzes the relationship between carrying values and market values of
investment assets for the years ending June 30, 2023 and 2022:

For the year ended June 30, 2023:

Purpose Endowment
Restricted Funds Total
Donor restricted net assets as of
July 1, 2022 b 72,146 $ 100,000 5 172,146
_Investment return: .
Investment income, net of fees 9,566 9,566
Net appreciation 4,746 4,746

Donor restricted net assets as of June 30, 2023 ¥ 86,458 $ 100,000 § 186,458

For the year ended June 30, 2022:

Purpose Endowment
Restricted JFunds Total
Donor restricted net assets as of ) ’
July 1, 2021 $ 95,928 $ 100,000 $ 195,928
Investment return:
Investment income, nét of fees 13,189 13,189
Net appreciation / (depreciation) (36,971) (36,9715

Donor restricted net assets as of June 30, 2022 b 72,146 $ 100000 § 172,146

NOTE 7-LONG-TERM DEBT

At June 30, 2023.and 2022, mortgage and notes payable consists of the following:

2023 2022
$584,000 mortgage note payable with bank, secured by property,
payable in monthly installments of $3,774, through October 2035.
Note includes variable interest at-a rate of 4.75% per annum through
November 2025, subsequent interest will be 2.25% plus the Ten
Year Federal Home Loan Bank Index Rate. $ 422,032 3 446,641
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OFFICE OF PUBLIC AGUARDIAN, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

$41,000 unsecured note payable with bank, payable in monthly
installments of $265 through October-2035. Note includes variable
interest at a rate of 4.75% per annum through November 2025,
subsequent interest will be 2.25% plus the Ten Year Federal Home

Loan Bank Index Rate. 29,633 31,360
451,665 478_,001
Less current portion 27,607 26,329

$ 424,058 § 451,672

Debt service requirements are as follows:

Year Amount
2024 . $ 27,607
2025 28,947
2026 ) 30,590
2027 32,156
2028 33,718
Thereafter 208,647
$ 451,665

NOTE 8--REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The following table provides information about significant balances on coniracts with customers for the
prior three years:

Contract Contract
Receivables Assets Liabilities
June 30,2023 - 3 356,294 § - $ -
June 30, 2022 $ 350,142 § - 5 -
June 30,2021 $ 349,763 § - $ -

NOTE 9--RETIREMENT PLAN

The Entity has a tax deferred annuity plan under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code for all full-
time employees. An employee becomes eligible to participate at the commencement of employment and
is vested when an initial contribution is made. Employer contributions are made on each participant's
behalf; contribution rates were 5% of gross wages for each of the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022.
The Entity contributed $133,870 and $105,454 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively,
to the plan.

NOTE 10--SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 18, 2025, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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LISABRITT SOLSKY STEVENS, JD, CHIE
]

-

Trusted public sector executive leader specializing in healthcare, equity and the intersectional holistic
health needs of individuals and families. Expertise in program design, implementation, and oversight.
Recognized for process improvement and operational effectiveness within financially cohstrained
enterprises. Data-driven decision maker skilled in relationship building. Valued for building dynamic and
loyal teams that achieve superior, collaborative results for constituencies. Best suited for mission driven
organizations, '

EXPERTISE

o Strong New Hampshire public sector @  Managed Care Operations
relationships e Deep Medicaid service, eligibility and

o  QOrganizational strategy finance knowledge

o Policy development &  Government affairs

o  Government regulation & compliance e State budgseting

EXPERIENCE
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OCTOBER 2021 — PRESENT

CHIEF GOVERNMENT RELATIONS & COMPLIANCE OFFICER, EASTERSEALS NEW
HAMPSHIRE/VERMONT/FARNUM

Reporting to the CEO and responsible for managing government relations for Easterseals
NH/VT/Farnum requiring policy and budget expertise in the 14 distinct programs serving
individuals of all ages with disabilities including veterans, individuals with substance misuse
disorder, as well as Vermont child welfare programs. Implemented a comprehensive compliance
program befitting of a $100M+ healthcare and social service organization and oversee ongoing
compliance operations. Responsible for contract management including negotiations with many
state and commercial payors. Serve as primary liaison with external legal counsel.
ACCOMPLISHMENTS: Successfully negotiated increased payor contracts with state’s largest
commercial carrier; successfully negotiated dramatic increase in program funding; participated in
advocacy coalitions that yielded a state budget with the largest investment in safety net
programs in a generation; created centralized contracting function including launch of contract
lifecycle management technology; authored countiess policies and procedures.

JUNE 2020-OCTOBER 2021

VICE PRESIDENT OF STRATEGY AND CORPORATE DEVELOPMENT, GRANITE STATE
INDEPENDENT LIVING

Reporting to the CEO and responsible for creating multi-faceted roadmap for non-profit
modernity and sustainability at the state’s only Center for independent Living that provides
comprehensive services to individuals who experience disability. Partfolio included strategic
business development, advocacy, fundraising, events, donor management and communications.
ACCOMPLISHMENTS: Procured multiple grants in first several months of tenure totalling $100k;
Oversaw acquisition of new business enterprise; Managed website overhaul and redesign;
Supported other departments in collecting, analyzing and using data to drive decisions; Secured



LISABRITT SOLSKY, JD, CHIE PAGE 2

place in Business Development Learning Collaborative through NCIL; Wrote corporate COVID-19
policy,

MARCH 2015 - SEPTEMBER 20189
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, WELL SENSE HEALTH PLAN

Reporting to the CEO, this role is the rost senior peéition on the ground, leading day-to-day
operations of the state’s largest and only not-for-profit Medicaid managed care organization.
Maintained corporate relationships with government, regulators, thought leaders, legislators,

. community organizations, vendors and healthcare providers and systems. Set and implementad
health plan strategy consistent with corporate financial and performance goals. Servad on
corporate executive team with chiafs, Led office of 65 emplovees across clinical, provider,
operations, compliance and customer care domains.

ACCOMPLISHMENTS: Co-led successful drafting and submission of bid for second five-year,
$400M contract; established strategic partnerships with Families In Transition/New Hérizons;
advised fegislative commission that reaithorized Medicaid adult expansion; rated a Best
Company to Work For by Business NH Magazine 2017 and 2018, and number one female led not-
for-profit by Business NH Magazine 20186,

MARCH 2000 — FEBRUARY 2015
DEPUTY MEDICAID DIRECTOR, NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SERVICES

Served for seven years as Deputy Medicald Director managing a portfolio that included managed
care operations, data & analytics, health planning & research, State Plan & policy, government
affairs, provider relations, membaer services and Children’s Health insurance Program {CHIP). Led
team of 8-9 direct reports and supported Medicaid Director and Commissioner.

For eight years prior, served as General Counsel and Administrator in Division of Family

Assistance, Estate Recovery, Office of Reimbursements and Administrative Rules Unit, providing

policy support for programs of public assistance, managing an active probate and trust practice,
" and overseeing adoption of all departmental regulations.

ACCOMPLISHMENTS: successfully transformed the CHIP program to an MCHIP, saving the state
millions of dollars while simultaneously expanding the breadth and dapth of coveraga for low-
income children, launched the state's first'mandatory Medicaid managed care prozram, bversaw
publication of scholerly research on the health of New Hampshire’s most vilnerable citizens.

o

1997 2000
STAFF ATTORNEY, MERRIMACK VALLEY LEGAL SERVICES

1996 -- 1997
LEGAL ADVOCATE & VOLUNTEER COORDINATOR, DOVE, INC,
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EDUCATION

JURIS DOCTOR, UNIVERSITY OF THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA, DAVID A, CLARKE
SCHOOL OF LAW

One of the nation’s only public interest law schools and an HBCU.,

WL B EIE OE N MO EARE
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BACHELOR OF ARTS, UNIVERSITY OF MASSACHUSETTS, AMHERST

Major in English, miner in Women’s Studies. Participated in National Student Exchange Program.
Lived and worked in fully functioning co-operative dormitory; served on dorm house counci for 3
semeasters. '
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DISTINCTIONS

Member Massachusetts Bar Association {fetired)

- Member New Hampshire Bar Association {inactive)

Earnad America’s Health insurance Plans Certified Health Insurance Executive credentia! (2016)
Business NM Magazine Top Woman-Led Business recognition {2016)

Business NH Magazine Best Company to Work For (2017 & 2018)

Business and Industty Association “Above and Beyond Award” recipient {2011}

Manchester Union Leader 40 Under Forty honorea {2010}

Leadership New Hampshire {2008)

CIVIC ENGAGEMENT

Member New Hampshire Governor's interagency Council on Homelessness {2018-2021)
Board of Directors, New Hampshire Public Health Association (2020 to 2022)

NH COVID-19 Equity Task Force (2020-2022) lead “Justice involved” Workgroup promoting
neads/interests of incarcerated people vis-a-vis COVID-19

Board of Directors, NH Women's Foundation F/K/A Women's initiative {2010 - 2015)
Leadership NH Selection Committee (2014 - 2018}

NH Bar Association Lawyer & Judge In Every School {2008, 2007}



JANE TEWKSBURY

ExEcuTivE PROFILE

Dynamic, versatile, senior-level executive professional with more than 25 years of managerial experience spent successfully
achieving business goals using leadership acumen. Recently became a member of the New England Society of Assaciation
Executives, reinforcing a passion for executive management excellence while broadening business skill set. In-search of a
challenging role within a company that will call upon a diverse, transferable skill set resulting in added value to the organization.

PROFESSIONAL SKILLS

Strong interpersonal, organizational and leadership skills.

Human resource specialist focusing on recruitment, conflict management and providing guidance to employees.
Incorporates conscious leadership philosophy through active listening, collaboration and implementation to

effectively serve as an empathetic workplace mentor to enhance employee adaptability, productivity and engagement.
Superior attention to detail to excel in deadline-driven settings.

Implements change in conjunction with organizational initiatives to improve performance, productivity and team,
cohesiveness.

Exemplifies passion, idealism, integrity, positive attitude and transparency.

CAREER HIGHLIGHTS

Employee Development: Oversaw Sodexo, Page Belting, BIA and NHMS's employees including recruiting, hiring,
training and reviewing performance for highly skilled individuals and teams. Worked in collaboration with key team
members to execute internal organizational restructuring.

Leadership: Trained management on trend awareness and performance improvement through targeted consultations
and spearheaded various human resource projects and initiatives to ensure compliance. )
Networking Relationship Building: Successfully established countless contacts that fostered mutually beneficial
long-term refationships with individuals both in New Hampshire and nationwide,

Strategic Planning: Instrumental in evolving the BIA and NHMS in order to achieve organizational growth goals;
identified employee inefficiencies and implemented optimized procedures to maximize resources.

Organizational Behavior: Effectively serves as a link between managers and employees by handling inquiries,
interpreting and administering contracts, and helping resolve work related conflict to promote a positive work
environment

Financial Governance: Created and implemented operable fiscal year budgets at Sodexo, BlA and NHMS; monitored
compliance to ensure maximum profitability and identified ways to cut costs without falling short on expectations.

ProFessioNaL HISTORY

NH MEDICAL SOCIETY | Ciiief Operating Officer & Interim Executive Vice President, January 202 1-Present
New Hampshire’s Physician Association group advocating for the well-being of patients, physicians, and the betterment of public

health.

[ ]
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Provides leadership and cverall direction to the NH Medical Society Board of Directors and Bowler-Bartlett Foundation.
Assess internal and external inquiries directed to the NH Medical Society to determine proper course of action.
Responsible for fostering a team-oriented work environment and making personnel decisions necessary.to
accommodate growth and strategic planning objectives to improve company vision and culture.

Oversees compliance in areas including all day-to-day operations, finance, and human resources functions.

Manages deployment of staffing and vendor resources including contract negotiation, contract evaluation and
coordinating vendor services.

Collaborates with Board of Directors and stakeholders to raise capital and create expansion strategies.

Actively administers grant funded initiatives ensuring program and audit compliance.

Responsible for monthly financial statements, bank reconciliation and annual external audit,

Enforces adherence to legal guidelines and in-house policies while maintaining business ethics and ensuring proper
governance.

BUSINESS & INDUSTRY ASSOCIATION OF NH | Senior VP of Operations & Finance, 2008-December 2021
New Hampshire's Statewide Chamber of Commerce and leading business advocate representing 400 employers with a
90-member executive board of directors. .

e 9 © ¢

Collaborated with the CEQ with prioritization, communication and making sound decisions.

Proactively attended continuing education seminars to stay current on internal and external operational proceduras.
Analyzed data to help formulate solid financial plans to safeguard organizational sustainability.

Generated revenue stream by coaching staff on effective prospecting and lead development strategies.
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Managed all aspects of accounting including accounts payable & invoicing, accounts receivable & cash postings,
collection calls, general ledger entries, monthly reconciliations, budgeting, year-end preparation.and assisting with audit.
Responsible for recruitment, selection and management of all BIA's staff including new hire/termiination paperwork &
filing; payroll & tax liabilities; workers compensation filing, administration and reporting; maintaining daily schedules,
vacation tracking and other employee benefits; annual census reporting for 401(k), 403(b) STD, LTD & ADD; filing 5500

for retirement plan. |

Negotlated lease tefms with landlord, 1.T. and software contracts, equipment contracts, insurance brokers and other
various operational vendors.

PAGE BELTING COMPANY | Human Resource Manager, 1998-2006 _
One of New Hampshire's oldest manufacturing companies employing nearly 100 people.

Scheduled and conducted interviews; created and approved job offers and salary structures

Directed human reseurce functions including recruitment, hiring, training, on-boarding and employee relations
Ensured compliance with-state, federal and local employment laws, as well as company standards, systems.and
processes s

Provided confidential issue resolution while working with various levels of management

Trained management on trend awareness and performance in compliance

Reduced employee turnover through implementation of new incentive program / bonus structure to boost morale and
performance

Proactively coached operations leaders on organizational effectiveness, performance management, engagement and
development topics including progressive discipline, reward and recoghition, training and workforce diversity

SODEXOQ | Operating Manager, 1995-1998
Sidewalk Café, located in the student union building at Plymouth State University

.
]
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Recruited, hired, terminated and mentored college aged students and adults within the Plytfnouth State community
Promoted and supported workplace diversity initiatives and created a positive work environment

Directed daily general operations to ensure employees had appropriate equipment, inventory and resources to operate
by Sodexo's standards

Developed / implemented plans and projects with defined objectives and timetables to support overall strategic plan for
upper management

EpucaTioNn & TRAINING

Bachelor of 8cience in Business Management
Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH )
Course Emphasis. Administrative Policy, Interpersonal Relations, and Human Resource Management

Supervision Series Certified
NHTI, Concord NH

Leadership Greater Concord Graduate
Greater Concord Chamber of Commerce, Concord NH

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

0 & 0 & O 0 O00C 0 O O S

- Best Buddies - Board of Directors and community advocate (2013-present)

Champion of the Year, Best Buddies NH (2018)

Christa McAuliffe School PTO:- Board of Directors, Treasurer (2012-2017)
Concord Baba Ruth - Board of Directors, Treasurer (2016-2020)

Concord Parks & Recreation - Assistant Coach (2010-2012)

COPOCO - Board of Directors, Treasurer (2009-2015)

Greater Coencord Chamber of Commerce - Ambassador (2002-2005)
NHTI - President’s Scholarship Fund, “Dancing with the Concord Stars” participant (2016}
Notary Pubiic for the State of New Hampshire (2008 - present)
Qutstanding Women in Business Nominee, NH Business Magazine (2018)
Union Leader - 40 Under 40, selection committee (2012-2017)
Womenade of Concord - Board of Directors, Treasurer {2010-2020)
YMCA - Board of Directors {2011-2014)



TERESA ANN GUSTAVSON

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

Experienced Director of Guardian Services at Office of Public Guardian, adept in
strategic planning and fostering strong relationships across departments and- with
-external stakeholders. Excelled in building high-performing teams, enhancing decision-
making processes, and implementing effective conflict resolution strategies. Proven
track record in collaborative pfoblem-solving and clear communication. Possesses
strong desire to continue improving organizational culture, client experience and staff
professional development.

SKILLS
o Relationship building within s Strategic planning and collaborative
departments and outside stakeholders approach to challenges and
opportunities within the organization
e Strong verbal and written o Strong decision-making skills both at a
communication supervisory level and practical level as
a professional guardian
o Strong conflict resolution skills o Deep knowledge base of the.NH service
delivery system
WORK HISTORY -

07/2007 to Current  Director of Guardian Services
Office of Public Guardian — Concord, NH

® Developed high-performing guardian teams by providing routine mentorship,
guidance, and encouragement for opportunities for professional growth.

¢ Provided guardian specific goal setting, and performancé evaluations for 4 staff
guardians. "

o Lstablished a culture of respect and job integrity through open communication
channels and empowering employees to voice their ideas.

¢ Advocate of cross-functional collaboration for improved decision-making
processes within the organization.

04/2019 to Current  Youth Softball and Basketball Coach
Hooksett Youth Athletic Association (HYAA) - Hooksett, NH
o Built basic foundational skills while managing the early development challenges
that come along with coaching young children.
e Promoted sportsmanship, teamwork, and respect among players both on and off
the court.
e Enhanced player skills through personalized coaching and feedback.



09/2004 to 05/2007

EDUCATION

Residential Coordinator

Harbor Homes, Inc. — Nashua, NH

Assist with the day-to-day needs of 10 adult residents with medical and behavioral
health challenges.

Provided Illness Management and Recovery services as reflected in the individual's
treatment plan.

Worked closely with local stake holders, including Gateways Community Services and
Greater Nashua Mental Health Center, to provide collaborative, wrap-around care for

the residents.

05/2007

CERTIFICATIONS

PROJECTS

Master of Arts: Clinical Mental Health Counseling
Rivier University - Nashua, NH

o National Certified Guardian since 2008

Member of the Easter Seals National Alliance Direct Support Professionals Advisory
Committee 2023-present

Member of the NH Statewide Reunification Collaborative Team 2016-2017
Oversees in-service research and schedule for guardian department

Currently serves on the OPG Strategic Planning team



NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions,

Contractor Name: Office of Public Guardian

Lisabritt Solsky Stevens Chief Executive Officer $133,000.00 V $1 90,0‘00.007
C. Jane Tewksbury VP Fiduciary Services $93,730.00 $133,900.00
Teresa Gustavson VP Guardianship Services $77,000.00 $110,000.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
‘ DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH .
Lori A, Weaver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

Commisslgner _ 603-271-9544  1.800-§52-3345 Ext, 0544
Fax: 603-271-4332  TDD Access: 1-800.735.2864 www.dkhs.nb.goy

Kstja 8. Fox
Dirgetor

May 22, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
-and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize-the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Heaith,
lo enter into Sole Source contracts with the contractors listed below in an amount not to exceed
$3,772,019 to provide’ public guardianship services for individuals with mental iliness or
developmental disabilities or adulls requiring protective services, with the option to renew for up
to'one (1) additional year, effeciive July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval through.
Jurie 30,2026, 5% Federa! Funds..95% General Funds. '

Cblntraqter Nar}fé ) Vendor Code | A;_reé Served | Vgtont,rap{'ﬁmount
Office of Public Guardian | . , ’ o
(Concord, NH) 1??5.28-3001 . SgteWide : $3,073,437 |.
Tri-County Community o " | o
Action Program, inc.(Tri- , ‘ , -
{Berlin, NH}) 3 . 1
‘  Total: $3,772,919

Funds are’ available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year (2025), with the

authority to adjust budget line lems within the price limitation and encimbrances batwesn state
fiscal years tarough the Budget Office, if needed and justified. ‘

See attached fiscal details,

EXPLANATION

This request is Seole Source. because the Contractors are the onlycpntractors able to
Pravida-the necessary services. RSA 547-B establishes the Public Guardianship and Protaction
Program'for guardianship services {o'be provided per NH RSA 1 35-C:80 and NH RSA 171-A110,
‘NH RSA 547-B:6 requires the Department to contract with oné or more organizations that the

New Hampshire Supreme Court has'designated as & public guardianship and protection program,

The Office of.the Public Guardian and Tri-County Comimunity Action Prograr, Inc, are the only

i S
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His Excellency, Govemar Chﬁstogﬁer T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 2

organizations the New Hampshire Suprems Court has designated as public guardianship and
- protaction programs. .

The purpose of this request is to provide guardianship services, statewide, for individuals

with mental illness or develdpmental disabilities, as well as incapacitated adults who are abused,

- neglected, or axploited, which leaves them at risk of substantial harm because of their inability to
provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their personal affairs.

Approximately-850 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Year 2025,

These services are necessary to meet the. State’s statutory obligations to safeguard -
incapacitated individuals who are in state institutions as well as in communily mental health and
developmental service programs, statewide. Services provided to ensure that the guardianships
are maintained and limited in accordance with the standards based on RSA 464-A. \

Contracted services include mentoring and training services for family members who are
willing to serve as guardian but require a period of support. Providing this support may remove
the need for publfic guardianship in these cases, which results in a fiscal savings due to not-
needing to engage permanent public guardianship services. The Contractors agree 1o seek
reimbursement from other payer sources, including social security, when providing guardianship
and protection services,

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the attached

agreements, the parties have the option to extend the agreements for up to one (1) additional

- year, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agresment of the
parlies, and Govemor and Councit approval. .

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department would be out’
of compliance with the requirements of NH RSA 135-C: 60; NH RSA 171-A: 10, II; and NH RSA
161-F: 52. Additionally, individuals with mental Hiness, developmental disabilities and
incapacitated adulls who are abused, neglected or exploited, would be lsft at greater risk of harm
because of their inabifity to provide their own food, shefter, health care, safely, or to manage their
parsonal affairs. .

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Numbér #93.667. FAIN #2401NHSOSR

T “l'n.the evenl that the Federal Funds become no 'longer available, additional General Funds
will be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,
- Lori A. Weaver &
Commi_ssioner

~

-

FaLE

# i

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to j_é;a:;: communities and familics
in providing opportunities for citizens to ochieve hta!h"l—and independence.
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05-55-92-9220104114 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT.
HHS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES, GUARDIANSHIP

SVCS
Office of Publlc Guardian - i
State - Class! '
. I:i'ser;?l Account Class Title :Job Number Current-Bugget v
2025 [102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92204114 $1,478,905.00]
Subtotal $1,479,905.00]"
Tri-County Community Action Progra Inc. B ' )
State Class / .o ‘
Fiscal ass Class Title Job Number] Current Budget .
Year Account R ) ’
2025 ]102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92204114 $699,482.00
. Subtotal $699,482.00

i

Office of Public Guardian -

05-95-48-481010-9255 HEALTH. AND SOCIAL SERVICES HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT,
HHS: ELDERLY & ADULT SVCS DIV, GRANTS FOR SOCIAL SVC PROG. SOCIAL SERVICES

BLOCK GRANT
| State Class / -
Fiscal Class Title Job Number| Current Budget
Year Account . .
2025 ]074-500589 GRANTS FOR PUB ASST AND REL [ -48130201 $177,394
Subtotal $177,394

-|Office of Public Guardian

05-95-93-93001‘0 5947 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH'AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT.
HS: DLTSS-DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, PROGRAM SUPPORT

) State Class /
Fiscal . . Class Title Job Number| Current Budget
Account . s
Year ,
2025 1102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 93005947 $1,416,138]
Subtotal $1,416,138
Grand Total|. = $3,772,919

e
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Subject Guardianship Services (ss-zozs -DBH- 01-GUARD -01)

_Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submissicn to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. ‘Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed 10 in'writing prior to signing the contract.

’ -AGREEMENT )
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS '
1. IDENTIFICATION. . I
1.1 State Agency Name : . 1.2 State Agency Address -
- . ’ " | 129 Pleasant Street
New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services Concord, NH 03301-3857
, 1.3 Contractor Name ] 1.4 Contractor Address
Qffice of Public Guardian 2 Pillsbury Street, Suite 400
‘ oS Concord, NH 03301 )
1.5 Contractor Phone ‘ 1.6 Account Unit and Class 1.7 Completion Date ' 1.8 Price Limitation
- Number TBD o $3,073,437
(603) 224-8041 : 6/30/2025
N Contracting Officer for Stk Agency o 1.0 Suate Agency Teléphone Number
"t | Robert W, Moare, Director . {603) 271-9631
1.}1 Contractor Signature ' : 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Dncusignad by:

ey . Date5/22/2024 Lisabritt Solsky Stev
) Lisaloridt S e(,s&t? Stuwens i
1.13  State Agency Signature _ . [.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatery
DocuSigrad hy: = ) .
2 Date5/23/2024 Katja S. Fox ‘ Direcror

S| et e

115 Approvai by the N.11. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (i applicable)

By: _ ’ ) Director, On'

£

s

1.16 Approval by the Anomey General (Form, Substance and Execuuon) (if apphcable)
" on: 5/23/2024

1.17 Approval by ihe Governor-and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: | 2 © G&C Méeling Daté:

#

Dalq',5[22[2024

g § . RS —D3
4 v Page 1 of 4 | LSS
2 ‘Contractor Initials
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
{"State™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified.and more particularly described in ‘the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by referénce
(“Servnces“) r

1
3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
- contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor.and Executive Council
approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
" Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
("Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the Sole risk of the Contractor,
and.in the event that this Agreenient does not become’ effective, the
State shal! have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any .cbligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed,
3.3 Contractor mnst complete all- Services by the Completion I)a!e
specnf“ed in block 1.7.

d CONDITIO‘IAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding.any provision of this Agreemient to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the cantinuance of payments hereunder; are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In rio event shalt
the State be liable for-any payments hereunder in excess of such
gvailable appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or.executive action thal reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies
the appropriation-or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services pravided in EXMIBIT B, in whéle otin part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment-until such funds
:become avallable, if éver, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate 'the Services under this Agrcemcnt immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the' Accouril identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in that Account are reduced or unavailable,
5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE;}LIMITATJONI PAYMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and:terms of payment
“are_identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incarporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or-actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
payment by the Staté of the conlract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for ali expenses, of

whatever nature incurred by the Centractor ih the performance .

. DS
k) N o 3
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hereof, and shall be the only and lhe complete compensal:on to the
Contractor for, the Services. "
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts

‘otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those

liquidated amounts required or permltled by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.,

54 The State’s liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not (o exceed the total fees paid, The Contractor

agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this *

Agreement by-the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable, remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT

"OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the perfo:mancc of the Services, the
Contractor: shall comply . with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor’s order on Respect

and Civility in the Workplace, ‘Executive order 2020-01. In *

addition,.if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State 6r the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable inteltectual property laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,

gender identity, or gender expression, and will teke affirmative

action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or

) -
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subconiractors |

comply with these rondiscrimination requirements.

6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Centractor or ‘its
representatives in conriection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which. have the purpose or effect of public or commercia)
bribery, or acceptance. of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business,

6:4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State. or United States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for

the purpose_of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and ~

21l rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

. wi
e
v -

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall st its own expense provide all personnel '

necessary 10 perform the Services. The Céntractor warrants-that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
{0 do 50 under all applicable Jaws.

7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any’

successor, 'shall be the State’s point of contact pertaining o this

- Agreement, =

-

Y

Date 5/22/2 5(22(3024

23
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Default”);

8.1.1 failure to perform:'the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or

8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
" this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State ‘may
take aﬂy one, or more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 pive the Contractor a wrilten notice specifying the Event of

" Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is fiot timely
cured, terminate this Agreemem effective two (2) calendar days
after gwmg the Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 pive the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Centractor during the period from
the date of such notice untif such time as the State determines that
the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
" 1o the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a wrilten notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both,

9. TERMINATION, .

‘9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any. reason, in whole or in.
part, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising ils option to terminate the Agreement,
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, ihe Contractor
shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not laler than fifteen (15) calendar days afier the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report?) describing i detail
all Services: performéd, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the State’s
-discrelion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
-of nolice of early termination, develop and submit 1o the Stale a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/PISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “Property” shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or aéquired or develdped by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports files,
formulde, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video

recordings, “pictorial reproductions, drawings, snalyses, praphic’

representations, computer programs, compuier printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

A
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10.2 All data and any Property which has beén received from the
State, or purchased with furds provided for that purpose under this

Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be retumed.

to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason. )

10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law,
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

11, CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. in the
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent.contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor not any of its ofTicers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers’ compensation or other _emoluments
provided by the State to its employees

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.

12.1. Contractor shall provide the State written notice at east fifieen
{15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State.

12.2 ¥or purposes of paragraph. 12, a Change of Conirol shall
constitute assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,

-consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in

which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent {50%} or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or comibined voting power.of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of ali or substantialiy ali of the assets of
the Contractor,

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contraclor
without prior written notice and consent of the State. )
12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts” and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

Lo .
13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, it§ officers, and employees

from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
vjudgm,ents, fines, liabilities; losses, and other expenses,‘including,

without limitation, reasonable attorneys® fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
persona) -injury, property, damage, iniellectual
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,

or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence, -

reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The Staté shall not be liable
for any costs incurred. by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13, Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained-shall be deemed to -constilute a waiver -of the State’s
sovereign immunity, which immunity s hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive lhe terination
of this Agreement,

ar EF
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- 14,1 The Contractor 'shall,

-

. person proposes to undertake pursuant to this Agreement.

14, INSURANCE.

gt its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the foliowing
insurance:. '

14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
badily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;

and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in-an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.,

14.2 The policics described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use-in the State of
New Hampshice by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall fumish to the Contracting Officer

-tdentified in block 1.9, or any successor, a certificate(s) of

insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. Al the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor

shall provide certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of :

insurance required under this Agreement. The certificate(s) of
insutance -and . any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is.in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“Workers’
Compensation™), "

15,2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the rcqulrcments of
N.H. RSA chdpter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or asmgnee 10 secure and maintain, payment of
Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the
The
Contractor shall fumish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in W.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Gompensation premiums or for any ather claim or
benefit for Corntiaclor, or any subcontractor ar employee of
Contractoy, which might arise under applicablc State of New
Hampshire Workers" Compensation laws in connection wﬂh the
pcrformance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER-OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall-not act as a waiver of the right of thé Staté 1o latér enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach,

17. NOTICE. Any not:ce by a party heteto to thé ather party shall
be ‘deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by ceniified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post
Office addressed to theparties at the addresses given in biocks 1.2
and 1.4, herein.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional

W&

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and oniy after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of

_New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the

circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM,

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agréement. is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutval intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in faver of any party.

19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breachi or alleged breach thereof, may nol be submitted te binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in' the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which:shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof. )

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between
the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHI{BIT A} and.any
other portion of this Agreement mciudmg any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agrecmcnt is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, £xpress or
implied,. is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interprétation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this

Agreement,

_ or ~modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference. _

‘24. FURTHER ASSURANCE:S, The Contractor, along with its
.agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, exceole any

additional documents and take such further actions as may be

reasonably required 10 carry out the provisions of this Agreement

and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby, -

25 SEVERABILITY. In the eventany of the-proiz'isions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction 10 be
tontrary (o any staté or fedéral law, thé remaining provisions of

_ this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be

executed in a number of counterparts, éach of which shall be
deemed an - original,

constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter

hereof. o
N ‘i I bs
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- New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Guardianship Services

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Aqreement Provisions

. 1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1.

1.2.

Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date!Completlon of Services, is
amended as follows: .

3.1.

‘Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and

subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the

State of New Hampshire, this Agreement, and all obligations of the

parties hereunder, shall become effective on July 1, 2024 (‘Effective
Date”).

Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completuon of Services, is amended by deleting
subparagraph 3.3in its entirety and replacing it as follows

3.3. Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date specified

in block 1.7. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to one (1)

additional year from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding .
subparagraph 12.5 as follows:

12.5. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the

o,

Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Coniractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,

and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify-how carrective action shali be managed. "The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under .this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

Zu [oJ:] .
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Offcs of Public Guardan. " Page 1of 1 ' Date 5/22/2024

7.14.23



DotuSign Envelope ID; 6CF2C159-D5B8-4AA3-8BB0-05ADF6T63CD2

- New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services .

EXHIBITB - ’

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor must provide pubhc guardianship and protection services to
individuals who, because of functional limitations, have suffered, are suffering,
or are likely to suffer substantial harm due to an inability to:

1.1.1.

v - 1.1.2.

Providé personal needs for food, clothmg, shelter, health care or
safety: or

Manage their property or financial affairs. .

1.2. Scope of Work Applicable to all Guardianrship Services

-1.2.1.

1.2.2.

1.23..

1.2.4.

1.2.5.

1.2.6.

For the purposes of this Agreement, ward shall mean the individual
for whom guardianship of the individual and/or estate is appointed by
the New Hampshire Circuit Court - Probate Division. .

The Contractor must provide public guardianship and protection
services to persons at risk of harm to themselves, their estates or both

“the person and eéstate, for whom the State of New Hampshire has a

responsibility to safeguard pursuant to New Hampshire (NH) Revised
Statutes Annotated (RSA) 135-C:60, Guardianship; NH RSA 181-
F:52, Guardianship; and NH RSA 171-A:10, Remdentaal Servicés;
Legal Counsel and-Guardianship.

The Contractor must-provide public guardianship services to persons
in Section 1.2.2, statewide, in accordance with NH RSA 464-A,
Guardians and Conservators and NH RSA 547-B, Public
Guardianship and Protection Program, which include appointments
as guardian, conservator, or temporary guardian of the person and/or
estate of a ward.

The Contractor must providé protection services to persons in Section
1.2.2., statewide, that include actions necessaryto carry out the
duties as a duly designated representative or protective payae; client

representative; attorney-in-fact; or other similar agent, as prescribed

by applicable law, rule, or agreement.

The Contractor must provide™ services to individuals. only upon
receiving prior approval from the Department of Health and Human
Services (Department), Office of Client and Legal Services, for all -
Bureau of Mental Heallh Services or Bureau of Developmental
Services, or from the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services. Approval
shall specify whether the Contractor must provide -person
guardianship services, estate guardianship services, or both.

The Contractor must refer clients to the Disability Rights Center - NH,
the New Hampshire Legal Assistance, or other attoranien
SS

§5.-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-01 B B-2.0 Contractor Initials

Offica of Public Guardian
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New Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services ‘

EXHIBITB

i

127

1.28.°

referrals from the Department’s Office of Client and l.egal Services
for guardianship and protection services may be inappropriate, in
order that an administrative appeal, or other appropriate legal action,
can be taken on behalf of the client.

The Contractor must direct any. referrals for individuals made to the
Contractor for guardianship and protection services to the
Department's Office of Client and Legal Services when referrals are

" received from agencles that mclude but are not limited to:

1.2.7.1. Glencliff Home.
1.2.7.2. New Hampshire Hospital.

" 1,2.7.3.. Community agencies in the mental health system.
" %

1.2.7.4. Agencies in the developmental services system.
1.2.7.5. Agencies in the adult-and elderly system.

The Contractor shall not be reimbursed by the Department for-

services in the event the Contractor provides guardianship and
protection services to individuals who are not screened and approved

‘by the Department’s Office of Client and Legal Services or Bureau of
Elderly and Adult Services, unless the Contractor

circumstances not within the control of the Contractor
occurred and the Contractor made reasonable efforts to
decline the guardianship appomtments

.- 1.2.8.2. Includes documentation of the efforts made to dectme-

guardianship appointments with its monthly invoices; and

1.2‘.8.3 The State has responsibility to safeguard. the person
pursuant to RSA 135-C 60, RSA 171-A:10, I, and RSA 161—
F:562. /

‘The Contractor must provide guardiansh_ipand protection services to’

individuals as defined in Section 1.2.2., in accordance with the
“Standards of Practice” and “A Model Code of Ethics for Guardians”
developed by the National Guardianship Association:

'1.2.9.1. Notwithstanding the ethics and, standards for guardians

cited in Section 1.2.9., for monthly visits, the Contractor

must make quarterly face-to-face visits with the ward .or.

.. more frequent visits as required in individual circumstances,
. in accordance with Contractor's accepted practice.

) 1 .'2.9.2._ The Contractor must attempt to have a video conference, or

telephone contact if technology for a video conferenge-is not.
L ' ' ' (SS

55-2025-0BH-01-GUARD-01 . ) B-2.0 Contractor 1n|t|als v
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Guardlanshlp Services '

' _EXHIBIT B

1.2.10.

1.2.11.

1.2.12,

- 1.213,

1.214.

avaitable, with the ward in the instance the ward is out of the .
State of New Hampshire for more than six (6) months and it

would not be feasible for the Contractor to see the ward
face-to-face on the basis outlined in Section 1.2.9.1 above.

1.2.9.3. The Contractor may suspend face—to-face visits required by

Section 1.2.9.1,-until an alternative ptan can be developed

that maintains personal safety of all parties, if the ward

_exhibits unsafe behavior. or is in unsafe environmental or

public health conditions, or is aggressive to the point of
physical harm to the Contractor. . :

In any action brought in Circuit Court-Probate Division to limit or
otherwise reduce the scope of a guardianship. over an individual
served, the State shall appear with the Contractor where the State

agrees thatit is necessary to present the State's position on the action
: proposed

Notwuthstanding the guardianship services described herein, the
Contractor must not provide individuals with any direct services,
which include:

1.2.11.1. Psychotherapy; 0
1.2.11:2. Case management;
1.2.11.3. Transportation;

1.2.11.4. Financial aid; and

1.2.11.5. Other social services available through governmental or
nonprofit agencies.

The Contractor must work with the: Department's Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services (BEAS) Adult Protection Social Workers for an
agreed upon period, to be determined by the level of need following
a referral, to support the client's transition from protection services
provided by the State to guardianship services provided by the

Contractor. The Contractor agrees that the Department's Bureau of

Elderly and Adult Services Adult Protection Service Social Workers
shall retain the case management function of the clients during the
transition penod

.:ndependent decision-maker actmg ‘in a fducnary capaczty with

respect to the individuals served and the-decisions to be made on
behalf of individuals shall not be directed or influenced by the State.

The Contractor may provide guardianship and protection services to
individuals other than those{who are referced for services purEtto
)

i

$5-2025-0BH-01-GUARD-01 8-2.0 : Contractor Initials

Offica of Public Guardian

Page 3 of 12 5/22/2024

&



"

DocuSign Envelope ID: ecszc159iosas-4AA3-ssae-05AoF5753coz ' ‘

oF

New Hampsh:re Department of Health and Human Serwces
Guardianship Services B

"EXHIBIT B-

1.2.15.

1.2.,16.

1.2.17.

this Agreement ensuring:

1.2.14.1. Pursuant to NH RSA 547 B: 7, no funds provided under this
Agreement are expended for those persons; and

1.2. 14 2. Sufficient records, which are subject to the Department's

examination, are included and clearly document that the

. funds received under this Agreement are expended in
accordance with this Agreement.- -

‘The Contractor must agcept and investigate complaints from the

Department  regarding , services performed, including the
circumstances pertaining 'to the complaint, and ensure a written

response containing the results of the investigation is submitted to the*

Department no later than thirty (30) days from the date the complaint
is received by the Contractor.’

The Contractor must allow wards to participate in consumer
satisfaction surveys unless the Contractor provides written reasons to
the Department that state why a particular ward should. not be aIlowed
to participate, subject to Department approval.

The Contractor agrees that if the performance of services involves the

“collection, transmission, storage, or disposition of data on behalf of .

the Department including substance use disorder (SUD) data created
by a Part 2 provider, the Contractor shall malntaln the data subject to
the requirements stated in 45 CFR Part 2.

13, Guardianship Services.

1.3.1.

1.3.2.

1.3.38.

+ 1.3.4,

‘The Contractor agrees that the responsibilities referenced in Section,

1.3 are contingent upon the actual authority granted in each individual

court order specifying the extent and scope of guardlanshlp for each

individual ward. g

The Contractor must make decisions regarding the residential and
day placement of each ward by utrllzmg

1.3.2.1. The standards of least restrictive environment;" and
1.3.2.2. What s in the best interests of the individual ward.

The Contractor must ensure all legally necessary steps 'are-.taken fo
enable the individual ward to receive comprehensive:

1.3.3.1. Evaluations; and I
1.3.3.2. Treatment and services.

The Contractor must advocate for and request all necessary and
appropriate services to which the ward is entitled in accordance W|th

$5-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-01 B.2.0 Contractor Initials AT

Office of Public Guardian
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New Hampshire Department of.Health and Human Serwces
Guardianship Services

g EXHIBIT, B

mental health or developmental services agency;,

- 1.3.4.2. The ward's expressed - preferences or best - interests

1.3.5.

1.3.6.

1.3.7.

P

138,

1.3.9.

1.3.10.,

consistent with the Contrdétor's code of ethics and National
Guardlanshlp Association Standards of Practice; and

1.3.4.1. The ward's‘service and/or treatment plan developed by the

1.3.4.3. Established Department standards and State law, including

seeking alternative service providers.

The Contractor must be available to give or withhold consent to
proposed care, when legally necessary, which includes, but is not
limited to:

1.3.5.1. Medical care.
1.3.5.2. Professional care.
1.3.5.3. Counseling.

-1.3.54. Treatment.

1.3.5.5. Behaworal health services,
1.3.5.6. Changes to service andlor treatment plans

services.

The Contractor must ensure the ward's civil rights are protected within
the context of the decision-making on behalf of the ward, while
refraining from unwarranted intrusion into the life of the ward.

The Contractor must be available to make all decision as required by
RSA 464-A:26 and work collaboratively with the Department relative
to any of the ward's debts owed to the State of New Hampshire, it the
Contractor is guardian of the ward's estate.

. 1.3.5.7. Other clinically or legally significant ‘treatment plans or

#

The:Contractor must remain current of the facts or circumstances that

may impact the decisions to perform the functions specified in Section
1.3.

The Contractor mus} maintain appropriate-contact with each ward to
ensure servicesreflect the personal preferences values; and desires
of the ward to the fullest extent possible in order to make informed
decisions on behalf of the ward.

.The Contractor must obtain all avallab]e -information regarding the

“ward orthe ward’s situation In order to be fully aware-of all risks and

benefits of any proposed course of action, as welf as any alternatives

that may exist when making decisions on behalf of the ward. The

Contractor, in -addition to having required personal contact witksthe
) [ §S
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Semces
Guardianship Services

EXHIBIT B

ward, may:

1.3.10.1. Contact other important and sighiﬁcant people in the ward’s
life; '

J ’ 1.3.10.2. Interact with the ward's case manager; and

1.3.10.3. Interact with others who share responsibility for meeting the
needs of the ward.

8-

. 1.4.Guardianship and Protection Services

¥

- 1.4.1. The Contractor must accept all guardianship and protection services
cases referred by the Department's Office of Client and Legal
Services or Bureau of Elderty and Adult Services.

1:4.2. The Department must make every attempt to obtain a Release of
T Information from the proposed client for the Contractor, except where
prohibited from doing so by law.

1.4.3. The Contractor must be involved in the screening process for
protection cases, as appropriate, or refer the client to the Disability
Rights Center - NH, New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other
attorney in order that an ‘administrative appeal or other appropriate -
legal action can be taken on behalf of the client,

1.4.4. For persons referred to the Contractor by the Department's Office of
Client and Legal Services pursuant to NH RSA 136-C.60 and NHRSA |
o : - 171-A110 |1, the Contractor shall serve any current wards requiring
guardlanshlp services as of the effective date of this Agreement, as
well as any new persons referred for services, in accordance with
Section.1.4.1. above, for a total of up t6 800 cases dur:ng the contract
Gy ; perlod = v
1.4.5. The Contractor must receive letters of approval for each new case

assigned to the Contractar by the Department's Off ce of Client and
Legal Services. :

1.4.6. For persons referred to the Contractor by the Bureau of Eiderly and
Adult Services pursuant to NH RSA 161-F:52, the Contractor must =
provide guardianship services for no more than 50 persons at once.at
any point in time during the contract period.

1.5. Techmcal Assistance and Training

1.5.1. The Contractor may provide technical assistance to pnvate guardians _
on the duties of a guardian or training to staff that provide direct
services to wards who are clients of the Department, which includes:

1.5.1.1. Area agency staff; and

' " "1.5.1.2. Mental health staff. EL?S
§5-2025-DBM-01-GUARD-01 ‘B-2.0 g Contractor Initials
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o

1.5.2. The Contracter must provide the technical assistance or training
: * described in Section 1.5.1, upon approval by the Department’s Office
! of Client and Legal Services for specified number of training hours,
not to exceed 25 hours in total and technical assistance for a period
not to exceed six (6) months.

1.5.3. The Contractor may. provide technical ass:stance for up to ten (10} .

private guardians per year.
o © 1.6.Staffing

. 1
1.6.1. The Contractor must ensure staff providing guardianship - services .

- successfully complete a minimum of 20 hours of orientation training.
‘ 1.6.2. The Contractor must ensure staff providing guardianship services

o successfully complete a minimum of 10 hours of continuing

‘ education, annually.
1.7.  Background Checks . W,

1.7.1.- Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under thls

Agreement, the Conitractor must ensure that said individual has

undergone: _

1.7.1.1.  Acriminal background check, at the Contractor's expense, and
. has no convictioris for crimes that represént - evidence of

Agreement and
1.7.1.2.  Aname search of the Department s Bureau of Elderly and Adult
; Services, (BEAS) State Registry, pursuant to RSA 161-F:49, with
- results indicating no evidence of behavior that could endanger
individuals served under this Agreement. Confidential Data.

. 1.7.2. The Contractor must meet all information security and privecy

requirements as set by the Department and in accordance with the -

Department's’ . Information - Security Requirements Exhlblt as
referenced below.

1:7.3. The Contractor must ensure any individuals involved in delivering
i - services through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing
*a to access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance
with federal and state laws and regulations -and the Department's
" Information Security Requirements Exhibit. The Contractor must
ensure said individuals have a justifiable business need to access
confidential data. The Contractor must provnde attestations upon
: Department request. .

- 1.8. Privacy Impact Assessment

1.8.1. Upen request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Dep ent
in conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PIA) §S
$5-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-01 B20 Contractor Initals
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EXHIBIT B

system(s)/application(s)web  portal(s)/website(s) or ' Department
system(s)/application(s)/web portal{(s)iwebsite(s) hosted by the

Contractor, if Personally Identifiable Information (Pl}) is .collected,
used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor
must provide the Department access to applicable systems and
documentation sufficient to allow the Department to assess, at
minimum, the following:

1811,
1.8.1.2.
1.8.1.3.

S ‘ 1.8.1.4.

1.8.1.5,

1

How PIl is gathered and stared;
Who will have-access to PIl; .+~ X
How PII will be used in the system;

~-How individual consent will be achleved and revoked

and
Privacy practices.

1.8.2. The Department may conduct follow-up PlAs in the event there are
either significant process changes or new techno[ogles mpactmg the
collection, processmg or storage of PI. ;

1.9. Contract End-of-Llfe Transttlon Serwces

%

1.91. General Requirements

1941,

$5-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-01
Office of Public Guardian

If applicable, upon termlnatlon or expiration of the
Agreement the parties agree to cooperate in good faith to
effectuate a smooth secure transition of the Services from
the Contractor to the Department and, if applicable, the
Contractor engaged by the Department to assume the
Services previously performed by the Contractor for this
section the new Contractor shall be known as
“Recipient”). Ninety (90) days prior to the end-of the
contract or unless otherwise specified by the Department,
the Contractor.must begin working with the Department
and if applicable, the new Recipient to deveiop & Data
Transition Plan (DTP). The Departmeit shiall provide-the
DTP template to the Contractor.

The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the
Recipient, in coninection with the transition from the
performance of Services by the Contractor and its End
Users to the performance of such Services. This may
include assistance with the secure transfer of records

(electronic and Hard copy), transition of historical data

(electronic and hard copy), the transition of any such
Sefvice froni the hardware, software, nétwork .an
telecommunications equipment and  internef-rglat

8-2.0 ik Contractor Initlals M
03185/22/203
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information technology infrastructure (‘Internal |IT
Systems") of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems of the
Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any
-third-party consultants engaged by Recipient in
connection with the Transition Services.

1.9.1.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, andlor
' software licenses (Tools) was purchased or created to
manage, track, andfor store Department Data in
relationship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried
and retumed to the Department along with the inventory
document, once transition of Department Data is

complete. -

1.914. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the

- Contractor and its End Users shall be provided to the -

Department and if applicable the Recipient in a timely
e manner. Any such Transition Services shall be deemed
to be Services for purposes of this Agreement.

1.9.1.5.  Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the»
Agreement; the Contractor agrees that the Information
Security Requirements,  and if applicable, the
Department's Business Associate Agreement terms and
conditions remain in effect until the Data Transition is
accepted as complete lgy the Department.

1.8.1.6. In the event where the Contractor has comingled
Department Data and the destruction or Transition of said
746 data is not feasible, the Department and Contractor will
' jointly evaluate regulatory and professional standards for
retention’ requnrements prior to destruction, refer to the
terms and conditions of the Department's DHHS
Information Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.9.2. Completion of Transmon Services ‘ B
1.9.2.1.. Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed
completed (and the Transition process finalized) at the
end of 15 business days after the product, resulting from
the Service, is delivered to thé Department and/or the
s Recipient in accordance with the mutually agreed upon
. Transition plan,‘unless within said 15 business day term
the Contractor notifies the Departmént of an issue

requiring additional time to complete said product,

1.9.2.2. Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the

Al

$8-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-01 . " B2¢ © Contractor Infiials
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terms and conditions of the Department's Information
Security Requirements Exhibit.

1.9.3. Dlsagreement over Transition Services Results

1.9.3.1.  In the event the Department is not satisfied: with the
' results of the Transition Service, the Department shall
notify the Contractor, in writing, stating the reason for the

lack of satisfaction within 15 business days of the final

product or at any time during the data Transition process.

The Parties shall discuss the actions to be taken to .

resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is not
reached, at any time the Depariment shal! be entitled to
initiate actions in accordance with the Agreement.

.

2. Exhlblts Incorporated " "

2.1.

2.2,

2.3.

The Contractor must comply with all Exhibit D Federal Requirements, whlch
are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

The Contractor must manage all confi idential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit E, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

The Contractor must use. and disclose Protected Health informatlon in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Heaith
Information (Privacy Rute) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164} under the. Health

insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in.,

accordance with the attached Exhibit F, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties. :

3. Additional Terms ‘
3.4. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes.
3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or, federal
' legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the, right to modify Service prioritigs .
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement soas to achieve
compllance therewﬁh -
3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compiiance: Cuﬂturally and ngmstlcally -
Appropriate Programs and Services
3.2.1. The Contractor must submit, Wlthll‘l ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed descripnon of the communication access
= .and language assistance services-to. be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to mdlwduals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who-are deaf or havey f,,%‘ing
§5-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-01 B-20 Contraclor Initials X
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foss, individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
B have speech challenges. '
3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership '

©3.3.1. All documents, ‘notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, “The
preparation of this {report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the Staté of New Hampshire, Department of Health and’
- Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such'other funding sources as were available or

required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services.”

3.3.2. Al materials produced or purchased under the Agreement must have
prior approval from the. Department before printing, productuon
distribution or use. 4

'3.3.3. "The Department must retain capyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.3.31. Brochures.
3.3.3.2. Resource directories.

3.3.3.3.  Protocols or guidelines.
3.3.3.4. Posters. :
3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. . The Contractor must not repfodug:e any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

4. Records o
4.1. The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be malntamed in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expensés, and which are acceptable to the Department, and

to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original

: evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in- -kind contributions,

labor time cards, payrolis, and other records requested or requn‘ed by

the Department.
[ (5S
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4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department,the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant, to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

4.3, If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disallow"
" any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department
. retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as
. are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

¥ b
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Payment Terms

_ This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 6% Federal funds, Social Services Block Grant, as awarded on June 29
2023, by the DHHS-Administration for Children and Families, ALN
03.667, FAIN 2401NHSOSR '

. 1.2, 94% General funds. = F

For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has.identified:
2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

.2.2.  The Agreement as NON-R&Q, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

The Department shall pay the Contractor a per diem, per case rate for services.
provided in fulfillment of this Agreement in accordance with the per diem rates
as follows: PR

3.1. The per diem reimbursement rate for the provision of guardianship over

the person services or guardianship over the estate services; as

approved by the Office of Client and Legal Services for all Bureau of

- Mental Health Services or Bureau of Developmental Services wards,
-, shall be $9.91 per ward, per day, for up to 800 wards, as follows:

3.1.1. The per diem rate shall be $9.91 per ward per day for
guardianship over the person services.

3.1.2. The per diem. rate shall be $9.91 per ward per day for

guardianship over the estate services. ‘

3.1.3. In the instance when the Contractor is the guardlan over the

¥ person and guardian over the estate.of a ward, the Department

it

shall reimburse the Contractor for each service in accordance
with 3.1.1 and 3.1.2 above. *

3.1.4. The perdiem rate shall be $11.05 per ward per day for up & 24
of the wards for whom the Contractor serves as the
representative payee due to an area agency termination of
-serving as the representative payee. -

3.1.4.1. Within thirty (30} days of the contract effective date
the Contractor must provide the Department with a
list of the wards referenced above.

3.2. The hourly reimbursement rate for the proQision of training in Exhibit B

Section 1.5.1 shall be $60.00, not to exceed 25 hours for a total amount
of'$1,500.00.

3.3. The perdiem relmbursement rate for the provision of guardlanshlp over
the person services or guardianship' over the -estate sewﬁs
(S

\ §5-2025-0BH-01-GUARD-01 ‘ c-2.1 .. Contractor initials
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requested by the Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services shall be $9 91,
per ward, per day, for up to 50 wards, as follows: '

3.31. The per diem rate shall be $9.91 per ward per day- for
" guardianship over the person services.

3.3.2. The per diem rate shall be $9.91 per ward per day for
guardianship over the estate services.

3.3.3. In the instance when the Contractor is the guardian over the
person and guardian over the estate of a ward, the Department
shall reimburse the Contractor for each service in accordance
wnh 3.3.1 and 3.3.2 above.

34. Inthe event a ward dies or guardianship. services are terminated, the
Contractor shall be paid for services at the per diem rates specified
above through the last day of the month following the month in which the
death or termination of guardianship service occurred.

3.5. For wards referred for guardianship services by the Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services, the Department may reimburse the Contractor for
actual allowable expenses incurred by Contractor in the performance of .
Contractor's estate guardianship duties under this Agreement, including,
but not limited. to, filing fees, bend costs and appraisal fees where no
other source of relmbursement exists, not to exceed $3,574.50 in total
“annually. P ’

4, Payment to the Contractor for the provusuon of services approved by the
= Department's Office of Client and Legal Services shall be made on a monthly
basis subject to the following conditions:

4.1. The Contractor shall submit invoices on a monthly basis in accordance
with procedures and instructions established by the Office of Client and
Legal Services and provided to the Contractor.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit a list of wards served dunng the month with
the monthly inveice.

4.3. ‘The Department shall pay:the Cont;ra;ctor- in accordance with the per
diem rates identified in Section 3. -+

4.4. The Contractor may be compensated for time shent traveling. and
- appearing in the Circuit Court-Probate Division preced:ng appointment,
as follows:

444, The hourly raté of $60.00 shall be billed using a six (6) minute
unitby submitting a monthly invoice that details the actual time
- spent, H

¥ . 0 A
' Yo . J¥
h

» * e . bs s
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4.6.

4.7.

4.4.2. The maximum b'i_llable amount for each case preceding
appointment by the Circuit Court-Probate Division shall be $300
per-case.

The Contractor shall provide a copy of the court notice to thé Department
with the monthly invoice when the Contractor is appointed guardian over
the person and/or guardian over the estate and when the Contractor no
longer provides guardianship over the person and/or estate.

The Contractor shall review cases referred by the Office of Client and -
Legal Services on a manthly basis and transfer individuals to a different

funding mechanism, if possible, to allow more openings for additional .
referrals from the Office of Client and Legal Services.

The Contractor shall transfer the ward from the Office of Client-and Legal
Services funded slot within su(ty (60) days of alternate funding: becommg‘
available,

5.  Payment to the Contractor for the provision of services requested by the
Bureau of Elderly and Adult Services (BEAS) shall be made on a monthly basis
subject to the following conditions:

5.1.

5.3.

54.

5.5,

5:6.

The Contractor shall submit invoices on a monthly bas1s in accordance
with procedures and instructions established by the Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services and provided to the Contractor.

The Contractor shall submit a list of wards served during the month with

the monthly invoice.

The Departmént shall pay the Contractor in accordance with the per
diem rates identified in Section 3.

The Contractor shall provide a copy of the court notice to the Department
with the monthly invoice when the Contractor is appointed guardian ofa
person and/or guardian over the estate and when the Contractor no

‘Ionger provides guardianship over the person and/or the estate.
“The Contractor shall review cases on a monthly basis and transfer

individuals t6 a different funding mechanism, if possible, to allow more
openings for additional referrals from BEAS.

The Contractor shall transfer wards from a BEAS funded slot thhm sixty
(60) days of alternate funding becoming available.

6. .The Contractor shall seek reimbursement from other payer sources when
providing public guardianship and protection services as described in Section
1.2.4 of Exhibit B, Scope of Services. The Depaitment shall not reimburse for
services under this Agreement for protection services described in Section
1.2.4 of Exhibit B, Scope of Services,

o8
| A ‘ [23Y
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The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th} working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provuded The Contractor shall ensure

" each invoice: .

7.1, Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

7.2. s submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department. -

7.3. Identifi es and requests payment for services provided the previous
month. .

7.4. Includes supporting documentation with each invoice that may include,
but are not limited to time sheets, as applicable.

7.5. Is completed, dated and returned t6 the Department with the supporting
documentation, as applicable, to initiate payment.

7.6. s assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to.dhhs. dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services -
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of.each-invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date ‘specified in Form P-37, General Provisions BIock 1.7
Completion Date.

Notwuthstandmg ‘Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P- 37 changes
limited to' adjusting amounts within the price l[mltation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Govemcr and Executive Council, |f needed and
justified. - 5 i
Audits -

11.1. The Contractaor must email an annual audit to dhhs.ect@dhhs.nhlgovif
any of the following.conditions exist:

11.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,0004!or more in
* federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR(‘JISDar't
200, during the most recently compieted fiscal year. [ [SS

5/22/2024
ate -
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' 41.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subjec! to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, ili b, pertalmng to chantable
- organizations. .

11.1'.3 Condition C- The Contractor.is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulatlons to.
submit an annual financial audit.

11.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall-submit an annual Single Audit
o performed by. an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to
. dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the requirements
of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart’ F of the Uniform Administrative
‘Reqwrements Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
¢ awards. .

11.2.1. The Contractor shall submit_ a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor -
v shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
' implementation of the corrective action plan. '

11.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit-performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor’s fiscal year.

i

11.4. Any Contractor that receives an .amount equa! to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fiscat year, regardless of
- the funding soufce, may be required, at.a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Depariment's

- risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.”

11.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation .of obligations of the

. Agreement, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the

i . Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptlons

and shall retumn to the Department all payments made under the!

Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an-exception.

& k) } *
f(
Lo
5% . »
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§5-2026-DBH-01-GUARD-01 " a2t Contractor Initals L

. . - ne 5/22/2024
Office of Public Guandian Page 50f 5 Date
. A e

FE



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5CF2C159-D588-4AA3-8880-05ADFE763C02

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

LA

SECTION A: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to compiy with the provisions

of Secticns 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-680, Title V, Subtitie D; 41

U.8.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
s N 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

'ALTERNATIVE 1-FOR C:OKJTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION --CONTRACTORS
LIS DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS "
This certification is required by the regulations implementing Secticns 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-630, Title V; Subtitle D; 41 U.8.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31;
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part || of the May 25, 1990 Federal Reg1ster {pages
21681-21691), and require certification by contractors {and by inference, sub- contractors), prior to
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c} of the regulation provides that
a contractor {(and by inference, sub—contractors) thatis a State may elect to make one certification to the
Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each Agreerment during the federal fiscal
’ year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon
which reliance is placed when the agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner '

" NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street - s )
* Concord, NH 03301-6505 !
K 1. The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: '

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
workplace and spacifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an on‘going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace,
i 1.2.2. The Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug ¢ounseling, rehabllttat:on and employee assistance programs and .

1.2.4. The penalties that may be lmposed upon emp[oyees for drug abuse wolatlons occumng
in the workplace; -

) 1.3.Making it a reqmrement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
o .. Agreement be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); - P

1.4, Notlfylng the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the Agreement, the employée wil)

1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and

1.4.2. Nonfy the employer in writing of his or'her convnctlon for a violation of a cnm}naLgr_ug
« - statute oceurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after sug] geq,,_tchon

Ay

vt 6;’23 E_xhubﬂ D Contracior's Initials % .
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1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every contract
officer on whose contract activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal

. agency has designated.a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected Agreement;

~

1.6. Taking one of the folldwing actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respec! to any employee who is so convicted

1.8.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

. 1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate salisfacto‘rfly ina drug.abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved far such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
taw enforcement, or other appropriate agency;,

- 1.7.Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through impleméntation
ofparagraphs‘l 1,1.2,1.3, 1.4, 1.5,and 1.6

L3

% -

2. The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance Yof work done
in connection with the specific Agreement.

8

Place of Performance (étreel address, city, county, state, zip code) (fist each location) :
. [ *

. - Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

3¥ . %
t 3 .

i . 0 ‘
- £ 1
.v: - i
| \ ¢
.
v16/23 Exhibit D 'Contraclor’s Inma!s alink
Federal'Requirements Date 57 2272078

Page 2 of 10

. B
vl

TiE



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 6CF2C159-D5B8-4AA3-8BB0-0SADFETE3CD2 )

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

SEéTlON B; CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING '

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agreé? to comply with the provisions
of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying,
and Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.8.C. 1352), and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions-execute the following
Centification: ' .

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
1S DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS .
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicdble program covered):
*Tempdrary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX -
*Medicaid Program under Title XkEX - "
*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The unders'igne& certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and _b_elief. that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal conlract, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by
specific mention sub-contractor). | .- . -

2. [fany funds other than Federal agpropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence-an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with
this Fedéral contract, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention sub- contractor), the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lebbying,
in accordance with its instructions, 'see https:/fomb.report/icrf201009-0348-022/doc/20388401

3. Theundersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiess (including subtontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and
cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission-of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this fransaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file
the required certification shall be subject to a ¢ivil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure. :

"
- EY
" »
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- .SECTION C: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMERNT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER
- RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Generai Prowsmns agrees to comply with the provisions
of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 12689 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding

Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sectzons 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following

Certification:

Ean I e e

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION -

1.

N

By signing and submitting this Agreement, the prospectwe primary participant is prowdmg the

_certlf cation set out below

A

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily resull in
denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, thé prospective participant shall
submit an explanat:on of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation wil!

be considered in connection with the Ni Dapariment of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)

determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
pamclpant to furmsh a certification or an.explanation shall disqualify such person from partlmpat:on
in this transaction.”

The certification in this.clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction, If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or defaull,

The prospective primary padicipant-shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this Agreement is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous hy reason of changed
circumstances,

+
wh

-The terms covered transaction,” "debarred * “suspended,” ‘melag:ble " “lower tier covered

transaction,” “participant,” “person,” *primary covered transaction,” prlnc|pa! " “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out'in the Defi initions and
Coverage sections of the rules impiementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Peart 76. See
https:/iwww.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title45-vol 1/CFR-2004-titled45-vol1-pari76/context.
The prospective primary ;Sartlmpant -agrees by submitting this Agreement that, should the proposed
covered transaction be enteréd into, it shiall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded -
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorizedby DHHS. .

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause fitled “Cerlification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, ingligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -.
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, withaul modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all sclicitations for lower tier covered transactions, .

A participant in a covered tran'sactlon may rely"upon a certification of ‘a prospective participantin a
lower tier covgred transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows thal the certification is erronecus. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each '
pasticipant may, but is not required to; check the Nonprocurement List {of excluded parhes)

https. /fwww.ecfr. govlcurrenlltltle-22/chapter-V!parl—S'l 3.

7 U5 S
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5

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of

" records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a

covered transaction knowingly enters inlo a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, 'debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this :
transaction for cause or default. :

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS ‘ .

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its Knowledge and beligf, that it and its

principals: : : . ]

11.1.- Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, dectared ineligible, or

* voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal {(Agreement) been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or

© {ocal) transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
anfitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
. destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property, .

11.3.  Are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph

) (I)(b} of this certification; and '

11.4. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or morg
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

o

12, Where the pfospective primary pa}ticipant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

13.-By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (Agreement), the prospective lower tier .
" participarit, as defined in 45 CFR Part 78, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and

its principals: .‘ LT

13.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, o
voluntarily excluded from participalion in this transaction by any federal department or
agency.

13.2.  Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective patticipant shall attach an.explanation to this proposal {Agreement). - .

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (Agreement) that it
will include this clause entitted “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibitity, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transaclions,” without modification in al! lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

-
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. SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representatlve as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

The Contractor wili comply, and will require any subcontractors to comply, with any applicable federal -
requirements, which may include but are not fimited to: “

1. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Pnnmples and Audit Reqmremenls for Federal Awards
{2 CFR 200).

2. The Omnibus Crime Contro! and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U. S C. Sec’uon 3789d) which
prohibits r33|p|ents of federal fund:ng under thig statute from discriminating, either in'employment -
practices or in the delivery of services or benefits, on the-basis of race, color, religion, national
origin, and sex. The Act requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity
Plan;

. 3. The Juvenite Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 ?U.S.C. Section 5672(b}) which adopts. -
by reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under  ~
this statute are prohibited from discriminating, eithér in employment practlces or in.the delivery of

. services or benefits, on the basis of race, calor, religion, national origin, and Sex. Tha.Act includes
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan requirements, -

4. The Civil Rights Act of 1984 (42 U.S.C. Section 20004, which prohibits recup;ents of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the bams of race, coler, or national origin in any program or
aclivity);

5. The Rehabilitation. Act of 1973 {29 U.S.C, Sectlion 794), which prohlblts rec1paents of Federal
financial assistance from dlscnmmal:ng on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the
delivery of services or benefils, in any program or activity,

6. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1920 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34) which prohlblls
discrimination and ensures equat opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and °
local government services, public accommodations, commermal facilities, and transporlatlon

7. The Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Seclions 1681. 1683. 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs:

8. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6108-07), which prohibits discrimination on '
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. it dogs not include
.employment dlscnmlnatlon

9. 28C.F.R, pt. 31 (U.S, Depariment of Justice Regulations — OJJDP Grant Pragrams); 26-C. F R. pt.
42 (U.S. Department.of Justice Regulations — Nonidiscrimination; Equal Employment Dpportunity;
Policies and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based
and commitnily organizations); Executive Order No, 13559, which provide fundamental principtes
and policy-making criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood crganizations;

10. 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.8, Depariment of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for F aith-Based ’
Organizations), and Whistleblower protections 41 U.5.C. §4712 and The National Defense -

Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot -

Program for Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
gmployees against reprisal-for certaun whislle blowing activities in connection with federal grants
and contracts.

11. The CleanAir Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) which seeks to protect human health and the Sas N

enwronment from emissions that pollute ambient, or outdeor, air. o
W v16/23 Exhibit D Contraciors Initials =
Federal Reguirements Date 57 227 2023
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12. The Ciean Water Act {33 U.8.C. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulating L

discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United States and regulating quality standards for

surface waters.

13. Clwllan Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) {41
UJ.5.C..1908) which establishes administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where
contractors violate_or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as

appropriate,

4. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.5.C. 3701-3708) which establishes that all .
contracts awarded by the non-Federal enmy in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of
mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.8.C. 3702 and 3704, as ’

supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5).

15. Rights to'Inverntions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) which establishes
the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit
organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental,
developmental, or reséarch work under that *funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must
comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to inventions Made by Nonprofit -
Orgamzahons and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative
Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency,

T

. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance.is placed'when the R
agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for

debarment.

In the event a Federal or State court or Federai or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing‘on the grounds of race, color, religion, ‘national origin, or sex

suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements or government wide suspension or

agaiinst a recipient of furids, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights,
to the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services,
and to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the O_mbudsman,

< The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the'General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Confractor's representatlve as identifled in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, ta execute

the following certification:

1. By signing and subrmmng this Agreement the Contractor agrees to comply with'the provisions
indicated above.

it

£l
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"__SECTlON E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE
) Public Law 103-227. Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned orfeased .
or contracted for by an entity and used roltinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, ~
‘education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal <
“programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan
guarantee. The law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, tacilities funded
solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcchol
" treatment. Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may-result in the imposition of a civil
maonetary penalty of upto $1000 per-day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on
the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute
the following certification:

1. By sighing and submitting this Agreement, the Contrgctbr agrees to make reasonable effortsto 7
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act
of 1994. ' : L

'
oF

iR

di

.. . : ) | 5
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SECTION F: CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND

" TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE ]
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or
more. If the initial award is below $30,000 bul subsequent grant modifications result in a total award
equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of
the award, ,

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward-and Executive Compensation\l'nformation).
the Department of Health and Human Services. (DHIHS) must report the following information for any
sub award or contract award subject 1o the FFATA reporting. fequirements:

1. Name of entity

2. Amount‘bf award

3. Funding agency ' ’
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program numbef for granis

5. Program source

&

6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity

8. Principle place of performance . e ' S
9. Unique Entity Identifier (SAM UEJ; DUNS#)
10. Total compensatlon and names of the lop five executives 1f
10.1.  More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.
Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end.of the month, plus 30
days, in which-the award or award amendment is made, |

&

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of thie General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions

of The Federal Funding. Accountabmty and TranSparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252 and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporiing Subaward and Execulive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions-execute the following Cerification: .

The below named Contraclor agrees to provide'heeded information as-outlinéd above to the:NH
Department of Health.and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial: Acountability and Transparency Act.

. ¥

Al
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As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions‘,“l certify that the responses to the

below listed questions are true and accurate.
1.

2.

. NASCN2TSKB9S . . L
The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is: .

In your business or organization’s preceding compieted fiscal year, did your business or
organization receive (1) 80 percent or more-of your annual gross revenue in U.5, federal contracts,
subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-granis, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or
mare in:ahnual gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcantracts, loans, grants, subigrants,
and/or cooperative agreements? i

X ___NO . YES | Co

H3 -

If the answer to #2 above is NO: stop here B
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following: '

" Does the public have access to information about the compensatlon of the executives in your

business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15{d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.8.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867 . "

NO T __ = NYES

(f the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here . :
If the answer to #3 above is NO please answer the following:

The names and compensatlon of the five most hlghty ‘compensated officers in your business or .

organization are as-follows: o
Name: . Amount __°
Name: . Amount: )
. .
Name:. 7 ~ Amount;
o il
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount: i

L9 . ’ i

Contractor Name: NH 0ffice of Publi ¢, Guardian

;.s
*

DocuSignedby; *
5/22/2024 . ‘ USaerH Selsky wa.uu
Date: Name" BRTtt S015Ky Stevens !

¥ 4 . Title: CEQ
v16/23 7 ExhibitD Conitractor's fniials S
Hory - - T Federal Requirements Date: 57 22720“
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A Def nntuons
The followmg terms, may be reflected and have the descnbed meaning in thls document

1. “Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthonzed disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized acces$, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally, identifiable information,
‘whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health information, * Breach"

. - shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 .of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations:. 4

2., “Computer Security” Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
" Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U S. Department of

1o Commerce. . .

3. “Confidential Information” or “Confidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable information. =

Confidential Information' also includes any and all information owned or managed by
. the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and

Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services

~.of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state-or

federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to Protected

Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (P1}, Personal Financial Information
(PF!), Federal Tax Information (FT1), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
}_:‘-. Indusiry (PCI), and or.other sensitive and confidential information.

4. “End User" means any person of entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordancé with the terms-of this Contract.

v 5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance 'Portabilityﬁénd Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promuigated thereunder.

£ 8. ‘“Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy, ~
which includes attempts (either failed or-successful) to gain unauthorized access toa
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowiedge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss

: K 243
i J N B - {’SS e
o Contractor Inltials L;
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or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
- mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorlzed access,
R use dlsclosure, modification or destruction.

7. “Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is not
designated by the State of New Hampshire’s Department of Information Technology
. " or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the
’ State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and not adequately secure for
the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI, PHI or confidential DHHS data. .

8. “Personal Information” (or "PI"} means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name; social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA -359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other- persona! or identifying information whiich is linked

- or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mothers maiden
name, etc 5

9, . “Prwacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of lndlvndually dentifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R, Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services. .

o

-10. “Protected Health Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
\ definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 CFR. §
* 160. 103. )

e , 11. “Security Rule" shall mean the Secunty Standards for the Protection of Electronic
" Protected Health information @t 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto. s
!
12. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” meahs Protected Health information that is
-not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
uriusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unautharized individuals and is developed
of -endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the
American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR "‘*
A. Business Use and Discl;)sure of Confidential Information. o

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or - transmit Confidential Informatiofi
including but not limited to all its darectors off:cers employees and agents must not=
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Securlty Rule.

IS €
3R
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2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a request

for.disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena, etc.,
without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
the disclosure. ’

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional

restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule,; the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such. additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End

User must only be used pursuant to the térms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained. under this Contract may not be used for

any other purposes that aré-not indicated in this Contract.

8. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of

. DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with - the terms of this
Contract.

1. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSHMISSION OF DATA

1.

Application Encryption. if End User is transmitting-DHHS data contalnlng Conf dential
Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated .
by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said application’s encryption
capablhtues ensure secure transmission via the mternet A

Computer Disks and Portable Stoerage Devices. End User may not use computer d|sks

~or portable“storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS

£Evi

data.

Encrypted Email. End User may only emiploy email to transmit Confidential Data if email
is encrypted and being sent to and belng received by email addresses of persons
authorized to receive such information.

’Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmtt Conﬁdentlal Data, the

secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypls
data transmitted via a2 Web site.

File Hosting Services, also known as Flle Sharlng Sites. End Usermay rot use file hosting
services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit Conf:dentaal Data.

Ground -Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cen‘:f ed ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to @ named individual. | i

Laptops and PDA.If End User is employing portable devices to transmit Confidential Data
said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

- DS
' I (5§ -
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10.

L1

Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

" wireless network. End User-must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when remotely

transmitting via an open wireless network.

" Remote User Communication. If End User is employmg remote communication lo access

or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be installed on the End
User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be transmitted or accessed.

SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End
User.is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will structure the

‘Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. SFTP

folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-hour
auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be geleted every 24 hours).

Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all )

data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND 'DISPOSITION OFlIDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

* The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative .of the data for the duration of this -

Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise reqmred by law or perm:tted under
this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A

Al

Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data-collected in
connection with the services rendered under ‘this Contract .outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabllmes and ificludes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place
" to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for.its £nd
Users in support of protectirig Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to. retain all electroni¢ and hard copzes of Confldentlal Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A2 5

5. The Contractor agrees Confidentiai Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
-currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral,
antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The-environment, as
a whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection-and firewall protection.

- ‘l‘n .. } ns
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8. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
_ Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerabﬂ:ty of the hostmg .
infrastructure. .

B. Disposition _i
" 4. Ifthe Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information -on its systems (or its sub-
contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and- will abtain written
certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or
-any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of New.
. Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in
o accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or-otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media
"Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S. Department of
Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at time of the data
* : destruction, and will provide writlen certification to the ‘Department upon request.
" The written cedification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data has
. been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
; " professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the
State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thlrty {30) days of the termmatlon of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confi dential Data using a secure
method such as shredding.

3. ‘Unless otherwise spemﬁed within thirty (30) days of the termlnahon of this Contract a
Contractor agrees fo completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by means
of data erasure, a&so known as secure data wiping. .

“ . V. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to -safeguard the DHHS Data recéived under this Contract, and ‘any.
derivative data or files, as follows:

-

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confi dentlal
information collected; processed, managed, and/or slored in the delivery of contracted
services, v &

2. The Contractor will maintain pollaes and procedures to protect Department confidential

I information throughout the information ‘lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation,
w transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the medta used to
- store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, efc.). e

;‘ E l LSS
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wor

The Contractor will maintain appro’priaté .authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable. .

The Contractor will ensure proper sedurity monitoring capabiliﬁes are in place to detect
potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential information for contractor provided systems.

The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for |ts End Users
in support of protectmg Department confi denttal information. &

If the Contractor will be sub-conlracting anyr core functions ‘of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match these for
the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

¥l

-

- The -Contractor will work with- the: Department to sign and comply with all applicable

State of New Hampshire and Department system access and‘authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access:to any Department system(s). Agreements will be comp!eted

- and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prlor to system access

¢ 10.

" member within the Department.”’

~n.

being authorized. i

if the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Asscociate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with- the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the

!_agreement.

The Contractor will'work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks,-threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be' completed
annually, or an alternate time frameé at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when-the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unléss prior
express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Offtoe leadership

oo

Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make
efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to prevent

% ’ ts ) kL & : B ns
: s
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1.

future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the
breach. :

12, Contractor must, comply with all apphcable statutes and regulations regarding the

privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects maintain

the privacy and security of Pl and PH! at a level and scope that is notTess than the level

" and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but not limited to,

1. provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy Act Regulations

(45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that

. govern protections for individually identifiable health information and as applicable
under State law. '

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized 'use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope of
security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at hitps./fwww.nh.govidoit/vendorfindex.itm for the
Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement mformatlon relating to vendors. ’

14, Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notn‘" cation and incident response°
“process. The Contractor will notify the State’s Privacy Officer and the State’ s Security
Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section
VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems. that
connect to the State of New Hampshlre network.

15. Contractor must restrict acéess to the Confidential Data obtained under this Contract
to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform their official
duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

18. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IVA. above implemented
to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS under this Contract
from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.
c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
" PF[ are encrypted and password-protected.

LE
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send emails containing Confidentiat Information only if encrypted and being sent
to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive such -
information.

limit disclosure of the Conﬁdential lnformation to the extent permittéd by law.
Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually identifiable

‘data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an -area that is physically and

technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as non=duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys, biometric identifiers, etc.).

only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section IV above.

in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and disclosed
using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based assessment of the
circumstances involved.

understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure,
This applies to credentials used to access the sute dlrectly or mdtrectly through a
third party application.

. Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users DHHSE
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
mcludmg the privacy -and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, and other
applicable faws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed

' of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any Security
[ncidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section VI

The Contractor must fuﬂher handle and report Incidents and- Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

"1, Identify Incidents; e
2. Determing if personally identifiable information is involved in |nc;|dents

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;

- V5, Last update 10100118
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4. ldentify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents and
determine risk:based responses to Incidents; and -

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate Breach
notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different options, and
bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation measures.

Incidents andfor Breaches that implicate P1 must be addressed and reported, as applicable, |
- in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. .

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Cfficer:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov B.
b DHHS Security Officer:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov 2

a

DS,
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The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement (Form P-37)
(“Agreement™), and any of its agents who receive use or have access to protected health
information (PHI), as defined herein, shall be referred to as the “Business Associate.” The State

- of New Hampshire, Depariment of Health and Human Services, "Department” shall be referred
to as the “Covered Entity,” The Contractor and the Department are collectively referred to as “the
parties,” . '

The parties agree, to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public
Law 104-191, the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually ldentifiable .Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, .and 164 (HIPAA), provisions.of the HITECH Act, Title X!II,
Subtitle D, Parls 1&2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, 42 USC 17934,
et sec., applicable to business associates, and as applicable, to be bound by the, provisions of
the Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 USC s. 280 dd-2, 42 CFR Part
2, (Part 2), as any of these laws and regulations may be amended from time to time.

(1) - Definitions . -

a.  The following terms shall have the same meaning as defined in HIPAA, the HITECH
Act, and Part 2, as they may be amended from time to time:

L “Breach," “Designated Record Set,” “Data Aggregation,” Desighated Record
Set” "Health Care Opefations,” “HITECH Act,” “Individual,” “Privacy Rule,”
"Required by law,” “Security Rule,” and "Secretary.”

b. Business Associate Agreement, (BAA) means the Business Associate Agreement
that includes privacy and confidentiality requirements of the Business Associale
working with PHI and as applicable; Part 2 record(s) on behalf of the Covered Entity
under the Agreement. ' .

c. . "Constructively Identifiable,” means there is a reasonable basis to believe that the
information could be used, alone or.in combination with other reasonably available
information, by an anticipated recipient to identify an individual who is a subject of
the information. e ’ ‘

d. ‘“Protected Health Information” (“PHI") as used in the Agreement and the BAA,
means protected health information defined in HIPAA 45 CFR 160.103, limited to
§ the information created, received, or used by Business Associate from or on.behalf .
of Covered Entity, and includes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below.

e, “Part 2 record” means any patient “Record,” relating to a “Patient,” and “Patient
Identifying tnformation,” as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11.

A “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that
’ is not secured by a techndlogy standard that renders protected health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized .individuats. and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited
by the American National Standards Institute. ' S

. (2 Business'Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information -
a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintaih, store, or transmit Protected

Health Information (PH1) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services
outlined under the Agreement. Further, Business Assaciate, including but-est

Exhiblt F
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limited to all its directors, officers, employees, and agents, shall protect any PHI as

- required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part 2, and not use, disclose, maintain, store, or
transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR
Part 2.

h. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI, as applicable: ]
{. Forthe proper manégement and administration of the Business Associate;
Ii. As required by Iaw according to the terms set forth in paragraph c. and d. below;
lll. According to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard;

¢ " IV. For data aggregation purposes for the health care opera'{ions of the Covered'
Entity; and

V. Data that is de-identified or aggregated and remains constructively identifiable
may not be used for any purpose outside the performance of the Agreement.

¢.  Tothe extent Business Associate is permitted under the BAA or the Agreement to
" disclose PHI to any third party or subcontractor prior to making any disclosure, the
; Business Associate must obtain, a business associate agreement or other
. < agreement with the third party or subcontractor, that complies- with HIPAA and
ensures that all requirements and restrictions placed on the Business Associate as
part of this BAA with the Covered Entity, are included in those business associate

agreements with the third party or subcontractor

d The Busmess Associate shall not, dasc!ose any PHI in response to a request or
~demand for disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis that it

is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can . ~
determine hiow to best protect the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure,
the Business Associate agrees to refrain from disclosing the -PHI and shall
cooperate with the Covered Entity in any effort the Covered Entity undertakes to

contest the request for disclosure, subpoena, or other legal process. If applicable *
. relating to Part 2 records, the Business Associate shaII resist any efforts to access
part 2 records in any judicial proceedmg

{3) Obligations gng Activities of Business Associate A

a. Business Associate shall implement appropriate safeguards to prevent
_ unauthorized use or disclosure of all PHI in accordance with HIFAA Privacy Rule
and Security Rule with regard to electronic PHI, and Part 2, as applicable.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately notify the Covered Enfity's Privacy
Officer at the following -email address, DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov ‘after the
Business Associate has determined that any use or disclosure not provided for by
its contract, including any known or suspected prwacy or security incident or breach.
has occurred potentially exposing or compromising the PHI, This includes
inadvertent or accidental uses or dlsclosures or breaches of unsecured protected
health information.

¢. Inthe event of abreach, the Business Associate shall comply with the terms of this
Business Associate Agreement, all applicable state and federal laws and
regulations and any additional requirements of the Agreement.

. d.. The Business Associate shall perform a risk assessment, based on the information
available at the time it becomes aware of any known or suspected pnv&
. . (/S
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security breach as described above and communicate the risk assessment to the
Covered Entity. The risk assessment shall include, but not be limited to:

1. The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;: :

iIl. The unauthorized person who accessed, used, disclosed, or received the
protected health information; ) :

' 1Hl.. Whether the protected héalth information was actually acquired or viewed; and

IV. How the risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health information
hasbeen mitigated. . - ’

e. The Business Assdciate shall complete a risk assessment report at the conclusion
of its incident or breach investigation and provide the findings in a written report to
the Covered Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the Business
Associate’s investigation. ’

f  Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures,
books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or
created or received- by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the
US Secretary of Health and Human Services for purposes of determining the
Business Associate’s and the Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the
Privacy and Security Rule, and Part 2, if applicable.

g.  Business Associate shall require ali of its business associates that receive, use or
have. access ta PH! under the BAA to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein.

h.  Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices
all records, books, -agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and
disclosure of PHI to the Cavered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to
determine Business Associate’'s compliance with the terms of the BAA and the
Agreement. .

i. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
: Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in.a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, of as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet

the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
an amendment of PHI. or a record about an individual contained in a Designated
Record Sel, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered
Entity for amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered
Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 184.526.

, k, Business Associate shall document any disclosures of PHI and informatian related
S to any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to-a request
by an individual for an-accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR

Section 164.528.

I Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written reqlest from Covered Entity for
_a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business-Associate shall make
available to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill

its obligations to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to Hr ki n:

’ Exhiblt F o
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accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

In the event any individual requests.access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within five (5)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Enlity shall have
the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business
Associate shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law
and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practlcabfe

Within thirty (30) business days of termination of the Agreement for any reason,
the Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all
PHI received from or created or received by the Business Associate in connection
with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHl inany ”
form or platform.

V1. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, or if retention is governed by state
or federal taw, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections
of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such
PHI to those purposes that make the retum or destruction infeasible for'as
long as the Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in'its
sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI,
the Business Associate shall.certify to Covered Entity that the PH! has been

- destroyed. )

N

(4y  Qbligations of Covered Entity

a.

Covered Entity shall post a current version of the Notice of the anacy Practices
on the Covered Entity's website: &

https://www.dhhs.nh. govlooslmpaalpubllcat:ons htm in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.520.

Covered Entity shall promptly nofify Business Associate of any changes in, or

revocation of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may
be used or disclosed by Business Associate under this BAA, pursuant to 45 CFR

‘Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508. i

Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the
use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to:in accordance with 45
CFR 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI. '

(5)  Iermination of Aqreement for Cause

In addition to the General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement, the Covered Entity
may immediately terminate the Agreement upen Covered Entity’s knowledge of a
material breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate Agreement. The

Covered Entity may either immediately terminate the Agreement ot provide an -
opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe

specified by Covered Entity.

(6)  Miscellaneous

a.

Exhibit F —
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herein, shall refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time to time. A
reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Business Associate
Agreement, to a Section in HIPAA or 42 Part 2, means the Section as in effect of
as amended. ’

. b. Change in law - Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action
- as is necessary from time to time for the Covered Entity and/or Business Associate
to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, 42 CFR Part 2 other
applicable federal and state law. : - :

c. Data Ownership- The Business Associate acknowiedges that it has no ownership
rights with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. |Interpretation - The parties agree ‘that any-ambiguity in the BAA and the
* Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered Entity and the Business Associate -
to comply with HIPAA and 42 CFR Part 2. ‘ C

e. Segregation- If any term or condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance.is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect.other terms
or conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this
end the terms and conditions of this BAA are declared severable.

f  Survival - Provisions in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PH, return’
or destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the BAA in section (3) g. and
{3) n.l., and the defense and indemnification provisions of the General Provisions
(P-37) of the Agreement, shall survive the termination of the BAA. :

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ’fhg parties hereto have duly executed this Business Associate ;

) Agreement,
” Department of Heaith and Human Services- ~ NH office of public Guardian
The State Name of the Contractor / o

DocuSigned by: OocuSignd by:
["‘i“u";ii‘: MSM Stus -

Signature of Ahthor_ized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

. Katja S. Fox % . Lisabritt solsky Stevens ..
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
1 e .
Director GEO . o
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative .
5/23/2024 - 5/22/2024

Date Date f ps
Exhibit F : (SS
: Contractor Inifiats,

Business Assodiale Agreement

L Page 5 of § | 5/22/2024
V20 Dale _______

~F,
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Guardianship Services contract is by and between the State of New Hampshire,
Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. (Tri-County CAP) ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract®) approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 12, 2024 (item #25), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Govemnor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows: '

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
June 30, 2026
2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:
$1,398,964 '
3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms; Section 1, to read:
1. This Agreement is funded by: '
1.1.  100% General Funds

BbS
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. jﬂ
{Tri-County CAP) A-813 Contractor Initials
$5-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-02-A01 Page 1 of 3 Date 6/2/2025

v7.12.23 -
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2025, upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,
&

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

' Signed by:
6/2,/2025 Eﬂa oy

AF3
Date Name: Kaja Fox

Title: Director

Tri-Gounty Community Action Program, Inc.
(Tri-County CAP)

DocuSigned by:

6/2/2025 Sannn Kolillard
Date Name: 3 edar.‘lflrr-lmewaRsob‘i 1Tard
- Title: CEo

v

Tri-County Community Actien Program, Inc.

(Tri-County CAP) A-8-13
$5-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-02-A01 Page 2 of 3
v.7.12.23 :
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSigned by:
6/2/2025 %Hm Humvino
Date Name: Robyn Guarino
Title:  attorney

| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Exécutive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date . Name:
Title:

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

{Tri-County CAP) A-5-13
$5-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-02-A01 Page 3 of 3
v.7.12.23
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State -

. CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that TRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY
ACTION PROGRAM, INC. (TRI-COUNTY CAP) is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in
New Hampshire on May 18, 1965. T further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have

been received and s in good standing as [ar as this oflice is concerned.,

b

Business ID: 63020
Certificate Number: 0007142560

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I herefo set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 1st day of Apnl A.D. 2025.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, %‘(\6‘\)\ Q\D\(\'? Oy , hereﬁy certi;‘y that:

(Nam?fof the elecied Officer of the Corporaticn/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of _Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.(Tri-County

CAP) . -
{(Corporation/LLC Namie)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on 5 [ ] z . 2og% , at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.
ate) .

VOTED: That Jeanne Robillard, Randall Pilotte, Brenda Gagne {may list more than one person)
: {Name and Title of Coniract Signatory) ’ ‘ ‘

is duly authorized on behalf of Tri-County Community Action Program, INC. to enter into contracts or agreements

with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its. agencies or departments and further is authorized' to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This autharity remains valid for
thirty (30} days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it is understood that the Siate of
New Hampshire will rely on this cerfificate as evidence that the person(s) fisted above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corpoaration. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,

- all such limitations are expressly stated herein. ,
Dated: 25 E}% l‘a@-s ' QW’DVL/{«{A m}’z}g/

Signaturé of Electgd/Officer
Name: Sandy AlorZo
Title:

Rev. 03/24/20
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P |
ACORD'
—

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MMDT/YYYY)
(512712025

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS iSSUED AS A MAﬁER OF INFGRMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
1f SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lléy of such endorsement{s).

PRODUCER SONIACT Lindsey Goodrish
Cross Insurance-Manchester THONE cay (B03)669-3218 TR wop; (603) 645-4331
11690 Eim Street el e, manch.certs@rossagency.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Manchester NH 03101 INsUreERA: Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 16058
INSURED iNsurerg: Oranile State Health Care and Human Services Seif-
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. {Tri-County CAP) INSURER C : ‘
INSURER D :
30 Exchange Strest INSURERE {
Benin NH 03570 NSURERF ¢
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  24-26 All/25-26 NHWC REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANGE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED: NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MaY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLIGIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

[TNZR ADDL

POLICY EFF POLICY EXF

LI TYPE OF HSURANCE HSD (D [ POLICY NUMBER MMIDDIYYYY) | (MMIDDIYYYY) UMITS
M| COMMERTIAL GENERAL LIABILITY : EACH GCCURRENGE g 1000000
I CLAIMS-MADE E GCCUR PREMGSES (Ea ooourance) | § 00,000
| ' MEQ EXP fAny ane persony | 3 5:000
AT PHPKZ571941 070112024 | OTH0%/2025 | peneona s apvigury | 5 1000000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: | GENERAL AGGREGATE ¢ 3,000,000
MXeover [ %% [ ]oc PRODUCTS - coMPicpaga | 5 $000.000
OTHER; — ¥
COMBINED STNGLE LIMIT
| AUTOMOBILE LiaBILITY & ancldenl)?i GLE s 1,000,000
DAY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Par parsan} | $
T [OWNED SCHEDULED j ‘
A || Auros oney anes PHPK2571943 072024 | OTI01/2025 BODIL‘S'INJURY[PH accidens) | §
HIRED NON-OWNED PROFERTY DAMAGE 5
|__{ AuTas oney AUTOS ONLY | Per acridant)
3
UMBRELLALIAB | 3¢ pecur . EACH DCCURRENCE g 2400,000
A | 3¢| excess e CLAMS-MADE PHUBAT0544 0710142024 | 07/01/2025 §,oor e : ¢ 2.000,000
pep | | rerenmion 510,000 y s
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER CTre
AND EMALOYERS' LIABILITY )(§ BTATUTE g ER S50
B | R TERPARTNEREXECUTIVE NIA RO189ZHCHS2025-01 (32 )NH | G1/01/2025 | 011012026 |k EACHACCIDENT g
{Mandatory in NHj . L. DISEASE -EA EMPLOYEE 1 5 000,000
if yes, describe under 1.000.000
DESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS below EL. DISEASE -POLICYLIMIT [§ 1oV

Rafer to poiey for exclusionary endorsemanis and speaai provisions.

DESCR!PT]GH GF GPERATICNS / LOCATIONS / VEKICLES {ACORD 131 Addiional Remarks Schigdide, may be attached i maras space is roguired)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Contracts & Procurement
DHHS - Stale of NH
129 Pieasant Sireet

Concord NH 03301

SHOULD ANY GF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFQRE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

-| AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Aot o feonaa s>

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

© 1988-20115 ACORD CORPORATION. Afl rights reserved.

€
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MISSION STATEMENT - TRI"COUNTY |
“Tri-County Community Action Program N b CO MM U N [TY ACTI O N

provides opportunities to strengthen
communities by improving the lives of ;
jow to moderate income families and
individuals. ‘

-

 VISION STATEMENT

Individuals and families are empowered
to create vibrant communities and
foster self-sufficiency.

VALUES STATEMENT

Tri-County Community Action Program,
values a culture of integrity.

This Includes: -

1, Transparency in all our interactions
and communications, stressing
accountability to ourselves as an
organization and to those we serve.

2. Connectioh to community. We value
our community partners and work
to build strong partnerships that
unite us.all in the common goal of -
improving the lives of others. .

3. Recognition of our mutual humanity.
We treat customers, co-warkers
and colleagues with compassion,
fairness, dignity and respect,

-4, We value the empowerment of
those who seek our services,
believing that empowerment leads
to improved self-worth and enables
those we serve to fully participate in
their communities and share their
sticcess with others,

m.m;;,ue_ ;ﬂ;@:ﬁm 36 Exchange $t.Berlin, NH 03576
PIMMIBYY  phone: (03) 752-7001

(1 1] 1)1 RS

PARTNERSHIP
wwwitccap.org
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on the Audit of the Flinahcial Statemenis
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. and Affiliate (New Hampshire nonprofit organizations), which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the related consolidated statements of
functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, the related statement of activities for the
year-ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate as of June 30, 2024, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements refating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there
are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate’s ahility to continue as a going concern within one year
after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance ‘about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
-assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an -audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made
by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

in performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit praocedures responsive to those
risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

- procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate’s
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
.. accounting.estimates.made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

» Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliate’s
ability to continue as a going concemn for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.



Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as
a whole. The accompanying schedule.of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code
of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Frinciples, and Audit
Requirernerits for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required
part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 13,
2024, on our consideration of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.’s internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and Affiliates’ 2023 financial
statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our
report dated November 13, 2023. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented

herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, is consistent, in all material respects, with the
audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

iﬂm/;&.Dmmuﬁt’,a MM&
PWWMML

North Coﬁway, New Hampshire
November 13, 2024



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANC!AL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

ASSETS -
2024 ) 2023
CURRENT ASSETS
‘Cash and cash equivalents $ 4658626 $ 4400730
Restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program ) 1,026,499 1,313,655
Accounts receivable 2,044,392 2,024,546
Pledges receivable 284 892 192,212,
inventories . 102,774 123,409
Prepaid expenses ‘ 179.803 138,888
Total current assets 8,296,986 8,193,440
PROPERTY '
Property and equipment 12,631,168 12,858,931
Less accumulated depreciation (6,994,869) (6,522 499)
Property, net ! 5,836,299 62336,432
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Right of use asset, operating ) 123,817 . 208,857
Restricted cash 449,389 : 413,721
Total noncurrent assets ' 573,206 622,578
TOTAL ASSETS ‘ . § 14706491 $ 15152450
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of long term debt .5 135,315 $ 139,961
Current portion of right of use liability, operating 59,260 86,219
Accounts payable . 273,732 456,444
Accrued compensated absences ) 227.225 249,777
Accrued salaries ‘ . 89,051 90,948
" Accrued expenses 106,809 95,772
Refundable advances 85,188 403,239
Other liabilities 1,135,480 1,342 462
Total cusrent liabilities ‘ 2,112,960 2,864,822
NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Right of use fability, cperating, less current portion 64,557 122,638
Long term debt, net of current portion 4,108,684 4,298,550
Total liabilities ' 6,286,201 7,284,010
NET ASSETS ‘
Without donorrestrictions 8,074,913 7,577,645
With donor restrictions ’ 345:377 280,795
Total net assets . 8,420,280 ' 7,868,440
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 7 $ 14,706 491 $ 15,152,450

-
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4



FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

Without Donor With Donor 2024 2023
Restrictions Restrictions Tota| Total
REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT .
Grants and centracts $ 17,113,827 $ 263,021 $ 17,376,848 $ 39,804,023
Pragram funding 1,054,639 - 1,054,639 1,131,923
Utility programs 1,680,558 - 1,680,558 1,458,145
In-kind contributions 422 563 - 422,563 479,251
Contributions 354,046 - 354,046 252,119
Fundraising $ 32,778 - 32,778 23,626
Rental income . . ] 889,403 - 869,403 867,061
interest income 79,025 - 79,025 26,196
Gain on disposal of propérty , 800 G ' 800 6,817
Other revenue 1,708 - 1,708 . 2,735
-Total revenues and other support 21,629,347 263,021 '21,892,368 44 052,796
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS 208,439_ (208.439) - - -
Total revenues, other support, and
net assets released from restrictions 21,837,788 54,582 21,892 368 44,052 796
FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Program Services:
Agency Fund 1,295,519 - 1,295,519 1,314,337
Head Start 3,471,577 - 3,171,577 3,107,886
Guardianship ) 601,621 - 601,621 651,255
Transportation 1,810,631 - 1,810,631 1,404,213
Volunteer 72,341 - 72,341 72,150
Carroli County Dental 585,935 - 585,935 878,379
Homeless ' 1,151,632 - 1,181,632 - 20,422,871
Energy and Community Development 9,943,891 - 9,943,891 13,099,599
Elder 1,287,154 - 1,287,154 1,276,827
Housing Services : 212242 - 212,242 212 979
Total program services 20,132,543 . - 20,132,543 42 241,496
Supporting Activities:
General and admiristrative 1,204,546 . - 1,204 546 1,236,580
Fundraising ‘ 3428 - 3,429 3,315
Total supporting activities 1,207,975 - : 1,207,975 1,239,895
Total functional expenses " 21,340,518 - 21,340,518 43,481,391
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 497 268 54,582 551,850 571,405
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 7,577,845 280,785 7,868 440 7,297,035
NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $ 8,074,013 3 345,377 $ 8,420,280 $ 7,868,440

See Notes_to Consolidated Financial Statements

5



CONSCLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Energy and
Carroll County Cammunity Houslng General and
Agency Fund Head Start Guardianship Transportation  Volunteer Dental Homeless Development Eider Services Total Administrative  Fupdralsing Total

Direct Expenses . .
Payroil $ 353307 § 1716764 3§ 338,354 3  6BBO0E7 B 46912 261584 5 362333 B 1484816 5 562713 § SB0S6 § 5508926 5 S5BD2M4 5 - % 6,459,220
Fayroll taxes and henefils . 54,347 451,078 90,021 129,016 11,544 58,754 97,532 389,283 JiDG,'I?4 - 1.408.646 334,843 - i,543,439
Assistance to clients - N - 589,597 - - 473.808 £,664,095 - - 7,747,501 - - 7,747.501
Censumable supplies 7.083 195,969 7,904 8,982 ara ar7.999 14,267 £14,916 310,482 807 1098787 28,194 - 1,126,981
Space costs and rentals « 2,575 243,768 44,948 8102 6,003 - 94,093 213,546 66,953 - £80.938 98,610 - 779,598
Depreciation expense 203,322 40,474 7,630 102,254 - 26,982 24,712 41,321 5,180 57,369 529,444 - - 520,444
In-kind expended - 216,662 - 55778 2,180 - - - 147 065 - 422563 - - 422,563
Consuliants and contraciors 50,692 20,159 3,040 29,600 688 138,596 24.0%9 358,410 9.062 - 645,348 139,864 - 785210
Utifities 175,497 31,490 28,022 . 15425 4,778 14,763 31,848 47,311 28,112 25,848 397,893 12,844 - 410;437
Travel and mestings 13,450 129,048 £,683 476862 79 12,238 7.142 18,817 18,830 495 258,034 27,287 - 285321
Other direct program costs 61,007 38.716 2,053 13,556 203 703 4,012 24,638 7,044 35,108 185,538 65.624 3,429 254,581
Fisealond administrative 32,807 100 8829 1424 164 8408 3,175 33.847 1,378 2310 92,532 86,720 . 179,252
Building and grounds maintenance 150,839 34.515 80 5848 - 7.369 3.838 4,043 < 4709 10393 219,462 - - - 219,462
Interest éxpense 79,312 | 852 2,482 382 - 78 25 4,804 328 - 85270 - - 85,270
Vehicle expense 8,119 - - 124,827 - - 98 88,021, - - 220,765 - - 220,785
[nsurance 65,884 10.48% 97 3,613 1,598 3,540 10.144 §,985 - 3859 105,881 37,551 - 143,432
Maintenance of equipmant and rental 12,350 42,704 6.596 8971 236 4,844 606 21210 16,538 8,969 121,025 12,431 - 133,456
Fixed fees 4,838 - 75 39 - 2,037 - 1,348 SB05 - 13,942 $84 - 14,526

Tora! Direct Expenses 1,295.519 3171677 601,621 1810651 72,341 535035 1,151,632 9.543.891 1.287.154 212,242 20132543 1,104,548 5429 21,340,518
indirect Expenses .
Indirect costs 130,828 305.710 63,254 1ir 621 7.218 61486 64,809 334,750 118,850 - 1,204,548 {1,204 546) - -

Tolal Direct & Indirect axp $ 1426347 § 3477287 % 664,875 § 1928252 § 79558 3 6847401 § 1.216451 5 10278681 § 1408004 § 212242 5 21337089 § - 3 3420 S 21,340518

Seo Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 39, 2023

Energy and
Carrell County Community Housing General and
Agency Fund Head Start Guardlanship Transportation  Velunteer Dental Homeless Development Elder -Sefvices TIotal Administrative  Fundraising Total

Direct Expensas “
Payroll $ 328177 ¢ 1644947 § 424637 % 880480 & 44947 422973 $ '(5?.355 $ 1380748 & 584,883 % 58045 § 62090893 § 60884z 3 ~ 5 6,908,735
Payroll taxes and benefits 99,401 449,995 109,489 133,770 11,318 97,590 98,734 382,084 116,814 - 1,590,885 149,438 - 1,749,333
Assistance to clients 175 - - 207677 - - 18,562,958 10.442.285 - - 29613593 - - 23,613,593
Consumabla supplies 7,038 218,956 6,879 8,279 358 65,076 33,428 431,354 321062 . 1,396 1.083.724 25,899 - 1,109,623
Space costs and rentals 12,648 223,207 46,839 21512 6,478 - 59,995 150,500 72,300 - 633477 130,652 - 764,128
Depreciation expense 204,391 21,736 2.000 102,254 - 41,803 18.553 42,626 7,110 57.369 527,962 - - 527 952
In-king expended - 219,362, - 24,948 - - 128,764 - 106,177 - 479,251 - - 479,251
Consultants and contractors 55400 13,668 £,228 23820 - 19,786 132,857 12 12,704 - 263,984 31,049 - 295,033
Ltilities 228,071 29,700 . 23217 18,0649 1592 11.818 30,814 45326 25,978 30465 445,051 5228 - 450,277
Travel and meatings ' 751 88,760 8,152 38,208 392 2635 16,195 - 24,004 15,328 125 165,550 20,687 - 216,237
Other direct program costs 9,882 51,6828 1,278 7.888 429 1,550 T.088 34,790 6,738 38,315 157,716 84,852 3,315 245,883
Fiscal and administrative 6,024 284 15,684 204 39 8,239 5,125 24,030 1,744 3,100 64,453 124873 - 189,126
Building and grounds maintenance 156,544 94,147 58 13630 . - 8.548 4,875 578 17,874 7,010 303,262 - - 303,262
Interest expense 54,49% 1,668 €33 247 76 - 118 1,914 537 - 89,732 . - - B9, 732
Vehicle expense 5,188 -- - 150,020 - - - 110,333 - - 225,539 - - 225,538
fnsurance 56,280 B8.422 653 3,755 1,598 1619 8,434 6,299 - 3155 90,225 38,916 - 129,141
-Maintenance of equipment and reatal 53,270 20,416 8,738 9378 4,925 5919 17,182 18,137 5,281 7,879 148,132 6,131 - 64,283
Fixed fees 11029 2 10 - . 177 - 1722 19 4,581 2427 - 100 20,057 218 - 20,272

Total Diract Expenses 1.314,2337 3,107.488 651,265 404,213 72150 676,379 20,422,871 13,098,589 1,276,827 212.979 42,241,485 1,238,580 3,315 43,481,391
Indirect Expanses - : :
indirect costs. 133,132 299,448 69.805 119458 5,841 71,557 137,310 275,680 123,361 - 1,236,680 14,236,580) - .

Totai Diract & Indirect expenses $ 1447469 § 3407334 3 721060 § 1523680 $ 78961 % 750938 § 20.560.181 '$ 13375279 § 1400178 % 292976 3 43478076 § - 5 3318  § 43,481,311

See Notes to C lidated Fi {al Stat 3




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

2024 2023
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ' -
Change in nét assets $ 551,850 $ 571,405
Adjustments to reconcile changein net assets to

net cash provided by operating activities: . ‘
Depreciation : 529,444 527,962

Gain on disposal of property - L {800) (6,817)

{Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable N {19,8486) (217,272)
Pledges receivable (92,680) (23,016}
Inventories 20,635 (63,650)
Prepaid expenses (40,915) (77)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:

Accounts payable (182,712) 193,971
Accrued compensated absences ) (22,552) 21,435
Accrued salaries (997) 9,241
Accrued expenses 11,037 (21,643)
Refundable advances (318,051) (42,969)
Other liabilities __(206,982) 257,056

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 227 431 1,205,626
£

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES -

Proceads from disposal of property : : 800 8,091

Purchases of property and equipment (30,198) (161,013)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (29,398) {152,922}
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ,

Repayment on lang-term debt (191,625) {139,920)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES {191,625) (139,920)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 6,408 912,784
CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,128,106 5,215,322
CASH AND RESTRICTEDR CASH, END OF YEAR § 6,134,514 $ 6,128,106

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for:

interest $ 84383 § 88,845

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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IRI-COUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND AFFILIATE
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

’ . '
NOTE 1.. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tn-County
Community Action Program, Inc. and its affiliate, Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
The two organizations are consolidated because Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc. controls 100% of the voting power of Cornerstone Housing North, Inc.
All significant intercompany items and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic financial statements. Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire non-profit corporation that operates a wide
variety of community service programs which are funded primarily through grants or
contracts from various federal, state, and local agencies. Cornerstone Housing
North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation that was
incorporated under the laws of the: State of New Hampshire for the acquisition,
construction, and operation of community-based housing for the elderly.

Nature of activities :
The Organization’s programs consist of the following:

Agency :
Tri-County CAP Administration provides central program management
support and oversight to the Organization's many individual programs.
This includes planning and budget development, bookkeeping and
accounting, payroll and HR services, legal and audit services, IT support,
management support, financial support and central policy development.

Tri-County CAP Administration is the liaison between Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.’s, Board of Directors and its programs,
ensuring that programs comply with agreements made by the Board to
funding sources and vendors.

. Other responsibilities include the management and allocation of funding
received through a Community Services Block Grant, as well as
management of the Organization’s real estate property.

Head Start

Head Start provides comprehensive services to low-income children and
their families. Head Start supports children's growth and development in a
positive learning environment through a variety of activities as well as
providing services, which include in addition to early learning, heaith and
family well-being. All children receive health and development screenings,
nutritious meals, oral health and mental health support. Parents and
families are supported in achieving their own goals, such as housing
stability, continued education, and financial stability.



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Programs support and strengthen parent—chtld relationships :as their child's
primary educator. Head Start staff work as partners with parents to identify
and provide individualized activities that support their child's growth and
development.

Tri-County Community Action Head Start serves approximately 250
children in Carroll, Coos & Grafton counties in 9 Iocatlons with 13 center-
based classrooms and 1 home-based optlon

Guardianship
The Organization's Guardianship program provides advocacy and guardian

services for the wvulnerable population of New Hampshire residents
(developmentally disabled, chronically mentally ill, traumatic brain injury,
and the elderly suffering from Alzheimer’s, dementsa and multiple medical
issues) who need a guardian and who have no family member or friend
willing, able, or suitable to serve in that capacity. This program serves over
400 individuals. Additional services include, conservatorship,
representative payee-ship, federal fiduciary services, benefit management
services and private probate accounting services.

Transportation -

The Organization's transit program provides various transportation
services: public bus routes, door-to-door service by request, long distance
medical travel to medical facilities outside our regular service area, and
special trips for the elderly to go shopping and enjoy other activities that
are located outside the regular service area. The Organization’s fleet of 14
wheelchair accessible vehicles offers transportation options to the elderly
and disabled, as well as to the general public.

Volunteer

The Coos County Retired & Senior Vo[unteers Program (RSVP) maintains
a minimum group of 208 volunteers, ages 55 and older, of which 50
actively served during the last reporting period. These volunteers share
their skills, life experiences, and time with over 60 local non-profit and
public ‘agencies throughout Coos County that depend on volunteer
assistance to meet the needs of their constituents. Our volunteers donate
over 15,000 hours yearly.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Carroll County Dental .
Tamworth Dental Center (the Center) offers state of the art quality oral
healthcare to uninsured families and individuals. The Center offers a full
array of services including preventative, restorative, and oral surgery. The
Center accepts most dental insurances, state insurances, and offers a
sliding fee scale based on income ratio to federal poverty guidelines. The
school-based project of the Center has undergone modifications necessary
due to the pandemic. 9 outreach schools within the vicinity of the Center
will be made. Education, treatments, and referrals will be made available.

Homeless

Homeless services include an outreach intervention and prevention project
that strives to prevent individuals and families from becoming homeless,
and assists the already homeless in securing safe, affordable housing. The
Organization provides temporary shelter space for homeless clients.

The Organization also provides some housing rehabilitation services to
help preserve older housing stock.

Enerqy Assistance and Qutreach

Energy Assistance Services provide fuel and electric assistance through .
direct pay to vendors or a discount on the client's bill. Community Contact
sites allow local participants access to energy assistance programs and
other emergency services. The offices provide information to the
Organization's clients about other programs offered, as well as other
programs available through other organizations in the community.
Low-Income Weatherization :

The NH weatherization program helps low-income families, elderly,
disabled, small children and individuals lower their home energy costs;
increase their health, safety, and comfort; and improve the quality of living
while improving housing stock in communities around the state utilizing
energy cost saving, health and safety and carbon lowering measures. The
NH Weatherization Assistance Program also creates local NH jobs.

Elder :

The Organization's elder program provides senior meals in 4 community
dining sites, home delivered meals (Meals on Wheels) to the frail and
homebound elderly, and senior nutrition education and related
programming. The Coos County Servicelink Aging & Disability Resource
Center assists with person-centered counseling, Medicare counseling,
Medicaid assistance, long-term care counseling services, and caregiver
supports. :

11



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Housing Services '

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. (Cornerstone) is subject to a Project..
Rental Assistance Contract (PRAC) with the United States Department of .
Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and a significant portion of their
rental income is received from HUD. :

Cornerstone includes a 12-unit apartment complex in Berlin, New
Hampshire for the elderly. This operates under Section 202 of the National
Housing Act and is regulated by HUD with respect to the rental charges
and operating methods.

Cormnerstone has a Section 202 Capital Advance. Under guidelines
established by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Uniform
Guidance, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) part 200,
Uniform  Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, the Section 202 GCapital Advance is
considered to be a major program. A separate audit is performed as it
relates to Cornerstone’s compliance with its major federal program in.
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
" of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Govemnment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States and the audit requirements of Title 2 of U.S. Code of Federal.
'Regulations parf 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements of Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Anunmodified opinion was issued. '

Method of accounting
The consolidated financial. statements. of Tri-County Community Action Program,

Inc. and affiliate have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, as promulgated by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) -
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC). Under this basis, revenue, other than
contributions, and expenses are reported when incurred without regard to the .date
of receipt or payment of cash.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP), which require the
Organization to report information regarding its financial position and activities
according to the following net asset classifications:

12



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND-2023

Net assets without donor restrictions include nét assets that are not -
subject to any donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for
any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the Organization.
These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization’ s
management and board of directors.

Net _assets with donor restrictions include net assets subject to
stlpulatlons imposed by donors and grantors. Some doner restrictions
are temporary in nature; those restrictions will: be met by actions of the
Organization or by passage of time. Other donor restrictions are
perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has stlpulated the funds be
maintained in perpetuity. :

The Organization has net assets with donor restrictions of $345,377 and $290,795
at'June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectlvely See Note 12.

Contributions ‘

Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, .depending on the existence and/or nature of any
donor-imposed restrictions. Support that is restricted is reported as an increase in
net assets without donor restrictions if the restriction expires in the reporting period
in which the contribution is recognized. All other donor restricted contributions are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the
restriction. When a restriction expires {that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statement of
activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year-end. Most of the receivables are amounts due from
federal and state awarding agencies and are based on reimbursement for
expenditures made under specific grants or contracts. Past due receivables are
written off at management's discretion using the direct write off method; this is not
considered a departure from accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States because the effects of the direct write off method approximate those of the
allowance method. Management selects accounts to be written off after analyzing.
past payment history, the age of the accounts receivable, and coliection rates for-
receivables with similar characteristics, such as length of time outstanding. This is
the basis to determine expected credit losses for receivables.. The Organization
believes that the composition of receivables at year-end is consistent with historical
conditions. The Organization does not charge interest on outstanding accounts
receivable.

13



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Property and Depreciation -

Acquisitions of buildings, equipment, and improvements in excess of $5,000 and all
expenditures for repairs, maintenance; and betterments that materially prolong the
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Buildings, equipmeént, and improvements are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

Depreciation expense related to assets used solely by an individual program is
charged directly to the related program. Depreciation expense for assets used by
more than one program is charged to the program based upon a square footage or
other similar allocation. : '

Depreciation expense related to administrative assets is included in the indirect cost
pool and charged to the programs in accordance with the indirect cost plan.
Maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the useful lives of assets are
charged to expense as incurred.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings-and improvements 20 t0 40 years
Vehicles - 5 to 8.5 years
Furniture and equipment 5 to 15 years

Client Rents and HUD Rent Subsidy _ )
Comerstone Housing North, Inc.’s. rents are approved on an annual basis by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Rental increases are prohibited
without such approval. The clients are charged rent equal to 30% of their income.
less adjustments allowed by the Department of Housing and Urban Development.
Rent subsidies are received from the Department of Housing and Urban
Development for the difference between the allowed rents” and the amounts
received from the clients.

Refundable Advances ‘ : .

Grants received in advance are recorded as refundable advances and recognized
as revenue in the period in which the related services or expenditures are
performed or incurred. Funds received in advance of grantor conditions being met
aggregated $85,188 and $403,239 as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

-
T

Nonprofit tax status

The Organization is a not-for-profit, Section 501(c)(3) organization in accordance
with the Internal Revenue Code. It has been classified as an organization that is not
a private foundation under the Internal Revenue Code and qualifies for & charitable
contribution deduction for donors. The Qrganization files information ‘returns in the
United States. The Organization’s Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization
Exempt from Income Tax), is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three
years after it is filed.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes, which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial staternent recognition and
measurement of ‘tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
Management does not believe they have taken uncertain tax positions, therefore, a
liability for income taxes "associated with uncertain tax positions has not been
recognized.

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Internal Revenue Service has
determined the Organization.to be other than a private foundation within the
-meaning of Section 509(a). .

Retirement plan )
The Organization maintains a tax-sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of

Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees ‘are eligible to
contribute to the plan beginning on the date they are employed. Each employee
may elect salary reduction agreement contributions in accordance with limits
allowed in the Internal Revenue Code. Employer contributions are at the
Organization’s annual discretion. In January 2013, employer contribution payments
ceased, therefore as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, there were no discretionary
contributions recorded. Further information can be obtained from the Organization's
403(b) audited financial statements.

Donated services and goods

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-ﬁr'i‘ancial assets or
that require specialized skills and would typically need to be purchased if not
provided by donation are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Contributed noncash assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. If
donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded
as net assets with donor restrictions. In the absence of such’ stipulations,
contributions of noncash assets are recorded as net assets without donor
restrictions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Donated property and equipment .

Donations of property and equipment-are recorded as support at their estimated fair
value at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific
purpose. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and-
contributions of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are
reported as net assets with donor restrictions. Absent donor stipulations regarding
how long those donated assets must be maintained, the Organization reports
expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or acquired assets are placed in
service as instructed by the donor. The Organization reclassifies net assets-with
donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions at that time.

Promises to Give
- Conditional promises to give are not recognized in the financial statements until the
conditions are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give that are expected
to be collected within one year are recorded at the net realizable value.
Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year are recorded at fair value, which is measured as the present value of their
future cash flows. : The discounts on those amounts are computed using risk-
adjusted interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are received.
Amortization of the discounts is included in contribution revenue. In the absence of
donor stipulations to the contrary, promises with payments due in future periods are
restricted to use after the due date. Promises that remain uncollected more than
one year after their due dates are written off unless the donors indicate that
payment i$ merely postponed. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions. There were no
_~unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in more than one
year at June 30, 2024 and 2023.

As of Juné 30, 2024 and 2023, there were promises to give that were absent of
donor s‘upulatlons but restricted in regards to timing, and therefore classified as net
assets with donor restrictions in thé amount of $284,892 and $192,212,
respectively. This amount is included in- contributions in the Consollda_ted
Statement of Activities.

Use of estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilites at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the. reportlng
period. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

[as
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Accounting Standards Codification No. 825 (ASC 825), Disclosures of Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, requires the Organization to disclose fair values of its
financial instruments. The carrying amount of the Organization’s  financial
instruments which consists of cash, accounts receivable, deposits and accounts
payable, approximate fair value because of the short-term maturity of those
instruments. '

Functional allocation of expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been’
summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, certain
costs have been allocated among the program services and supporting activities
benefited.

Program_salaries and related expenses are allocated to the

. various programs and supporting services based on actual or
estimated time employees spend on each function as reported on a
timesheet. '

Workers Compensation expenses are charged to each program

based upon the classification of each employee and allocated to the
various program based upon the time employees spend on each
function as noted ahove. ' '

Paid Leave is charged to a leave pool and is allocated to each
program as a percentage of total salaries.

Fringe Benefits are charged to a Fringe Benefit Pool. These
-expenses include employer payroll taxes, pension expenses, health
and dental insurance and unemployment compensation. The pool is
allocated to each program based upon a percentage of salaries.

Depreciation expense is allocated to each program based upon
specific assets used by the program and is reported as depreciation
expense on the statements of functional expenses.

Other occupancy expenses are applicable to assets which are

used by multiple programs. Buildings are "primarily charged to the
benefiting program based upon an analysis of square footage. Costs
related to a building include depreciation, insurance, utilities, building
maintenance, etc. These costs are reported as space costs on the
statements of functional expenses. = -
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Insurance: automobile insurance is allocated to programs ‘based on
vehicle usage; building liability insurance is allocated to programs
based on square footage of the buildings; and insurance for furniture
and equipment is allocated to programs using the book basis of the
insured assets. : :

The remaining shared expenses are charged to an Indirect Cost
Pool and are allocated to each program based upon a percentage of
program expenses. The expenses include items such as

- administrative salaries, general liability insurance, administrative
travel, professional fees, and other expenses which cannot be
specifically identified and charged to a program.

The Organizatib'n submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costs to the U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services. ‘

Advertising policy :

The Qrganization uses advertising to inform the community about the programs it
offers and the availability of services. Advertising is expensed as incurred. The total
cost of advertising for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $16,164 and
'$20,143, respectively.

Debt Issuance Costs .

During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Organization retrospectively adopted the
provisions of the FASB Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-03,
“Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs.” The ASU is limited to
simplifying’ the presentation of debt issuance costs, and the recognition and
measurement guidanceé for debt issuance costs is not affected by the ASU.
Amortization expense of $887 has been included with interest expense in the
consolidated statements of functional expenses for both 2024 and 2023. ”

Revenue Recognition Policy N
The Organization derives revenue primarily from grants, contracts, and )

contributions. Grants are recognized as revenueé upon receipt. Revenue from
contracts is recognized when the service has been performed. Contributions are
recognized as revenue when the donor makes a pledge to give that is, in
substancé, an unconditional promise. Contributions are recorded as with donor
restrictions or without donor restrictions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Cornerstone derives revenues from the rental of apartment units. Revenues are
recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due and control of the apartment.
‘unit is transferred to the lessees. The individual leases are for a term of one year and
are cancelable by the tenants. Control of the leased units is transferred to the lessee
in-an amount that reflects the consideration Cornerstone expects to be entitled to in
exchange for the leased units. The cost incurred to obtain a lease will be expensed
as incurred.

New Accounting Pronouncement

At July 1, 2023, the Organization adopted FASB ASU 2016-13, Financial
Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on
Financial Instruments, as amended, which modifies the measurement of expected
credit losses on certain financial instruments. The Organization adopted this new
guidance utilizing the modified retrospective transition method. The adoption of this
Standard did not have a material impact on the Organization’s finaricial statements
but did change how the allowance for credit losses is determined.

NOTE 2. LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents the Organization’s financial assets as of June 30, 2024
and 2023:

2024 2023

Financial assets at year end:

~ Cash and cash.equivalents, undesignated $ 4658626 $ 4,400,730
Restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program 1,026,499 1,313,655
Accounts receivable 2,044,392 2,024 546
Pledges receivable 284,892 192,212
Restricted cash 449,389 413,721
Total financial assets 8,463,798 8.344 864
LLess amounts not available to be used . :

within one year:

Net assets with donor restrictions 345377 290,795
Restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program 1,026,499 1,313,655
Restricted cash 449 389 413,721
Less net assets with time restrictions to be

met in less than a year (310,948) (254 .537)

Amounts not available within one year 1,510,317 1,763,634

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months $ 6953481 $ 6,581,230
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NOTE 3.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

It is the Organization’s goal to maintain financial “assets to meet 60 days of
operating expenses which approximates $3,352,000 and $6,982,000 at June 30,
2024 and 2023, respectively. : .

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, funds-on deposit with financial
institutions, and investments with original maturities of three months or less. At
year end and throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances were
deposited with multiple financial institutions. The balances are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for each financial institution up to
$250,000. Cash balances may exceed the insured limits at times throughout the

year.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and restricted cash reported
within the statements of financial position that sum to the total in the statements of
cash flows as of June 30: _

2024 2023
Cash, operations $ 4658626 $ 4,400,730
Restricted cash, current 1,026,499 - 1,313,655
Restricted cash, long term 449 389 413,721
Total cash and restricted cash $ 6134514 § 6,128,106

Cash Restrictions

The Organization was required to maintain a deposit account with a bank as part of
the loan security agreement disclosed at Note 7. [t was required to maintain a
balance of $19,968 in the account, which was restricted from withdrawal except to
make payments of debt service or as approved by the U.S. Department of
Agriculture.

Amounts withdrawn to make payments of debt service were required to be
replenished with monthly deposits until the maximum required deposit balance was
achieved. As the note payable was paid off during the year ended June 30, 2024,
theré was no balance at June 30, 2024. The balance at June 30, 2023 was
$20,079 and is included in restricted cash in the Consolidated Statements of
Financia! Position for the year ended June 30, 2023. The Organization made all of
their scheduled deposits for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.
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NOTE 4.

NOTE 5.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

The Organization is reguired to maintain a deposit account with another bank as
part of a bond issue (see bond payable in Note 7). The required balance in the
account is $173,817 and is equal to 12 monthly payments. The balance as of June
30, 2024 and 2023 was $174,841, and the Organization was in compliance with this
requirement. These amounts are included in restricted cash in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Position.

The Organization maintains a deposit account on behalf of clients who participate in
the Guardianship Services Program. The balance in the account is restricted for
use on behalf of these clients and an offsetting liability is reported on the financial
statements as other current liabilities. The total current liability related to this
restriction at June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $1,026499 and $1,313,655,
respectively. These amounts are included in other liabilities on the Statements of
Financial Position. The total restricted cash within this account at June 30, 2024
and 2023 was $1,026,499 and $1,313,655, respectively, and is included in the
restricted cash, Guardianship Services Program balance on the Consolidated
Statements of FmanCIaI Position.

Certain cash accounts related to Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. are restricted for.
certain uses in the Organization under rules and regulatlons prescribed by the
Department of Housing and Urban Development. The total amount restricted at
June 30, 2024 and 2023 was $274,548 and $218,801, respectively. See Note 14.

INVENTORY

fn 2024 and 2023, inventory included weatherization materials which had been
purchased in bulk. These items are valued at the most recent cost. A physical
inventory is taken annually. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFQO)
method. Inventory at June 30, 2024 and 2023 consists of weatherrzatlon materials,
totaling $102 774 and $123, 409 respectwely

PROPERTY
Property con31sts of the following at June 30, 2024:
Capitalized  Accumulated Net

Cost Depreciation = Book Value
Building ' $ 10,1408618 $ 5137,508 $ 5,012,110
Equipment 2,262,710 1,857,361 405,349
Construction in progress - - L-
Land , , 418,840 - 418,840

$ 12831168 § 6994869 § 5836299
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NOTE 6.

NOTE 7.

IRLCQUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC. AND AFEWLIATE

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

Property consists of the following at June 30, 2023:

Capitalized Accumulated Net
Cost Depreciation  Book Value
Building $ 10,119,418 $ 4,630,462 § 5488949
Equipment ‘ 2,278,559 1,892,030 386,529
Construction in progress 42114 - 42 114
Land 418.840 - 418,840

$ 12858,921 §$ 6522499 § 6336432 -

The Organization has use of computers and equipment which are the property of
state and federal agencies under grant agreements. The equipment whose book
value is immaterial to the financial statements, is not included in the QOrganization’s
property and equipment totals

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 totaled
$529,444 and $527,962, respectively. '

ACCRUED CONMPENSATED ABSENCES

For the years ending June 30, 2024 and 2023, employees of the Organization were
eligible to accrue vacation for a maximum of 160 hours. At June 30, 2024 and
2023, the Organization had accrued a liability for future annual leave time that its
emp[oyees had .earnéd and vested in the amount of $227,225 and $249,777,

respectively.

LONG TERM DEBT
The long term debt of the Organization as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 consisted of
the following: '

2024 2023
Note payable with the USDA requiring 360
monthly installments of $1,664, including interest
at 5% per annum. Secured by general business
assets. The note was paid off during 2024. $ - 8 64,236

Noté payable with a bank requiring 120 monthly
installments of $2,936, including interest at 4%

+ per annum. Secured by first mortgages on two

commercial properties. Final installment due April :
2031. ' 209,941 236,057
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

. 2024 - 2023
Bond payable with a bank requiring monthly '
installments of . $14,485, including interest of

. 2.75% plus the bank's internal cost of funds

multiplied” by 67% with an indicative rate of

3.28%. Secured by first commercial real estate

mortgage on various properties and assignments

of rents at various properties. Final installment

due-August 2040, 2,173,841 - 2,276,888

Cornerstone Housing North, Inc. capital advance
due to the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development. This capital advance is not
subject to interest or principal amortization and
will be forgiven after 40 years, or in August 2047. 1,617,600 1,617,600

Comnerstone Housing North, Inc. mortgage
payable due to New Hampshire Housing Finance
Authority. The mortgage is not subject to interest
or principal amortization. Payments are deferred
for 40 years; final payment due in August 2047. 250.000 250,000

Total long term debt before unamortized debt =
issuance costs . _ 4,251,382 4,444,781
Unamortized debt issuance costs i (7.383) (8,270)

Total long term debt 4,243,999 - 4,436,511
Less current portion due within one year (135,315) (139.961)

$ 4108684 $ 4296550

The scheduled —maturities of long-term debt as of June 30, 2024 are as follows:

- Years ending :
June 30 Amount

2025 3 135,315
2026 : 140,153
2027 . - 143,926
2028 _ 148,439
2029 , N 153,097
Thereafter . 3530452

$§ 4251382
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NOTE 8.

NOTE 9.

As described at Note 3, the Organization was required to maintain a reserve

‘account with a bank for the first note payable listed above.

DEMAND NOTE PAYABLE .

The Organization has available a $750,000 line of credit with its primary financial
institution which is secured by real estate mortigages and assignments of leases
and rents on various properties as disclosed in the line of credit agreement.
Borrowings under the line bear interest for the years ended June 30, 2024 and
2023 at 950% and 9.25% per annum, respectively. There was no balance
outstanding at June 30, 2024 and 2023. The line is subject to renewal each
February.

OPERATING LEASES :

The right of use (ROU) asset represents the Organization’s right to use underlying
assets for the lease term, and the lease -liabilities represent the Organization's
obligation to make lease payments arising from these leases. The ROU assets and .
lease liabilities, all of which arise from operating leases, were calculated based on
the present value of future lease payments over the lease terms. The Organization
has elected to discount future cash flows at the risk-free borrowing rates
commensurate with the lease terms, which was 3.01%, at the time of implementing
ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). Common expenses, classified as space costs in
the accompanying financial statements, are considered a non-lease component
under FASB ASC 842 and are recognized as costs are incurred. The Organization’s
operating leases are described below.

The QOrganization has entered into numerous lease commitments for space and
office equipment. Leases under non-cancelable lease agreements have various
starting dates, lengths, and terms of payment and renewal. Additionally, the
Organization has several facilities which are leased on a month-to-month basis.
For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the annual rent expense for leased
facilities and office equipment totaled $189,337 and $192,365, respectively.

The weighted average remaining lease term at June 30, 2024 is 1.64 years and the -
weighted average discount rate at June 30, 2024 is 3.09%.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

lease liability maturities as of June 30, 2024 are as follows:

Year Ending .
June 30: Amount
2025 $ 59,685
2026 52,460
2027 11,372
2028 4,737
Total undiscounted lease liability - 128,254
v Less imputed interest (4.437)
Total lease liability 5 3 123,817

Subsequent to year end,-the Organization entered into multiple lease agreements
for office equipment, ranging from four to five years. The future minimum lease
payments on these leases are as follows:

Year ending

June 30: Amount
2025 $ 12,780
2026 15,336
2027 15,336
2028 . 15,336
2029 . 15,046
Thereafter 2.498
3 76,332

NOTE 10. IN-KIND CONTRIBUTIONS
The Organization records the value of in-kind contributions according fo the
accounting policy described in Note 1. The Head Start, Transportation and Elder
programs rely heavily on volunteers who donate their services to the Organization.

These services are valued based upon the comparative market wage for similar
paid positions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

The fair value of donated services included as contributions inthe consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2024 are as follows:

- Senior

Head Start Meals Transportation Total

Professional services

and services for :
disabled $ 68,708 $ - 3% 26,675 $ 95,383

Packing, setup and
- delivery of
congregate and
home delivered
meails - 141,565 - - 141,565

$ 68708 $ 141565 $ 26,675 $ 236,948

The fair value of donated services included as contributions in the consclidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2023 are as follows: ' .
Senior
Head Start Meals . Total

Professional services and :

services. for disabled $ 76,770 $ - 8 76,770
Packing, setup and delivery of : C

congregate and home

delivered meals - 102.077 102.077

§ 76770 $ 102077 § 178847

Numerous volunteers have donated -significant amounts of time to the
Organization's program services. Although no-amounts have been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements, management estimates the fair valué of those
services to be approximately $400,250 and $367,930 for the years ended June 30,
2024 and 2023, respectively.

The Organization is also the beneficiary of a donation of in kind in the form of below
market rent for some of the facilities utilized by the Head Start and Elder programs.
The value of the in-kind rent is recorded at the difference between the rental
payment and the market rate for the property based upon a recent appraisal.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

The fair value of donated facilities incIuded'as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2024 are as follows:

Head Senior .
Start Meals Transportation RSVP Total
Difference |
between
- rent paid
and market
rate. $68291 3 5500 _§ 6818 $ 1600 § 82209

The fair value of donated facilities included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Senior
, Head Start NMeals Total
Difference between rent )
Paid and market rate 3 69097 $ 4100 $ 73,197

The fair value of other gifts in kind included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2024 are as follows:

" Head Start RSVP - Transportation Total
Employee use of
home $ 79563 $ - $ - % 79,563
Donated goods - 560 23.283 23,843
Total $ 79563 § 560 $ 23283 $  103.406

The fair value of other gifts in kind-included as contributions in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding program expenses for the year ended
June 30, 2023 are as follows: _

Head Start Homeless Transportation Total
Employee use of N : '
home $ 73495 § - 8 - $ 73,495
Donated goaods - - 24,948 24,948
Hotel rooms for -
homeless clients - 128,764 128.764
Total $ 73495 $ 128764 § 24948 § 227207
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

NOTE 11. CONCENTRATION OF RISK
The Organization receives a majority of its support from federal and state
governments. For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, approximately
$16,920,800 (77%) and $39,361,300 (89%), respectively, of the Organization’s total
revenue was received from federal and state governments. If a significant
reduction in the level of support were to occur, it would have a significant impact on
the Organization’s programs and activities. '

. Cornerstone receives a large majority of its support from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development. For the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
approximately 60% and 61%, respec:tlvely, of Cornerstone's total revenue was
derived from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development. In the
absence of additional revenue sources, the future existence of Cornerstone
Housing. North, Inc. is dependent upon the funding policies of the U.S. Department
of Housing and Urban Development.

The majority of Cornerstone’s. assets are apartment projects, for which operations
are -concentrated in the elderly person's real estate market. In addition, -
Cornerstone operates in a regulated environment. The operation of Cornerstone is
subject to administrative directives, rules and regulations of federal, state and local
regulatory agencies, including, but not limited to, HUD. Such administrative
directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or an
administrative change mandated by HUD. Such changes may occur with little
notice or inadequate funding to pay for the related cost,"including the admmlstratwe
burden, to comply with the change. :

NOTE 12. NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS'
Net assets with donor restrictions .are available for the following specific program
services as of June 30, 2024 and 2023:

\ ' 2024- 2023

Temporary municipal funding- , $ 284892 $ 192,212
Restricted buildings 34,431 36,257
FAP/EAP r : 1,681 - 14,092
Head Start | 1,472 3,577
Loans — HSGP 22,901 23,484
RSVP program funds ' - 15,708
CC Coos ' - - 5,099 .
CC Carroll . - 180
CC Grafton : . “ - 180
LIWAP Program - 6

Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 345377 § 290,795
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NOTE 13.

. NOTE 14.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grant Compliance
The Organization receives funds under several federal and state grants. Under the

terms -of the grants the Organization is required to comply with various stipulations
including use and time restrictions. If the Organization was found to be

, noncompliant with the provisions of the grant agreements, the Organization could

be liable to the grantor or face discontinuation of funding.

Environmental Contingencies

On March 30, 2009, the Organization's Board of Directors agreed to secure
ownership of a 1.2-acre site located in Berlin, New Hampshire. There are 2
buildings on this site designated as the East Wing and West Wing Buildings which
were formerly used as a research and development facility for the Berlin Mills
Company. ‘

The exterior soil and interior parts of the East Wing Building contained
contaminants’ which required environmental remediation. In a letter dated May 2,
2012, the State of New Hampshire Department of Environment Services (the
Department) noted that the remedial actions for the exterior soils and parts of the

East Wing Building had been completed to the Department's satisfaction.

In addition, the Department noted that the contaminants related to the West Wing
Building did not pose an exposure hazard to site occupants, area residents, and the
environment, provided the West Wing Building is maintained to prevent further
structural deterioration. If further deterioration occurs and contaminants are
released into the environment, the Organization could be required to take additional -
action including containment and remediation. .

REPLACEMENT RESERVE AND RESIDUAL RECEIPTS ACCOUNTS

Under Cornerstone’s regulatory agreement with HUD, the Organization is required
to set aside amounts into a replacement reserve for the replacement of property-
and other project expenditures approved by HUD. HUD-restricted deposits of
$264,483 and $207,956 were held in a segregated account at June 30, 2024 and
2023, respectively.

During the year ended June 30, 2023, HUD approved a loan from the replacement
reserve account to the operating account to cover operating expenses due to the
delay in HAP vouchers being processed by HUD. During the year ended June 30,
2024, the $26,649 loan was paid back to the replacement reserve account. HUD
restricted deposits generally are not available for operating purposes.
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NOTE 15.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023-

Comnerstone's use of the residual receipts account is contingent upon HUD's prio}
written approval. Residual receipts of $6,455 and $6,454 were held in a segregate
account for the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

Under the regulatory agreement, Cornerstone is required to set aside amounts for the
return of resident paid ‘deposits. At June 30, 2024 and 2023 $3,610 and $4,391,
respectively, were .held in a segregated account and generally are not available for
operating purposes.

HUD has initiated policies to recapture funds built up in residual receipts accounts
upon renewal of Cornerstone's project rental assistance contract. The policies
direct that the amounts in excess of certain limits in the residual receipts account be
(a) used to offset rent subsidies due from HUD under HAP contracts, or (b) remitted
directly to HUD. The policies generally require project owners to limit the monies
accumulated in the residual receipts account to $250 per unit.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated events through November 13, 2024, which is the
date that the financial statements were available to be issued. .
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IBI-COUNTY COMMUNITY AGTION PROGRAM, INC,

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NON-FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

] GRANTOR'S
. FEDERAL PASS-THROUGH IDENTIFYING FEDERAL
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE ALN GRANTOR'S NAME NUMBER EXPENDITURES
U.S. Departmeant of Health and Human Services
HEAD SYART CLUSTER
Head Start , . 93.600 01CHD11936-03-01 3 1,807,043
Head Start 93.600 G1CH011836-04-00 1,250.524
CLUSTER TOTAL — 3,057,567
Leiv-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568  State of Mew Hampshire Cffice of Energy and Planning 23 NHLEEA/2IDTNHLIEE 242,583
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568  Stale of New Hampshire Office of Energy and Planning Z2401NHLIEA 6,750,796
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568  Stale of New Hampshire Office of Energy and Planning 2304NHLIEA 433,706
TOTAL 7,427 065
Low-Income Househeld Water Assistance Brogram 93.439  Siate of T\!evs_r Hampshire Office of Energy ang Planning 2401NHLWES!E 265,798
AGING CLUSTER
Special Programs for the Aging - Tile I}, Part B - Grants for Supportive Services and Sentor Centers {SEAS) . 93.044  State of New Hampshire Oflice of Energy-and Planning SEAS2101NHOASS 9,463
Specia! Programs for tha Aging - Titte I}, Part B - Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centers (Sr. Wheals) ©3.044  State of New Hampshire Depanmant of Health ane Human Serviges . RFA-2023-BEAS-D7-TRANS-11 115.581
' VOTAL 125044
Special Programs for the Aging - Titte I1l, Part £ - Nutrition Services (Congregate & HD Meals) 93.045  State of New Hampshire Departmant of Health and Human Services RFA-2023-BEAS-04-BEASN-09 273,075
ARPA - Spedial Programs for the Aging - Title 1), Part C - Nutrition Senvices (HD Meals) 93.045  State of New Hampshire Depanmerit of Health and Human Services RFA-2023-BEAS-04-BEASN-09 134,875
TOTAL __ 4laoso
Nutritian Services incentive Program (NSIP) 93.053  Siate of New Hampshirei Depariment of Health and Human Services NONE 79.730
; CLUSTER TOTAL _ 88824
Community Services Block Grant 93,568  State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services $5-2013-8HS-02-COMMU-05-A02 & AG3 446.363
National Family Caregiver Support, Title Itf, Part £ 63.052  State of New Hampshire-Departiment of Health and Human Services RFA-2021-DLTSS-0B-SERVI-07-A02 32,370
State Health Insurance Assistance Program 93.324¢  State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services RFA-2021-DUTSS-0B-SERVI07-A02 15,677
Medicare Enroltment Assistance Program 93.071  Slate of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services RFA-2021-DLT55-08-5ERVI-07-A02 9.52%
Special Programs for the Aging, Title ¥V, and Titie II, Discretionay Projects 93.048  State of New Hampshire Departmant of Health and Hutman Services RFA-2071-DLTSS-08-SERVI-07-A02 8,950
Activities to Supporl STLT Health Depariment Respense to Public Health or Healihcare Crises 93.391  State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services $5-2022-DPHS-13-REGIO-03-A01 562440
Sacial Services Block Grant (Title XX 1&R) 93,667  State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services RFA-2021-DLYSS-08-5ERVI-07-A02 82,769
Sacial Services Biock Grant (Title XX HD) 93.867 . Stale of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services RFA-2023-BEAS-04-BEASN-02 121,538
Social Services Block Grant (Guardianship) 93.657  State of New Hampshire Depantment of Health and Human Services $5-2022-DBH-01-GUARD-02 26,839
TOTAL 231,145
Total U.3. Department of Health and Human Services ) 12704725
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NON-FEDERAL AWARDS

IRECOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM INC,

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

GRANTOR'S
FEDERAL PASS-THROUGH IDENTIFYING FEQERAL
FEDERAL GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE ALN GRANTOR'S NAME NUMBER EXPENDITURES
U.S. Department of Energy .
Weathenzation Assistance for Low-Income Persons 81.042  State of New Hampshire Governor's Office of Energy & Cormunity Services DE-EEQ009916 3 392,962
BIL - Weatherization Assistance for Low-income Persons 81.042  State of New Hampshire Governer's Office of Energy & Communily Services DE-EE00100001 632,963
Total U.8. Cepartment of Energy 3 1,025.925
U.S. Corporation for National and Community Service
Retired and Senjor Velunteer Program 84.002 22SRFNHC0H $ 40,269
Total U.8. Comporation for Nationa! and Community Service 5 40.269
U8, Depattment of Aqriculture
Child and Agull Care Food Program 10,558  Stiate of New Hampshire Departmen! of Education NONE 3 154.628
Tolal U.S. Departmenl of Agriculture * ] 154,628
JUEN Degam:nent of Transportation :
Formula Grants for Rural Areas (Section 5311) 20508  State of New Hampshire Depariment of Transpartation 04-56-96-964010-2016-972-5 s 307 4068
TRANSIT SERVICES PROGRAMS CLUSTER
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities {Section 5310) 20,513  Stzte of New Hampshire Depariment of Transportation 04-96-95-8654010-2916-072-5 . 372,088
CLUSTER TOTAL 372088
Tatat 11.5. Department of Transporatian $ 679,454
U.8. Deparfment of Housing and Urban Development .
Emergency Solutions Grant Pragram 14:231  Stats of New Hampshire Deparimant of Health and Human Services RFA-2023-DEHS-01-EMERG-03-A01 5 288,139
CV-Emergency Sclutions Grant Program 14.231  State of NH Gavemor's Office for Emergency Relief & Recavary RFA-2023-DEHS-01-EMERG-03-A01 125,886
TOTAL 214,026
Continuum of Care Program {HCIP} {4267  State of New Hampshite Depariment of Health and Human Services NHI0ZOLATAO1811 9,562
GContinuum of Care Program (HOIP) 14,267  State of New Hampshire Bepariment of Health and Human Services 55-2024-DBH-13-CONTI-0% 168,618
Contlauum of Care Program (HGP) 14.267  State of New Hampshire Department of Haalth and Human Services §5-2019-8HHS-01-Coord-05 122,170
Continuum of Care Program (HOIP) 14,267  State of New Hampshire Depariment of Haalth ang Human Services 58-2023-DEHS-07-YOUTH-02 29,373
Continuum of Care Pragram (HCIP) 14257  State of New Hampshire Depatiment of Health and Human Services 55-2023-DEHS-07-YOUTH-01 16,963
TOTAL __ 3esses
Total U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development $ 580633

32



IRLCOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAN, INC,

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND NON-FERERAL AWARDS
EFOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2024

GRANTOR'S
FEDERAL PASS.THROUGH IDENTIFYING FEDERAL
FEDERAL GRANTCR/PROGRAM TITLE ALN GRANTOR'S NAME NUMBER EXPENDITURES
U.S. Department of the Treasury
Emargency Rental Assistance Program 21023 NH Heusing Finance Authority 159,281
Emergency Rental Assistance Program 21.023  State of New Hampshire Departrment of Health and Human Services RFA-2024-D8H-03-COLDW-06 79.634
Total U.5..Department of the Treasury ! S 238915
B
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 8 15:424.589 .
NON-FEDERAL ‘ $ 299317
Electrical Assistance Program $ 250.317

ROTE A - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Cemmunity Action Program Betknap-Marrimack Couatias, Inc.

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the faderal award activity of Tri-Cotnty Community Action Program, Inc. under programs of the federal goveramant for the year ended June 30, 2024, The infoemation in this Schadute
Is presented in accordance wilh the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Pringiplas, and Audit Requirerments for Fedsral Awards {Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule preseats only a sefected
portion of the operations of Tri-Caunty Corfimunity Action Pragram, Inc., it is not intended 1o and does not presant the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash Rows of the Organization.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the, accrual basis of accounting. Such expendilures are recognized following the cost principles conlained in tUniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures ‘are not alfowable .or are limited as to
reimbursement.. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule reprasent adjustments or ¢redits made in the norma course of business 10 amounts reperted as expeaditures in prior years.

NOTE © - INDIRECT RATE

Te-County Community Actiens Prograni Inc, has elected to not use the 10-petcent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under he Uniform Guidance,

33

»



Leone _
McDonnell
& Roberts

Professional Association

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
DOVER » WOLFEBORO
NORTH CONWAY

P

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED
ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED -
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States , the financial
statements of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. (& New Hampshire nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2024 and
2023, and the related statements of functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then
ended, the related notes to the financial statements, and the related statement of activities for
the year ended June 30, 2024 and have issued our report thereon dated November 13, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (interal control) as
a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on thé effectiveness of Tri-County .
* Community Action Program, Inc.’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal controf exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that 2 material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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‘Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiéncies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,. during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified. _

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards. :

i’urpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the organization’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in con5|dermg the
organization’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, thIS communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

i&m%&DmM s P

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE |

To the Board of Directors of
Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.’s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement
that could have a direct and material effect on each of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.’s major federal programs are identified: in the summary of auditors’ results
section of the acdompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. complied, in all material respects,
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024,

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Progrém

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States: and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.
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We are required to be independent of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does
not provide a legal determination of Tri-County Community Action Program, inc.’s compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the -
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of Gontracts or grant
agreements applicable to Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.’s federal programs.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncomeliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.’s compliance based on our
audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
Jjudgment made by a reasonable user of the repart on compliance about Tr-County Community
Action Program, Inc.’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a
whole.

In performing an audit in aCcordancé with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

o Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout. the
audit. :

o ldentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence -regarding Tri-County Community Action
Program, Inc.'s compliancé with the compliance requirements referred to above and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc’s internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinicn on the effectiveness of Tri-County Community Action Program,
Inc.’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
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W'e"are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A matérial weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control
over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, materiai
weaknesses or significant deficiencies in infernal control over compliance may exist that were
not identified. :

QOur.audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

North Conway, New Hampshire
November 13, 2024
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: ~  SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2024 -

1. The auditors’ report expresses an unmodifiéd opinion on the financial statements of Tri-
County Community Action Program, Inc.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statéments are reported in
the Independent Audifors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed-in
Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to' the financial statements of Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. which would be required to be reported in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the audit. :

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs during
the -audit are reported in the Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each
Major Program and on Internal Control over Compliance Required by the Uniform
Guidance. '

5. The auditors’ report on compliance for.the major federal award programs for Tri-County
Community Action Program, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major
programs.

6. No audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.51 6(a)
are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs included:

Uu.S. bepanment of Health & Human Services, Low Income Home Energy
Assistance Program — ALN 93.568

U.S. Department of the Energy, Weatherization Assistance for.Low Income -
Persons — ALN 81.042 '

U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Activities to Support State, Tribal
Local and Territorial (STLT) Health Department Response to Public Health or
Healthcare Crises — ALN 93.391

NON- Federal, Public Utilities, Electrical Aséistance Program
8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000. :

9. Tri-County Community Action Program, inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.
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FINDINGS - FINANCIA'L STATEMENTS AUDIT
None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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Jennne b, Eobillard

STREXGTIS

* Program development, management and administration ¢ Commuaity collsborations -
Development of policy, protocol, and service delivery to meet funder standasds
Grant writing and management ¢ Budget pesformance and financial repotting
Tnnovative solutions & problem solving ¢ Capacity building
Professicnal presentations ¢  Public spealing
Dedication ¢ Imagination ¢ Detenmination ¢ Fortitade

PLROFESSIGNAL EXPERIENCE

Tri-Coundy Community Action Programs, Ire.
Chizf Execntive Offfices
Berlin, Nl 2018 ~ etsrrent FT employgrmant

TriCounty Community Aclien Programs, Ene.
Chief Operating Officer

Berkin, NE 2016 - 2618
Responsible for the operations of six agency Divisions with 15 individual programs that provide ovet

0 consumer setvices across three counties of Northern New Hampshice. Essential duties include;
supervision of Division Ditectors, ovetsec and monitor program fesources, sevenles, expenditures -
and budget performance; tactical oversight of programs to meet of exceed agency defined strategic
goals; develop and implement strategies to improve individual programs and overall agency program

and fiscal performance; oversee and lead special projects such as the Annual Report, Strategic Plan,

Community Needs Assessment process, and work with Senior Management Team to develop new

service ipitiatives, Provide tactical guidance to Division Disectors to trouble shoot issues 2nd problems

in the daily operations of programs.

TrisCounty Community Aetion Progeams, Eng.
Division Drector: TCCARP Preveation Sexvices
Berkin, Nl 2015 2016 | o _\
der the umbrella of TCCAP Prevention Services; oversee

Responsible for four agency programs un
division resources, zevenues, and expenditures and monitor budget performance; general oversight of

programs to meet ot exceed agency defined strategic goals; supervise program directors; write grants
to support programs, monitor results, and prepate grant reports aad financial statements for funders
and agency; develop fondraisiog and marketing strategies for programs; represent prograr through
participation in state and local initiatives relative to program/ division goals and sexvice delivery,
collaborate with stakeholders and elected officials, including presenting legislative testimony.

Fri-Connty Coromunity Aetion Progrags, hac,

Program/WPivision Wireetor: Suppert Cender al Borcl House

Littieton, Now Hampshire 2087 2015

Oversee daily operation and supervision of domestic and sexual violence etisis center and residential
shelter; write grants to support Programs, monitor results, and prepare grant reports and financial
staternents for funders and parent agency; OVersce Prograin resources, revenues and expenditures, and
monitor budget performance and progress toward strategic goals; create and dircct victim advocacy
programs to ensure compliance with grant deliverables and applicable state and federal law; develop
Fundraising and marketing strategies; patticipate in state and local collaborations to enhance vicim
services; teptesent program in state and federal victin service initiatives, including presentation of
Jegislative testimony; create and present trainings for medical 2nd legal professionals on legal standards
and best practices for victim services.
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JL Robillard * 2

Bookkeeper: Women’s Raral Enireprencurial Network (WREN)

Bethiehem, NH  eurrent PT excploymenti
Responsible for grane fiscal tracking, reporting, funds release and account transfers, bi-weekdy payroll

and 941 payments, accounts payable and receivable, month end reconciliations for bank accounts,
credit cards, petty cash, retail and market sales; monthly POS/QB reconciliation for three setail
locations, preparing monthly cash flow, forecasts, and standard fiseal ceports for Board of Dicectors.

Tri-Connty Commnnily Aelion Programs, Ine.
Direet Services/Volmmicer Coordinator: Support Center at Barch House

Eiitleton, New Hampshire 1997 1o 2007
Provide advocacy and direct setvice to victims of domestic and sexual violence; supervise coutt

advocacy programs; recruit, train and supervise staff, volunteers, and intetns; develop agency systems,
policies and protocols; create and present community outreach presentations and campaigng; present
school-based violence prevention classes for grades K-12 ; provide on-call coverage of ctisis line

Rijrector: Haverhill Axes Javenile Biversion Program

Woodsville, New Hampshire 19938-2001
Recruit, train, and supervise voluntecr diversion committees; establish community programming for

divested youth; supportive counseling of youth; maintain collaborative relationships between the court
system, juvenile setvice officess, local police departments, and divetsion program; prepate and file
court repotts on diverted youth; community outreach and education

Counselor/Title I Teacher: Norihorn Family Institnte~Jeiferson Shelter

Jeofferson, New Hompshive 19561890 .
Provide individual supportive counseling to adjudicated youth, facilitate peer suppost groups, develop

and implement treatment plans and case management setvices to clients, supeevise and rutos youth in
classroom setting, supervise youth in daily living skills

Education
BS in Homan Sexrvices, Springficld Cellege Sehool of Humen Services, Boston, MA
Criminal Justice Concentration, Graduated with 4.0 GPA

AS in Prog und Alcobol Reksbilitation Counseling (DARC Prograrn)
Sonthern Connecticnt Community College, New Haven, CF

Additional Skills. Prefessionsl i.eadership and Civie Affiliotions

Chairman, Bethlehem Board of Selectmen, Town of Bethlehem  Twice Elected . 2006-2076
Chairman, Arts Alliance of Nosthem New Hampshire 2660-2003, Trasurer 1996-1998
Chaitman, Haverhill Area Pamily Violence Council  7998-2003

Cestified PRIME FOR LIFE Fapaired Driver Intervention Program Instructor #NH16199
Registered Sezual Harassment Prevention Trainer in the State of New Hampshire

Board Membet, Women's Rutal Entreprenential Network 2074, Individual Mentber 2008-2017
Bethlehem Planning Bourd 2010 -2015

Bethlehem Conservation Commission 2006 - current

Granite United Way, Notth Country Cabinet Member 2077-2012

TCCAP: Commendation- Division Director Award, 2017

Bethlehem Citizens Advisoty Committee on Recycling  2007-2010

. Licensed Foster Parent, State of NH  2000-2006

Small Business Owner : Aurora Energles 2015 crrent

Speakeasy Trio Jazz Vocalist/ Sweet Jamm Swing Band Yazz Vocalist 1997- carrent

Mesmber, United States Fignre Skating Association/International Skating Institute  carvent sine 1993

L N B B D I T DA YT S S
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RANDALL S. PILOTTE

SUMMARY

Accounting professional with over 29 years of experience, of which 21 years were with a single private manufacturer.
16 years of experience managing accounting professionals. Key competencies inchide:

Fixad Assels

Financial Statements Accounts Payables Inventory
Payroll Bank Reconciliations Accounts Receivables SalesfUse Tex
Budgeting Cash Flow Management Audits Forecasting
EXPERIENCE
06/2013-Prescnt

TRLCOUNTY COMMUNITY ACTION PROGRAM, INC.. Berlin, NH

CFO (2017 —Present) ‘
Work closely with the CEO, Treasurer and Finance Committee to identify performance godls for the Agency and to

rmaintain gystems to monitor performance against those goals, Plan, direct, coordinate, implement and evaluate the
financial management systems and activities of the Agency with a budget of $18M.
e Prepare/provides complete and accurate finaneial, statistical, and accounting records for the Agency 2nd outside

regulatory agencies.
e As a member of the senior management team, assists in the formulation and execution of corporate fimance

policies, objectivesand programs.
s Prepares progmm and agenoy budgets in conjunction with the CEO and Program Directors. Plan, direct,

coordinate, implement and evaluate fiscal performence reviews of Tri-County CAPsdivisions.

« Hire, train, direct and evaluate employee performance within the department; recommend promotions and salary
adjustments.

e Provides supervision and directionfor the Facilities Management Team, ensuring that sll mortgages, leases and
covenants are maintained for Tri-County CAP’s fecilities. Crestion of five-year capital plan.

o Reviews cash flows for each division, monitor cash management practices, and monitor imvestments associated

with each property. :
e Prepared five-year debt reduction plan.

Fiseal Director/Interirm CFO (2016201 )]
Direct and manage a fiscal staff of 5 and processes associated with the general ledger, payroll, and accounts
payable, accounts receiveble, cash receipts and fixed assots.

e Prepare and supervise theproduction of financial statements inchudin

Reports, and Cost Summarieson & monthly and anmual basis.
o Maintain proper accounting contrals on grants and contributions to ensure accurate revenug reporting and expense
tracking to support periodic monitoring’s by funders and auditors.
Ensure all balance sheet, revenue and expensc accounts are analyzed and recogciled periodically.
Coliaborste with Division Directors to monitor departmental revenue and eXpenses versus budget.

Worked with the CFO to develop real time monthly and annual financial reporting; and implementing

departmenta] goals.
Prepare gudit schedules for extemnal suditors.
o Collaboratewith external auditars in completing annual audit in a timely manner

g Balance Sheet, Revenue and Expense

Accounting Manager (2015-2016)

Sr, Accountant (2013-2014)
RANDALL PILOTTE RESUME:
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KENT NUTRITION GROUP, INC. 1f/k/a Blue Sea] Feeds, Inc, ), Londonderry, NH 03/1989-09/2010
Assistant Controller (2005-2010) .

* Ensured an accurateand Umelymonﬂuly and yearend closs, cons:stmgof the preparation of 2 consolidated and
individual finencial statement in accordance with GAAP for nine mamifacturing plants and 11 retail stores with
gross revenues in excess of $200M. Additional responsibilities included preparing joumal entries, account
analysis, inventory review and observation, fixed assets, and depreciation.

o Managed, trained, and supervised a staff accountant responsible for ensuring accurate journial entries, inventory
reconciliation, tonnage tax rotums, bank reconciliations, and assignment of specigl projects.

« Oversaw all aspects of proprietary software, multi-state payroll system for 500 employees. Prepared al! federal

angd stﬁte’g:tkymn tax reports, including quarterly and year-end returns, processing of W23, and supervision of

payrolic

Interfaced with 18 various banks throughout New England and Mid-Atlantic area nsed as depositories.

Prepared multi-state sales/use tax returns and acted as point of contact for audits.

Pro-actively coached and consulted plant and store management on the annual budget development process.

Oversaw month-end accruals.
Assisted and responded to auditors’ requests on annual andit.
Filed annual franchise and abendoned property reports with appropriate states.

2 0 0o ©c @

Accounting Manager (1999-2005)

Supported the Corporate Controller’s initiatives by providing supervision and oversight to the Accounting function.
Supemse:l and trained two accounts payable clerks on Chart of Accounts, Accounts Fayable, timely and accurate
processing and payment of vendor’s invoices, employee travel reimbirsements, and standard accounting practices.

Accomntani/Payroll Supervisor (1994-1999)

Accountant (1989-1934)

NORTHERN TELECOM, INC,, Conconl, NH 05/1987-03/1988

Associnte Results Accountant (1988-1989)

Aceounts Payable (1987-1588)

EDUCATION
Bachelor of Science, Accounting, FRANKLIN PIERCE COLLEGE, Concord, NH
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Brendsa Gagne
Tri Connty Community Action Program Ine,

Professional Skitls:

Demonstrated adntinistrative experience and skills .
Fiscal mansgement skills or experjence in administering grants and/or department budgets
Strong grant development experience, high quality research, for federal, state funding

Excellent interpersonal skills with an zbility to build and mainfain among facuity and staft

Previous: administrative experience or evidence of sdministrative skills required to lead a Jarge department

Leadership skills and experience to implement policies and procedures
Effective communication skills and team building capabilities

el County Community Action Program
Economic Supports Department Head

62020 to Present

Manage a department of 4 Program Directars and staff
Advise programs on funding opportunities to include Pe
Represent Agency at State and Laocal Jevels.

Monitor Program ‘Budgets and Operations

Hendle staff complaints when merited

desal, State and Local

Tri County Transit
Director of Transportation

572017 - 672020

Respongibiiities include;
Oversight of the operations, mamtenance and adnrinistrative functions of a social

service transportation program
serving Coos, Northern Grafton znd Carroll Connties. )

Grant Management State of NH DOYT, NH DHHS
Dnug & Alcohol Managemeat ’
Financial Management

Title V1, ADA Policy Management
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Tri Caunty Trapsit
Operations Manager
7/2004-5/2017

Responsibilitdes include;

#Rymning the daily operations of a public transit and para tramsit servica.
*acility Management.

*Gathering statistics .

*Quarterly reporting to NHDOTand BEAS,

*Preparing quarterly invoices to BEAS and NHDOT

*Weekly employee scheduling, staff manegement.

*Creating procedute manuals

*Grant writing '
*Budget preparation

*Writing Warrant Articles

*Drug & Alcohol Testing

*Emergency Preparcdness

Mountsin Village Construction
Accounts Mopager/Oifice Manager
571995 - 122004

Responsibifities inclnded;

*Customer seTvice.

*A coonmting Using Quick Books Pro.
*Preparing payroll and Tax Payments.
*Preparing Customer Statements and Invoices,
» Acouunts Receivable and Accounts Payable.
sCrenting and nnning Profit and Loss Reports.

*Data Eniry.
*Phone commupications and general secretavial duties.

Milan Parks and Recreation Dept.
Parks and Recreatfon Director

6/1597 - 3/2602

Responstbilities included;

*Directed and implemonted sports and recreational programs for youth mnd adults for the
Towns of Milan, West Milan, and Dixnmer.
*Development of new programs and year round activities,

*Produting yearly budgets.
*Applying for Federol and State Grants.
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Education:
Granite State College
Emergency

Southern New Hampshire University
Bachelor of Business Administration



Scott Boisvert

Highly effective Operations Manager with 15 years of experience.

EXPERIENCE

Tri-County Community Action Program, Berlin, NH
- Economic Supports Department Head

2024 -PRESENT

Ensure the cffeetive and cfficieat operation of the Economic Supports programs at
TCCAP. Perform and menitor functions involving the department. including
managenent and supervision of these programs, and emplovess. Arcas nelude
Operations, eompliance, supervision, discipline, evaluation, intervicwing and

recommetidation of hiting and promotions in order to carry out the mission of [CCAP,

1
1

Tri-County Community Action Program, Berlin, NH

Mobility Manager Region 2 ‘

2022 - 2024

Work towards expanding transportation options and de\}eloping new

sustainable transportation options to serve the communities within the
region.

DiSilva Heating, North Conway, N
Service Apprentice :
2021 -2022

HVACG instailations and service.

Rymes Propane & 0il, Ossipee, NH
Division Manager
2017 - 2021

Manage retail operations, sales, marketing, customer service and an
employee teamn of 12 as well as DOT regulations and safety compliance.

Amerigas, Phoenix, AZ
Western Region Manager

2014-2017

Managed operating expenses, cost effective quality product &
marketing programs throughout the Western Region. Managed and
ensured compliance with safety codes & policies as well as staffing &
development including employee Customer Service skills &
management.,

SKILLS

New Business Development
Conflict Resolution '
Budgeting

Leadership

Efficiencies

Safety Management

AWARDS

2009 - Western Region; Regibn
of the Year

2010 - Western Region,;
Packaging Cost vs. Budget

2011 - Northeast Region;
Packaging Cost vs. Prior Year,
EBITA, Region of the Year, Eagle
Award for Packaging Cost vs.
Prior Year, Patriotic Ernployee
Recognition

2012 - Northeast Region;
Packaging Cost vs, Budget,
Packaging Cost vs. Prior Year,
Qutstanding Productivity,
Region of the Year, Eagle Award
for Packaging Cost vs. Prior Year

2014 - Western Regio;
Outstanding Safety
Performance, Outstanding
Productivity Results



Amerigas, Northfield, NH & Gardena, CA
Operations Manager

2009-2014

Managed operations at production facilities. Managed targe tearns of
employees at each facility including training in safety and compliance.

Amerigas, Northfield/Laconia, NH & Lewiston, ME
Operations Supervisor

2006-2002

Supervisor in ACE wash/fill facilitics, Managed district and area
deliveries as well as a team of ernployees which includes training in
various taslks and salety protocols.

EDUCATION

Andover Community College, Business Management
2001-2002 ‘

NH Technical Institute, Business Management
2003



CAITLIN
L-.EVE‘RONE

T -
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© r

SKILLS

Strategic Planning

Yerbal and written communication
People Management

Operations Management

Budget Management

EDUCATION

Saint Joseph's College of Maine
Standish, ME + 05/2012
Bachelor of Science: Physical
Education Teaching And Coaching

Littleton High School
Littieton, NH « 06/2008

High School Diploma

PROFESSIONAL SUMMARY

Collaborative leader with dedication to partnering with cowarkers to
promote engaged, empowering work culture. Documented strengths
in building and maintaining relationships with diverse range of
stakeholders in dynamic, fast-paced settings.

WORK HISTORY

Tri-County Community Action Program - Guardianship Director
(Trainee)
Whitefield, NH « 01/2024 - Current

« Enhanced team collaboration through regutar communication, goal
setting, and performance evaluations.

« Worked closely with organizational leadership and board of
directors to guide operational strategy.

o Cultivated a positive work environment that fostered emptoyee
engagement, increased retention rates, and boosted overall team
morale.

s Strengthened internal controls by reviewing existing polictes and
procedures, ensuring compliance with regulatory requirements.

Town Of Littleton - Parks & Recreation Director
Littleton, NH « 07/2021 - 1012023

« Fostered a positive work culture among employees through, team-
building, and transparent communication practices.

o Evaluated program success by analyzing participant feedback and
making necessary adjustments to improve future offerings.

« Promoted interest in recreational activities such as community
outings and arts and crafts through consistent posts on social
media platforms.

» Developed strategic plans for facility improvements, ensuring safe
and accessible spaces for all participants.

+ Developed annual budgets and provided monthly reports to
efficiently use financial resources.

s Secured grant funding for special projects or initiatives to enhance
community recreational opportunities further.

Adventure Ready Brands {Tender Corporation) - Marketing
Specialist
Littleton, NH - 01/2021 - 07/2021

« Streamlined communication processes, leading to improved
collaboration between departments,

« Liafsed between internal creative teams and agencies for branding
ideas, graphic designs and promotional materials,



« Collaborated closely with graphic designers, subject matter
expérts (SMEs}) and technical staff to produce compliant, on-time
proposals,

« Worked closely with in-house design team to develop visuals for

content.

Adventure Ready Brands (Tender Corporation) - Assistant Product

Manager
Littleton, NH « 01/2019 - 01/2021

» Enhanced preduct performance by conducting thorough market
research and competitor analysis.

o Worked closely with R&D teams on new product innovation,
resulting in a steady pipeline of promising concepts for future
development.

s Supported sales teams with training materials and presentations,
boosting their knowledge of product offerings and enhancing their
ability to sell effectively.

« Monitored inventory levels closely to maintain optimal stock
availability for customers without overstocking or creating
obsolescence issues.

Adventure Ready Brands (Tender Corporation) - Document Control

Specialist
Littleton, NH » 10/2016 - 01/2019

« Maintained version control for all documents, ensuring that only
the most recent updates were in circulation at any given time.

« Maintained document control system and updated work
instructions, procedures and associated databases.

o Provided assistance withinbound and outbound document
processes, document sorting, logging, and work order creation.

« Facilitated timely project completion by managing the distribution
of essential documentation to project team members.

« Enhanced data accuracy by performing regular audits on
documentation and records. A

Adventure Ready Brands (Tender Corporation) - Special Handting

Shipper
Littleton, NH « 03/2016 - 10/2016

« Picked orders, scanned products and packed boxes.

« Checked shipments against paperwork and signed documents.

« Assisted in maintaining a safe working environment by following
established workplace safety guidelines.

» Developed strong relationships with carriers, leading to improved
communication and more efficient problem-solving capahilities.

« Trained new team members on company shipping processes,
enhancing overall department performance.

s Ensured regulatory compliance by properly labeling shipments,
adhering to safety protacois, and maintaining dacumentation.

Olympia Sports Inc, - Store Manager/Store Manager Trainee

Multiple « 10/2014 - 1012015

» Managed daily operations to ensure smooth functioning of the
store, maintaining a clean, safe environment for customers and

employees.
+ Managed inventory control, cash control, and stare opening and



closing procedures, :

« Addressed customer complaints promptly and professionalty,
resolving issues to maintain positive relationships with clientele.

+ Managed store employees successfully in fast-paced environment
through proactive communication and positive feedback.

s Assisted with hirlng, training and mentoring new staff members.

Hannaford Supermarket - Assistant Bakery Manager
Hampton, NH - 08/2013 - 11/2014

¢ Managed department inventories by tracking sales and ordering
product and supplies to meet customer demands, drive sales and
reach company gross profit goals. ]

« Developed and implemented new operational procedures to
reduce waste, resulting in cost savings for the department.

s Enhanced customer satisfaction by providing exceptional service
and handling special requests for bakery products,

« Taught specialized skills, methods and techniques and delegated
assighments to bakery associates to maximize department
productivity and profits.

» Oversaw daily production tasks such as mixing doughs, baking
breads and pastries, decorating cakes - ensuring consistency and
high quality across all products.

s Participated in regular quality control checks on bakery items,
ensuring consistent taste, appearance, and freshness across the

board.

NON-PROFIT

Franconia Children’s Center: Board Member 2024-Present
o Toys for Tots: Coordinator 2021-2023

v Friends of Remich Park: Member 2021-2023

» Littleton Dog Park Committee: Co-Chairman 2019-Present



NH Department of Health and Human Services

KEY PERSONNEL

List those primarily responsible for meeting the terms and conditions of the agreement.

Job descriptions not required for vacant positions.

Contractor Name:

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.

NAME

CA esime LT

. .4~ - ANNUAL: |
... | AMOUNTPAID. -
71.- FROMTHIS -
‘| CONTRACT

- SALARY.

Jeanne Robillard Chief Executive Officer $0.00 $132,000.00
Randall Pilotte Chief Financial Officer $0.00 $94,160.00
Brenda Gagne Chief Program Officer $0.00 $80,000,00
Scoft Boisvert Department Head $8,450.00 |. $65,000.00
Caitlin Leverone Program Director $50,000.00 |- $50,000.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Lori A, Weaver 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 0330¢
Commissioner o, 6032719544  1-800-852-3345 Ext, 9544
Fax: 603-271-4332  TDD Access: 1-800.735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov
Katfa 8. Fax
Director

May 22, 2024

His Exceliency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

.Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behaviora| Heaith,
to enter into Sole Soiirce contracts with the contractors listed below in an amount not to exceed
$3,772,919 to provide public guardianship services for individuals with mental illness or
developmental disabilities or adulls requiring protective services, with the aption to renew for up
to one (1) additional year, effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval through
June 30, 2025. 5% Federal Funds. 95% General Funds.

Contractor Name Vendor Code Area Served Contraciﬁmount
Office of Public Guardian .
. {Concord, NH) 166528-B001 Statewide 53,073,.43?
Tri-County Community
Action Program, Inc. (Tri- . . ‘
County CAP) , 177195-8009 Statewide . $699,482
(Berlin, NH)
Total: $3,772,919

Funds are available in the foliowing accounts for State Fiscal Year (2025), wilth the
authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrancas between state
fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified,

See attached fiscal details.

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source bacause the Contractors are the only contractors able to
provide the necessary services, RSA 547-B eslablishes the Public Guardianship and Protection
Program for guardianship services ta be provided per NH RSA 135-C:60 and NH RSA 171-A:10.
NH RSA 547-8B:6 requires the Department to contract with one or more organizations that the
New Hampshire Supreme Courthas designated as a public guardianship and protection program,
The Office of the Public Guardian and Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc. are the only
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His Excellancy, Govemor Chdslogﬁer T. Sununu
and tha Honorable Council
Page 20of2

organlzatlons the New Hampshire Supreme Court has designated as public guardianship and
.- protaction programs.

The purpose of this request is to provide guardianship serv:ces statewide, for individuals

with mental illness or developmental disabilities, as well as mcapacnated adults who are abused,

-neglected, or exploited, which leaves them al risk of substantial harm becauss of their inability to
provide for their own food, shelter, health care, safely, or to manage their personal affairs.

Approximately 850 indiiridua!s will'be served during State Fiscal Year 2025.

These services are neoessary to meet the. State's statutory obligations to safeguard -
incapacitated individuals who are in state institutions as well as in community mental health and
developmental service programs, statewide. Services provided to ensure that the guardianships
are maintained and limited in accordance with the standards based on RSA 484-A, \

Contracted services include mentoring and training.services for family members who are
willing to serve as guardian but require a period of support. Provndlng this support may remove
the need for public guardianship in these cases, which results in a fiscal savings due to not-
neading to engage permanent -public guardianship services. The Contractors agree t0 seek
reimbursement from other payer sources, including social security, when providing guardianship
and protection services.

As referanced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the attached

agreements, the parties have the aption td extend the agreements far-up to one (1) additional

- year, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the
partiss, and Governor and Coungil approval.

Should'the Govemar and Council not authorize this request, the Department would be out”
of compliance with the requirements of NH RSA 135-C: 60; NH RSA 171-A: 10, II; and NH RSA
161-F; 52, Addltnonany individuals with mental illness, developmental disabilities and
incapacitated adulls who are abused, néglected or exploited, would be Jeft at greater risk of harm
because of their inability to provide their own food shelter, health care, safety, or to manage their
parsonal affairs.

Saurce of Federal Funds: Assustance Listing Number #93. 667 FAIN #2401NHSOSR

in the evant that the Federal Funds become no Eonger available, additional General Funds

will be requested {o support this program.
Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Weaver
Commissioner

-~

The Department of Health and Human Services” Mission iz to join communities gnd familiea
0 providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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Office of Public Guardian .y S \
State | T -~ , 4
Class/ . : 5, _ . .
Fiscal , Class Title : Job Number] Current Budget
Year Acc_ount . )
2025 J102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92204114 $1,479,905 00|
‘ _Subtotall  $1,479,905.00)
Tri-County Comminity Action Program, Inc. ' :
State Ciass / ' : - .
Fiscal as "Class Title [Job Number| Current Budget
Year | - Account B .
2025 |102-500731 Contracts for Prog Sve 92204114 $699,482 .00
) Subtotal $699,482.00

Office of Public Guardian - } . . -~ L.
05-95-48-{381010-925_5HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT,
JHHS: ELDERLY & ADULT SVCS DIV, GRANTS FOR SOCIAL SVC PROG. SOCIAL SERVICES

BLOCK GRANT
State Class/ ' )
Fiscal Class Title Job Number| Current Budget -
Year Account .
2025 ]074-500589 | GRANTS FOR PUB ASST AND REL [ 48130201 $177,394
' ' Subtotal $177,394

- {Office of Public Guardian . ) )

05-95-93-930010-5947 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH'AND HUMAN SVCS DEPT,
HS: DLTSS-DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, PROGRAM SUPPORT

State | es!
Fiscal . . - Class Title Job Number| Current Budget
Account : : ;
Year . ‘ :
2025 |102-500731 ‘Contracts for Prog Sve 93005947 $1,416,138 _
' : : Subtotal $1,416,138}
Grand Total| ~ $3,772,919
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Subject:’ Guardianship Services (SS-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-02)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become publ:c upon submissien to Governor and
Executive Council for approvai Any information that is privale, confidential or proprietary must

be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire.and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS S
i. IDENTIFICATION. .
1.} State Agency Nanle ‘ I.2 State Agency Address
. . ° 129 Pléasant Street

MNew Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services Concord, NH 03301-3857
1.3 Conlractor Name 14 Contractor Address -

Tri-County Community Action Program, Inc.(Tri- Cnunty CAP) |30 Exchange Street
" Berlm NH 03570

T4

bewSIgncd by

Joanms &MUN.A Date:5/22/2024 Jeanne Robillard CEO

1.5 Contractor Phione  * 1.6 Account Unit and Class 1.7 Completton Date 1.8 Price Limitation
- Number TBD $699,482

(603) 750-3010 - 6/30/2025 ,

1.9 Contracting Officer for Stale.Agency .1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

Raberl W-Moore, Director (603) 271-9631

.11 Contractor Signature , 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

J 1.13  State Agency :gﬁamre .1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
Docusigned by: |

K‘dy. S Fox ) Date:

5/23/2024 Katja S. Fox. Director

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)

By: o . Director, On:

kl.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

DocuSigned by:
By: [-—/5%% Gt . on: 5/23/2024

DAL

117 Approval by the Govemor and Executive Counml (if upplicable)

G&C Item number G&C Meclmg Date

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

~—

Y

. . . s -
' . o Page 1 of 4 : . ‘ Je
‘ - Contractor Initials

Date 5/22/2024
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of New
Hampshire,- acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
(“State™), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Conlractor™)
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work of sale of
goods, or both, identificd and more particularly deseribed in the
“attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated hcrcm by reference
(“Semces")

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the’

conlrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council
approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effectiveon the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
{(“Effective Date™).

3.2 If the Contraclor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreeme}ﬂ does not become effective, the
State shall have no [liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any | costs
incurred or Services performed. .

3.3 Contractor must complete al! Semces by the Completion Date
speciﬁed in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF ACREEMEN
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availobility and continued appropriation of funds. In na event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available sppropriated funds, In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or éxecutive action that reduces, eliminates or othenrwise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part,
the Siate shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reducticn or termination. The
State shall not be required (o transfer funds ffom any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds

. in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYME

3.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of paym em
are identified and more particularly described in EXH[BJT c
which is'incorperated herein by reference. -
-5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement. to}the
cortrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
.hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation sct forth in block 1.8, The
payment by the Statc of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nalure incurred by the Contractor in the performdnce

Page 2 of 4

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensal:on 1o the,
Contractor for the Services.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offsct from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-¢ or any other provision of law,

5.4 The State’s liability under this Agreement shall be limited ta
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid, The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific ~
performiance or other equitable-temedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with’ the performance of the "Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, stale, county or municipal
authorities which impose eny obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employmenlopponumty faws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. 1In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the

“United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal

executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the Uniled States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shalt also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws.

6.2 Buring the term of this Agreement, the Confractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, reltgxous crecd national origin,
gender identity, or ‘gender expression, and will take affirmative
action lo prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors
comply with these nondiscrimination’ requirements.

6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contraclor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial |
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.

6.4. The Contractor agrees to' permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor’s books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rules, regulations and orders pertaining o the covenants, terms

and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL. . i

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that alf
personnel engaged in-the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicdble laws.

7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State’s poinl of contact pcrlammg to this -

Agreement. .
C
Contractor Initials

Date 5/22/2024
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8 EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES. ¢

8.1 Any.one or more of the following-acis or omissians of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder (“Event
of Defaul™):

8.1.1 Failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;

£.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or

8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
" this Agreement. . '

8.2 Upon the oceurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, Of more, or all, of the following actions:

8.2.1 give the Contractor a wrillen notice spec1fymg the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specnt' ication of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely
cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after gw:ng the Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a wiitten notice specifying the Evcnl of
Default and suspending all paymenis to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise acerue to the Contractor during the peried from
the dalg of such notice until such time as the State determines that
the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contiractor;

8.2.3 give the Contracter a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Defauli; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contracter 4 written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breachéd, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both,

9. TERMINATION.

9.} Notwithstanding paragroph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
part, by thirty (30} calendar days written notice to the Contractor
" that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State’s discretion, deliver io the Contracting Officer,
not later than fifleen (15) calendar days afler.the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report™) descnbmg in detail
all Services performed, and the contract price eamed, to and
including the date of tefmination. In addition, at the State’s
discretion, the Contractar shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
teansition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “Property” shall mean
al) data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this’
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulag, surveys,, maps, charts, sound recordings, video_
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouis, notes,
}etters, niemoranda, papers, and documents, all whether finished or
unfinished. .

.o ‘ ' Page 3 of 4

+

s .

(0:2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpese under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned

- to the State upon demand or upon termmancm of this Agreement

for any reason. )
10.3 Disclosure of data, mformalmn and other records shall be
governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other ‘applicable law.
Dlsclosure requires prior written approval of lhe State.

11, CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE., Inthe
performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respeets an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees,
agents or members shall have authonty {o bind ihe State or receive
any benefits, workers’ compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees. ’

12. ASS]GNMENT/DELEGAT]ONISUBCONTRACTS

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
{15} calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the'written consent of the State.

£2.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. “Change of Control” means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or siniilar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contracior, or {b) the sate of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor, '

_12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted byuthe Coptractor

withous prior wrilten notice and consent of the State, ~

12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
ass:gnmenl agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agrecmcm to which it
is not a party. -

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expcnses mc[ud:ng,
without limitation, reasonable atiomeys’ fees, nnsmg out of or
velating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal  injury, property damage, inteftectual  property
infringement, or othercimms asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions|of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Conltractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 13, Notwithstanding the foregomg, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a-waiver of the Stale’s
sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved 1o the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination, .
of this Agreemenl.

1

C
Contraclor Initials .

Date 5/22/2

024
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14. INSURANCE.

. 141 The Contractor ‘shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
. continuously maintain in foree, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to oblain and maintain in force, the following
insurance: : T .
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against ali claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,00.0,'000.per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and ’

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Properiy
subject to subparagraph. [0.2 herein, in an amount not Jess than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.

14,2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued
by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire., _
143 The Centractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a_certificate(s) of

insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the’

reguest of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall’ provide certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement, The cerlificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals- thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION. = - :
15.] By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the- requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A (“Workers’
Compensation”}. : .
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcentractor or assignee 1o secure and maintain, payment of
Workers’ Compensation in.connection with activities which the
parson proposes to undenake purswant-to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall fumish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H, RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers’ Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contracior, or any subcontractor or employee of
-Contractor, which might arise. under applicable State of New
Hampshire Workers® Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16.-WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right'of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. AnSr notice by a.party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of

mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post _

Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2
and | 4, herein. -
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18, AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the partics
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and -Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required uader the
circumstarices pursuant to State law, rule or policy. '

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. ~
19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed

in accordange with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except |

where the Federal supremacy -clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and.no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.

19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

2). CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between
the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreément including any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P<37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES, This Agreemént is being entered into for
the sole benefil of the padties herelo, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is.intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy: of any natere upon any other person,

12. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for”
reference purposes only, and the words comtained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement,

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along iwith its
agents and affiliates, shall, a1 its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further acliens as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITY, In the event ony of the provisions of this
Apreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be -
contrary 1o any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be -
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, comstitutes the entire agreement and
understanding  belween the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject malter

hereaf.
) 8s
+ Contractor InitialsE
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New Ham pshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

EXHIBIT A

Revisi_ons to Standard Agreement Provisior_rs

1. Revisions to Form P-37, Genera[ Provisions

1.1.

1.2,

1.3.

Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as fotlows

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
State of New Hampshire, this Agreement, and ali obligations of the ~
parties hereunder shall become effective on July 1, .2024 {* Effectwe '
Date”).

Paragraph 3, Effective DatelCompletlon of Services, is amended by deletmg
subparagraph 3.3 in its entirety and replacing it as follows:

3.3. Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date specified
in block 1.7. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to one (1)
additional year from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory

" delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
approval of the Governor and Executiveé Council. .

Paragraph 12, AssugnmenUDe!egatlon/Subcontracts is amended by addmg
subparagraph 12.5 as follows: .

12.5. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual condmons as the |
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreemerits with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,.
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability. and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shali be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and -nofify the State of any inadequate.

. subcontractor performance

D3
$S-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-02 A12 | ‘ Contractor Initials C
Tr-County Community Action Program, Inc. (Tri-Cou-n!y CAPWPage 1of 1 Date 5/22/2024
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EXHIBIT B

2

1. Statement of Work

Scope of-Services

1.1." The Contractor must provide public guardianship and protection services to ,
individuals who, because of functional limitations, have suffered, are suffering,
or are likely to suffer substantial harm due to an inability to:

1.1.1. Provide pérsonal needs for food, clothing, sheltef, health care or

safety; or

1.1.2. . Manage their property or financial affairs.
1.2, Scope of Work Applicable to all Guardianship Services

1.2.1.

1.2.2.

- 123,

©1.2.4.

1.2.5°

' 128.

1.2.7.

For the purposes of this Agreement ward shall mean the individual for
whom guardianship of the individual and/or estate is appointed by the
New.Hampshire Circuit Court - Probate Division.

The - Contractor must provide public guardianship and protection
services to persons at risk of harm to themselves, their estates or both
the person and estate, for whom the State of New Hampshire has a
responsibility to safeguard pursuantto New Hampshire (NH) Revised

- Statutes Annotated (RSA) 135-C:60, Guardianship; and NH RSA

171-A:10, Residential Services; Legal Counsel and Guardianship.

The Contractor must provide public guardianship services to persens
in Section 1.2.2,, statewide, in accordance with NH RSA 464-A,
Guardians and Conservators and NH RSA 547-B, Public
Guardianship and Protection Program, which include ‘appointments
as guardian, conservator, or temporary guardian of the person andfor - -

" éstateof a ward,

The Contractor must provide protéction services to persons in Section -

- 1.2.2,, statewide, that include actions necessary to carry out the

duties as a duly designated representative or protective payee; client
representative; attorney-in-fact; or othet similar agent, as prescribed
by applicable law, rule, or agreement, .

The Centractor must provide services to individuals only upon
receiving prior approval from the Department of -Health and Human
Services (Department), Office of Client and Legal Services.

The Contractor must refer clients to the Disability Rights Center.- NH,
the New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other attorney when referrals
from the Departments Office of Client and Legal Services for
guardianship and protection services may be inappropriate, in order
that an administrative appeal, or other appropriate Jegal action, can,
be taken on behalf of the client. ' - .

The Contracter must direct any referrals for' individuals rhadf ﬁs the

5§5-2025-DBH-04-GUARD.02 . B-2.0 . Contractor Initials

Tr-County Community Action Program, Inc. (Tri-County CAP) Page T of 11 . Date
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New Hampshlre Department of Health and Human Services

Guardianship Serwces

EXHIBIT B

1.2.8. The Contractor shall not be reimbursed by the Départment for
services in the event the Contractor provides guardianship and
protection services to individuals who are not screened and approved
by the Department's Office of Client and Legal Services, unless the
Contractor: .- !
1.2.8.1. Provides documientation satisfactory to the Department that -

circumstances not within the control of the Contractor
occurred -and the Contractor made reasonable efforts 'to
, decline the guardianship appointments;
1.2.8.2. Includes documentation of the efforts made to decline
guardianship appointments with its monthly invoices; and
1.2.8.3. The State has respons;b:hty to safeguard the person
purstant to RSA 135-C:60, RSA 171-A: 10 (.
- 1.2.9.- The Contractor must provide guardianship and protection services to
' s individuals as defined in Section 1.2.2., in accordance with the
“Standards of Practice” and “A Model Code of Ethics for Guardians”
developed by the National Guardlanshlp Association. -
1.2.9.1. 'Notwithstanding the ethics and standards for guardians
" cited in Section 1.2.9., for monthly visits, the Contractor
must make quarterly face—to-face visits with .the ward or
more frequent visits as required in individual circumstances,
-in accordance with Contractor's accepted practice.
1.2.9.2. -The Contractor must attempt to have a video conference, or
telephone contact if technology for a video conference is not
available, with the ward in.the instance the ward js out of the
State of New Hampshire for more than six (6) months and it
would not be feasible for the Contractor to see the ward
face-to-face on the basis outlined in Section 1.2.9. above..
1.2.9.3. The Contractor may suspend face-to-face visits required by
. ~ Section 1.2.9.1. until an alternative plan can be de@ed

5§5-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-02 82,0 . Contractor Initials
Tri-County Community Action Program, In¢. {Tri-County CAP) Page 2 of 11 Date

"
Contractor - for guardianship and protection services to the
Déepartment’s Office of Client and Legal Services when referrals are

received from agencies that include, but are not limited to:

1.2.7.1. Glencliff Home. -

' 1.2.7.2. New Hampshire Hospltal

1.2.7.3. Community agencies in the mental health system
1.2.7.4. Agencies in the developmental services system.
1.2,7.5. Agencies in'the adult and elderly system.

5/22/2024
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EXHIBIT B

1,.2.10-.
. otherwise reduce the scope of a guardianship over an individua!

1.2.11.

1.2.12,

1.2.13.

1.2.14.

- 1.2.15.

that maintains personal safety of all parties, if the ward
exhibits unsafe behavior or is in unsafe environmental or
public health conditions, or is aggressive to the pomt of
physical harm to the-Contractor.

In any action brought in Circuit Court-Probate Division to limit or

served, the State shall appear with the Contractor where the State
agreesthatit is necessary to present the State's posnt:on on the action
proposed

Notwnthstanding the guardlanshrp services described herem the
Contractor must not provide mdwtduals with _any direct services,
which'include:

1.2.11.1. Psychotherapy; ‘

1.2.11.2. Case management;.
1.2.11.3. Transporation;
1.2.11.4. Financial aid; and

1.2.11.5. Other social services available through gévernmental or,
nonprofit agenmes

“

The parties agree that the Contractor has responsmmnes as an
independent decision-maker acting in a fiduciary capacity with
respect {o the individuals served and the decisions to be made on
behalf of individuals shall not be directed or influenced by the State..

The Contractor may provide gua-rduanshlp and protection services to.
individuals other than those who are referred for services pursuant to :
this Agreement, ensuring:

1.2.13.1. Pursuant to NH RSA 547 B: 7,no funds provided under this
Agreement are expended for those persons; and

1.2.13.2. Sufficient records, which are subject to the Department's

examination, are included and ‘clearly document that the
funds receivéd under this Agreement are expended in
accordance with this Agreement.

The Contractor must accept and investigate complamts from the
Depaitment regarding services performed, including  the

circumstances pertaining to the :complaint, and ensure a. written -
.response containing the results of the investigation js submitted to the

Department no later than thirty (30) days from the date the complaint
is received by the Contractor

The Contractor must allow wards to participate in conner
J

© 88 2025 DBH01-GUARD-02 B-2.0 Cantraclorlnma!s
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EXHIBIT B

1.2.16.

. 1.3.  Guardianship Services

2 1.3.1.

1.3.2.

1.33.

1.3.4.

'1‘ 3.5,

- 1.3.5.4. Treatment. ' . [ jE“
- §5-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-02 ' B-2.0 © " Contractor Inltiats

Tri-County Community Acllon Program, Ing. (Tri-County CAP) Page 4 of 11 ) ©  Dale

. satisfaction surveys unless the Contractor provides written reasons to
. the Department that state why a particutar ward should not be allowed

to participate, subject to Department approval.

The Contractor agrees that if the performance of services involves the
collection, transmission, storage, or disposition of data on behalf of
the Department including substance use disorder {SUD) data created
by a Part 2 provider, the Contractor shall maintain the data subject to.

the redquirements stated in 45 CFR Part 2,
(

The Contractor agrees that the responsibilities referenced in Section
1.3 are contingent upon the actual authority granted in each individual
court order specifying the extent and scope of guardianship for each
individual ward. .

The Contractor must make decisions regarding the resndentlal and
day placement of each ward by utilizing:

1.3.2.1. The standards of least restrictive environment; and
1.32.2. Whatis in the best interests of the individual ward

The Contractor must ensure all legally necessary steps are taken to
enable the individual ward to receive comprehensive:

1.3.3.1. Evaluations; and
1.3.3.2. Treatment and services,) ]

The Contractor must advocate for and request all necessary and
appropriate services to which the ward is entitled in accordance with:

13.41. The ward's service and/or tréatment plan developed by the
mental health or developmental services agency,

1.3.42. The ward’s expressed preferences or best interests -
consistent with the Contractor's code of ethics and National
Guardianship Association Standards of Practice; and

1.3.4.3. Established Department standards and State law.

The Contractor must be available to give or withhold consent to
proposed care, when legally necessary, which includes, but is not

- limited to:

1.3.5.1. Medical care.
1 3.5.2. ~Professional care
1.3.5.3. Counseling.

5/22/2024
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EXHIBITB

1.3.6.

1.3.7.

1.3.8.

1.3.6.

’ ) 1-3-10-

1.3.5.5. Behavioral health services.
1.3.5.6. Changes to service and/or treatment plans.

1.3.5.7. Other clinically or légatly significant treatment plans or
services. . ‘

The Cc;ntractor must ensure the ward's civil fights-arc—z, protected within
-the context of the decision-making on behalf of the ward, while

refraining from unwarranted intrusion into the ife of the ward.

The Contractor must be available to make all decision as required by
RSA 464-A:26 and work collaboratively with the Department relative -
to any of the ward's debts owed to the State of New Hampshire, if the
Contractor is guardian of the ward's estate.

The Contractor must remain current of the facts or circumstances that

_may impact the decisions to perform “the“¥ifickions specified in

Subsection 1.3.

.The Contractor must-maintain appropriate contact with each ward to
ensure:services reflect the personal preferences, values, and desires
of the ward to the fullest extent possible in order (o make-informed
decisions on behalf of the ward. . :

The Contractor must obtain all available information. regarding the
ward or the ward's situation in order to be fully aware of all risks and
benefits of any proposed course of action, as well as any alternatives
that may exist when making decisions on behalf of the ward. The
Contractor, in addition fo having required personal contact with the ,
ward, may; S

1.3.10.1. Contact other important and significant people in the ward'’s
life; .

1.3.10.2. Interact with the ward'’s case manager; and

1.3.10.3. Interact with others who share responsibility for meeting the
needs of the ward. - . :

1.4. Guardianship and Protection Services

The Contracto} must accept all guardiaﬁship and protection services

1.4.1.

cases referred by the Department's Office of Client and Legal

. Services. ' - c . . ’
1.4.2. The Department must make every attempt to obtain a Release of

Information from the proposed client for the' Contractor, except where

prohibited from doing so by law. ) ) .
1.4.3. The Contractor must be involved in the screening process for-

. prot_ection cases, as appropriatef. or refer the client to the Ts?fility

' $5-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-02 , ' i B-2.0" - Conlractor Initials
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EXHIBITB

1.44.

1.4.5.

Rights Center - NH, New Hampshire Legal Assistance or other
attorney in-order that an administrative appeal or other appropriate
legal action can be taken on behalf of the client.

For persons referred to the Contractor by the Department's Office of .
Client and Legal Services pursuant to NH RSA 136-C:60 and NH RSA
171-A:10 II, the Contractor shall serve any current wards requiring -

‘guafdianship services as of the effective date of this Agréement as

well as any new persons referred for services, in accordance with
Section 1.4.1. above, for a total of up to 280 cases during the contract

period.

The Contractor must receive letters of approval for each new case

assigned to the Contractor by the Department’s Office of Client and
Legal Services.

1.5. Technical Assistance

1.5.1.

1.6. Staffing

1.6.1.

1.6.2.

The Contractor may provide technical aesistance_-to private guardians
on the duties of a guardian. or training to staff that provide direct
services to wards who are clients of the Department, which includes:

-1.5.1.1. Area agency steff; and
"1.5.1.2. Mental health staff.

The Contractor must ensure staff providing guardlanshlp sennces _
successfully complete a minimum of 20 hours of orientation training.

The Contractor must ensure staff providing guardianship services
successfully complete a minimum of 10 hours of continuing
education, annually.

A Background Checks

.1.7.1. Prior to permitting any individual to provide services under this-
Agreement, the Contractor must ensure that said individual has
undergone:

1.7.4.1. A criminal background check at the Contractor’s expense and

has no convictions for crimes that represent evidence of
behavior that could endanger individuals served under this -~
Agreement;

1.7.1.2. A name search of the Department's Bureau of Elderly and Adult

Services (BEAS) State Registry, pursuant to RSA 161-F:49, with
results indicating no evidence of behavior that could endanger
individuals served under this Agreement; and )

1.8. . Confi dential Data

1.8.1.

$5-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-02 : . 820 . Contragtor Initiats
Tri-Caunty Community Action Program, ine. (Td-County CAP) Page &aof " . Dala

.The Contractor must meet all information security andl ‘nkacy

572772024



DocuSign Envelope ID: D762196D-382F-4442-BB2B-C5B0AC 184686

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services’

~Guardianship Services )
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182,

requirements as set by the Department and in accordance with the
Department's Information Security Requirements Exhibit as
referenced below. '

" The Contractor must ensure any individuals invblved in delivering

services.through this Agreement contract sign an attestation agreeing -
to access, view, store, and discuss Confidential Data in accordance
with federal and state laws and regulations and the Depaitment's
Information Security Requirements Exhibit. The Contractor must
ensure said individuals have a'justifiable business need to access
confidential data. The Contractor must provide attestations upon

Department request.

1.9. Privacy Impact Assessment

“1.8.1,

1.9.2,

Upon request, the Contractor must allow and assist the Department
in conducting a Privacy Impact Assessment (PiA) of - its -
system(s)/application(s)web portal(s)iwebsite(s) or Department

“system(s)/application{s)web portal(s)/website(s) hosted by the

Contractor, if Personally Identifiable information (Pll} is collected,
used, accessed, shared, or stored. To conduct the PIA the Contractor
must provide the Department actess to applicable systems and
documentation sufficient to allow the Department to assess, at
minimum, the following: '

1.9.1.1, How Pll is gathered and stored; b
191.2. Who will have access to PlI;
" 1.9.1.3, How Pl will be used in the system;
1.9.14. How individual consent will be achieved and revoked;
and '
1.9.1.5. Privacy practices.

The Department may conduct ?follow-up PlAs in the event there are
either significant process changes or new technologies impacting the
collection, processing or storage of PII. .

- 1.10. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

1.10.1.

General Requirements

1.10.1.9.  If applicable, upon termination or expiration of the
+ Agreement the parties agree to cooperate in good faith fo
effectuate a smooth secure transition of the Services from

the Contractor to the Department and,“if applicable, the

~ Contractor engaged by the Department to assume the

Services previously performed by the Contractor for this

section the new Contractor shall be kn as

5§85-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-02 B-2.0 Gonlraclor Initizls
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“Recipient”). Ninety (80) days prior to the end-of the
contract or unless otherwise specified by the Department,
the Contractor must begin working with the Department
and if applicable, the new Recipient to develop a Data

- Transition Plan (DTP). The Department shal! provide the
DTP template to the Contractor. .

~4.10.4.2. The Contractor must use reasonable efforts to assist the

' Recipient, in connection. with the transition from the

performance of Services by the Contractor and its End

Users to the performance of such Services. This may

v include assistance with the secure transfer of records

' (electronic and hard copy), transition of historical data

(electronic and hard copy), the transition of any such

" Service from -the hardware, software, network and

telecommunications equipment and internet-retated

information technology -infrastructure (‘internal IT

Systems”) of Contractor to the Internal IT Systems of the

Recipient and cooperation with and assistance to any

third-party consultants engaged by Recipient in
connection with the Transition Services. ‘

1.10.1.3. If a system, database, hardware, software, and/or
software ficenses (Tools) was purchased or created to

\manage, track, and/or. store Department Data in

" relationship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried

and returned to the Department, along with the inventory

document, once transition of Department Data is

complete. '

1.10.14. The intérnal planning of the Transition Services by the
Contractor and its End Users shall be provided to the
Department and if applicable the Recipient in a timely
" manner. Any such Transition Services shall be deemed
- to be Services for purposes of this Agreement.

~1.10.1.5.  Should the data Transition extend beyond the end of the
o ' Agreement, the Contractor agrees that the Information
Security Requirements, and if applicable, the
Department’s Business Associate Agreement terms and
conditions remain In effect until the Data Transition is
accepted as complete by the Department.

1.10.1.6. In the event where thé Contractor has cominglted
/ Department Data and the destruction or Transition of said
data is not feasible, the Department and Contractor will

jointly evaluate regulatory and professional stan rjis for

B

$5-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-02 82.0 Contractor [nilials = .
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o " retention requirements prior to destruction, refer to the
terms and conditions of the Department's DHHS
_Information Security Requirements Exhibit. §

1.110.2. ° Completion of Transition Services

1.10.2.1. - Each service or Transition phase shall be deemed
completed (and the Transition process finalized) at the
end of 15 business days after the product, resulting from
the Service, is delivered to the Department and/or the
Recipient in accordance with the mutually agreed upon
Transition plan, unless within said 15 business day term
the Contractor notifies the Department of an issue
requiring additional time to complete said product. * -

1.10.2.2.  Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the

: . Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data per the
terms and conditions of the Department's information
Secufity Requirements Exhibit. :

1103, Disagreement over Transition Services Results

1.10.3.1.  In the event the Department is not satisfied with the
results of the Transition Service, the Department shall
notify the Contractor, in writing, stating the reason for the
lack -of satisfaction within 15 business days of the final
product or at any time during the data Transition progess.
The Parties shall discuss the actions to be taken to
resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is not
reached, at any time the Department shall be entitled to
. Initiate actions in accordance with the Agreement.

2. Exhibits incorporated

2.1.

2.2,

2.3,

The Contractor must comply with all E_xhibit’D Federal Reduiremen(s, which
are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. '

. The Contractor must manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
-accordance with the terms of Exhibit £, DHHS Information Security

Requirements. :

‘The Contractor must use and disclose Protected Healtri Information in

compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability, and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit F, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

!

C
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3. Additional Terms .
. 31. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

’

3.2

3141,

The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders ‘may have an impact on the” Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify. Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therewith. . :

Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Agppropriate Programs and Services ' .

3.2.1.

The Contractor must submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Date, a detailed description of the communication access
and language assistance services to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs andfor services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss: individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.’ o

« 3.3.. Credits and Copyright. Ownership

3.3.1.

©3.32.

3.3.3.

“All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other

materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement must include the following statement, “The
preparation’ of- this {report, document etc.) was financed under an

- Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and

Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New

- Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or

required, e.g.; the United States Department of Health and Human
Services." .

All materials produced or purchased under the Agreem"ent must have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use, E

The "Department must retain copyright ownership for any and ali
original materials produced, including, but not limited to: '

3.3.3.1, Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories.
3.3.3.3,  Protocols or guidelines.
3.3.3.4.  Posters. '

3.3.3.5 ' Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor must not reproduce any materials produced undeon; the
" Agreerment without prior written approval from the Departmerft. i
ss-éoz&osnpmumn-oz _ ' B-2.0 ) Contraclor Inilials M—
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4. Records

41

4.2.

4.3.

bl

The Contractor must keep records that include, but are not limited to:”

4.1.1.

Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the

~ Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income recelved

4.1.2.

or collected by the Contractor.
Al records must be maintained in accordance \'Nith accounting

" procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
~ costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and.

to include, without limitation, -all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of.costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,

requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,

labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Deparlrnent

During the term of this Agreement- and the p'eriod for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives: must have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of “audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. . .

If, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department must disaliow
any expenses claimed by the-Contractor as costs hereunder, the Department
retains the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such expenses as
are dlsallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

§8-2025-0BH-01-GUARD-02 ) ’ .B-20 ~ Contractor Initials E
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services.
Guardianship Services .
' EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by:
-~ 1.1. 100% General funds.
2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:
2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordanée with 2 CFR 200.331.
2.2, The Agreement as NON R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. The Depaﬁment shall pay the Contractor a per diem, per case rate for services
* provided in fulfilment of this Agreement, as follows:-

3.1. The per diem rembursement rate for the provision of guard:anshlp over
the person services or guardianship over ‘the estate services, as
approved by the Office of Client and Legal Services for all Bureau of
Mental Health Services or Bureau of Developmental Services clients
shall be $6.81 per ward, per day, for up to 280 clients and as follows:.

3:1.1. The Department will reimburse the Contractor at $6,81 per ward
per day when the Contractor provides guardianship over the.
person. '

3.2. The hourly reimbursement rate for the prowsxon of technical assistance
shall be $60.00, not to exceed the amount of $2,000.

“3.3. The hourly reimbursement rate for the provision of tram:ng shall be
$60 00, not to exceed the amount of $1,500. : '

4. The Contractor shall seek reimbursement from other payer sources when
providing public guardianship and protection services as-described in Section
1.2.4 of Exhibit B, Scope of Services. The Department shall not reimburse for

- services under thlS Agreement for protection services described in Section
1.2.4 of Exhibit B, Scope of Services.

'5. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
- the month in.which the services were prowded The Contractor shall ensure

. each invoice: .

‘5.1, Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
: " New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

5.2. |s submitted in a form that is prowded by or othenmse acceptable fo the |

Department
5.3. Identifies and requests payment for services provuded the previous
* month. :
5.4. Incfudes supporting documentation with each invoice that may incggjde.
but are not limited to, time sheets, as applicable. X
§5-2025-DBH-01-GUARD-02 c2.1 _ Canlractor Inltials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Guardianship Services .
EXHIBIT C

5.5. ls completed, dated and returned-to the Department with the supporting *
-documentation » as applicable, to initiate payment.

5.6. Is assigned an.electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
4 and is ematled to dhhs:dbhinvoicesmhs@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

Financial Manager

Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Strest . o

Concord, NH 03301 ’ . - ‘

6. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
- of receipt of each invoice -and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

7. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall.
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days afier the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date,

8.  Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within. the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between Stale Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive- Council, if needed and
justified. ‘

9. Audits . ‘ J
9.1.The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

. _ ' C 911 Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
,, ’ federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuantto 2 CFR Part .
‘ 200, during the most recently completed fiscal year.

9.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant fo the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, Ill-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations. : =

9.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a_publiclcompany and required
by Security and Exchange Commission {SEC) regulations fo
. submit an annual financial audit. :

9.2.  If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single .
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
‘to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, , conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform

C
§5,2025-DBH-01-GUARD-02 . . C-2.1 . Contraclor Infliafs
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New Ham pshlre Department of Health and Human Services
Guardianship Services

o : " EXHIBITC

' Administrative 'Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

9.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings -
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports .on the status of
|mplementat|on of the corrective action plan.

9.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
, annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
' days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

9.4. Any Contractor that receives an amount equal to or greater than
$250,000 from the Department during a single fi scal year, regardiess
of the funding source, may be required, at a minimum, to submit annual
financial audits performed by an independent CPA if the Department's
risk assessment determination indicates the Contractor is high-risk.

9.5. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement, it is understoad and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the
Agreement to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an except:on

—

-

b3 .
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
. , Exhibit D — Federal Requirements

SECTION A: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions

of Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle Dt 41 -
Ltus.C.701et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's represéntative, as identified in Sections

1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foliowing Cedtification; ‘

AL‘TER‘NATIVE-I - FOR CONTRACTORS OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF.HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This centification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free .
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.8.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31;
1589 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federa! Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by contractors (and by inference, sub- contractors), prior to -
award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 301 7.630(c) of the regulation provides that
a contractor (and by inference, sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the
Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each Agreement during the federal fiscal
year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is 3 material representation of fact upon
which reliance is placed when the agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or
government wide suspension or debarment. Contractars using this form should send it to:

Commissioner )

NH Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. - The Contractor certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.Publishing a statement rictifying employees that the unlawfu! manufacture; distribution, -
- dispensing, podsession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
warkplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
“prohibition; B ' :
1.2, Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees abou!
1.2.1. - The dangers of drig abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The Contractor's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

. 1.2.4. - The penalties that may bhe imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring
" in the warkplace; . : _

1.3. Making it a requirement that each. efiployee to be engaged in the performance of the
Agreement be given a capy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the Agreement, the employ_ee wilt .

+

1.4.1, Abide by the terms of the statement; ahd

14.2. Notify‘tﬁe employer in writing of his or her conviction for a viotation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after sucﬁ?#nviction;

v16/23 . . 'Exhibit D ~ Contraclor's EnitialsL e
Federal Requirements Dale

Page 1 of 10
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New Hampshire Departﬁient of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D — Federal Requirements

1.5. Nétifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
-subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction,
Employers of convicted emplayees must provide noticé, including position title, to every contract
officer on whose contract activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal
agericy has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected Agreement; - :

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

. 1.6.1. ' Taking appropriate personnel action agalinst such an employee, up to and including
' : termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, a

amended; or . .

.18.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in adrug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or Iocai,health_.
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency,

1.7.Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation .
‘of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6. ’

' 2. The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done
in connection with the specific Agreement.

Place of Performance (street add}ess. city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check D if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

- ‘ r_m . '
v16/23 - .o Exhibit D Contraclor's !nitialsL— ;
Federat Requirements Date
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New Hampshire Departfnent of Health and Human Services |
Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

SECTION B: CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Conlractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
- .of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on.Lobbying,
and Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352), and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foltowing
Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES — CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

‘Programs (indicate applicable program covered): ~
+ *Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
“Social Services Block Grant Program under Titie XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX
*Community Services Block Grant under Tiile Vi
*Child Care Development Biock Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge-and béligef, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Faderal contract, confinuation, renewal,

. amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by
specific mention sub-contractor). -

2. Ifany funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, 8 Member of Gongress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in-connection with
this Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub- contractor), the
undersigned shall compiete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,.
in accordance with its instructions, see hitps:/omb.reportficr/201 009-0348-022/doc/20388401

3. The undersigned shall require that the'language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, and conltracls under grants, foans, and
" cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

* This cedification is a materiat representation of fact upen which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into, Submission &f this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this transaction imposed by Section' 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person'who fails to file
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than

$100,000 for each such failure. ) . -
BS
- (e
v16/23 ' " Exhibit D Centractor's ;nmalsL
’ - Federal Requirements - . - Date /4
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SECTION C: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER

RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

" The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions’
of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 12689 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding
Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contraclor's
-representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification; ’

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION :

1.

By signing and submitting this Agreement, thie prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.” ' . . .

The inability of a personfto provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in
denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary; the prospective participant shall
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will
be considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)

- determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary

participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation
in this transaction. ’ ' :
The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
whéen DHHS determined to enter into this iransaction, If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or defauit.

The prospective primary paricipant shali provide immediate written notice fo the DHHS agency to
whorn this Agreement is submitied if at any time the prospective primary participant learns that its
certification was efroneous when submitted-or has become erranecus by reason of changed
circumstances. )

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” *suspended,” “ineligible," “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary coverad transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and .
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See
hitps:/iwww.govinfo.gov/app/details/CF R-2004-title45-vol1/CFR-2004-title45-vol1-part76/context.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this Agreement that, shouid the proposed
covered transaction be entered inta, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person wha is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized.by DHHS,

* The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the

clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarmenit, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered -
transactions and in all solicitation's for lower lier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in-a _

Jower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded

from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may”
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each )
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties)
hitps:/iwww.acfr.gavicurrentititle-22/chapter-Vipart-513. . : rj;s

vies - - ExhibitD Coriractor's Intals "o

Federal Requifements ; ) Date :
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9.

T

}

Nothing contained in the foregoing shail be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
perscn in the ordinary course of business dealings. .
Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition.to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this
transaction for cause or default.

AS

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11

12,

The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principais: . . : .

11.1.  Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

. 1.2, Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (Agreement) been convicted of

or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public {Federal, State or _

" local) transaction or a contract under a public transactioh; violation of Féderal or State
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

1.3, “Are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity

- (Federal, State or local) with commissicn of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
((b) of this certification; and -
11.4.  Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default,

‘Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this

* 4 certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to.this. proposal {contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13.

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (Agreement), the prospective lower tier.
participant, as defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and
its principals; , ) . .

13.1. Are not presently débarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily exctuded from participation in this transaction by. any federal department or
agéncy.

13.2.  Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to, certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation lo this proposal {Agreement).

14. The prospective-lower tier participant further agrees by submilting this proposat {Agreement) that it
will include this clayse entitled “Cestification Regarding Debament, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

s
Iy

i
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. SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANGE WITH FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS"

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the
Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute-
the following certification:

. The Contractor will comply, and will require any subcontractors to comply, with any applicable federal
requirements, which may include but.are not limited to: . ’

1. Uniform Administrative Requiremants, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(2 CFR 200). : -

2. The Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which |
prohibits racipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment
practices or in the detivery.of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, refigion, .national
origin, and sex. The Act requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opporiunity
Plan; ‘ - ; . )

3, The Juvenile Justice Delinguency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.5.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts
by reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under
this statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of
services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan requirements; Lo

4. The Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.5.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or
activity); ’ ‘

5. The Rehabifitation Act of 1973(29 U.S.C. Section 794}, which prohibits recipients of Federal
finandial assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the
delivery of services or benefits, in any program or activity;

6. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.$.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits .
discrimination and ensures equat opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and
local government services, public accommodations, qommercial facilities, and transportation;

7. The Education Amendments of 1972 (20'U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs; -

8.  The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6108-07), which prohibits discrimination on
the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. it does not include
employment discrimination; . ’

9. 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Depariment of Justice Reguiations ~ OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt.
42 (U:S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity;
Policies and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equat protection of the laws for faith-based
and community organizations); Executive Order No. 13558, which provide fundamental principles
and policy-making criteria for parinerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

10. 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S.. Department of Justice Regulaticns - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistieblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense
Authorization Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013} the Pilot
Program for Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects

_ employees against reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities.in connection with federal grants
and contracts. ) .

+ - 11. The Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) which seeks to protect human health and the us

'

‘environment from emissions that pollute ambient, or outdoor, air. ' ™
. E ’ ‘ vt
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12. The Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulating
discharges of poliutants into the waters of the United States and regulating quafity standards for
surface waters . : .

13. Civilian Agency Acquisition Councit and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council {Councils) {41
© U.S.C. 1908) which establishes administrative, contractual; or legal remedies in instances where
contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as
appropriate. . )

14. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708) which establishes that al|
contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of
e mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40°U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as
supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5).

15. Rights to Inventions Madé Under a Contract or Agreement 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) which establishes
the recipient or subrecipient wishes, to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit
organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental,
developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement.” the recipient or subrecipient must
comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit

- - Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative
Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. '

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which refiance is placed when the
agency awards the Agreement. False certification or violation of the cerlification shall be grounds for

" suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or government wide suspension or
debarment. . .

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national arigin, or sex
againsl a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights,
to the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services,
.and to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman. .

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the .

Contractor's representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute

the following certification:

1: By signing and submitting this Agreament, the Contractor agrees to cdmply with the provisions
indicated above.

os

¢

. . N B>l
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SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE
Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of
1994 (Act), requires that'smoking. not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased
or contracted-for by an enlity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care,
education, or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal
programs either directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, orloan
guarantee. The law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded
solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohal
treatment. Failuce to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a ¢ivil
monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of 2n administrative compliance arder on
the responsible entity. ' : : :

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Gerieral Provisions agrees, by signature of the
Contractor's. representative as identified in Seclion 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute

- the following certification:

1. By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part G, known as the Pro-Children Act

~

of 1994. .
, 7 ‘ 1 l B ) . N ns
— [
viB6/23 - ExhibitD . Contractor's Initials L—

Federal Requirements Date
Page 8 of 10 ' '



- 3 1

DocuSign Envelope 1D; D769196D-382F -4442-BB28-CSBOAC 184686

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
N -+ Exhibit D = Federal Requirements

SECTION F: CERTIFICATIOP;I REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE N

‘ .The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of
.Individual Federal grants equal lo or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 20186, to -
report on data related to executive compensation,and associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or
more.’If the initial award is belaw $30,000 but subsequent grant miodifications result in ‘a total award
equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting raquirements, as of the date of
the award. . ‘

tn accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation lnformafion}.
the Oepartment of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
. Sub award or contract award subjéct to the FFATA reporting requirements:; :

1. Name of entity

2. Amount of award :

3. Funding agency

47 NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
~ 6. Award title descriptive of the puri:ose of the funding action

7. Location of the entity

8. Principle place of performance
9. " Unique Entity identifier (SAM UEL DUNS#)

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1.  More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M anndally and :
10.2.  Compensation information.is not already available throtigh reporting to the SEC.
Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30
days, in which the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of The Federai Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contraclor's'representative, as identified in Sections 1 A1 and 1.12 of the General
Provigions execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrées to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
. Department of Health and Human Services and to comply wilh all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act., ) )

i

v16/23 Exhibit D . Contractor's Initials L
Federal Requirements . Date
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FORM A

As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisians, | cerlify that the responses to the
below listed queshons are true and accurate.

1.
2,

., F44IKSNIDIMG
The UEI (SAM.gov) number for your entity is: s

in your business or organization's ‘preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or
arganization receive (1).80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,
subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or
more in annual gross revenues fram U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants,
and/or cooperative agreements?

X NO - YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the followmg

Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U1.S.C.78m(a), ?Bo(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
18867

NG ' YES

i the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here
if the answer 1o #3 above is NO, please answer the followmg

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
orgamzatlon are as follows:

I

. Name: Amount: .
Name: Amount: - N

Name: Amount. L

Namae: Amount: )
Name: ' Amount:

- Contractor Name: Tri-County Community Action 'Program

A ’ " Bocusigrmdhy::
5/22/2024 I Seanunr, Fobillard
Date. L N RobT 1 Tard

Title: CEO o8
-vt B23 i} Exhibit D Contractor's Initials L
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‘DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. “Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to °
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than authorized
purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable information,
whether physical or electronic. With_regard to Protected Health information, “ Breach”
shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach’ in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations. - : '

r
2. “*Computer Security Incident” - shall have the same meaning “Computer Security .
Incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of
Commerce. - : a -

3. “Confidential Information” or “Confidential Data” means ali confidential information
disclosed by one party to the othér such as all medical, health, financial, public
assis'tanc;e benefits and personal information including Wwithout limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health information and

- Personally |dentifiable Information. '

Confidential Information also inciudes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and.
Human' Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted services
- of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by state or
federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to- Protected
Health Information (PH!), Personal Information (P1), Personal Financial Information
(PF1), Federal Tax Information (FT1), Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card
" Industry (PCl), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

f - .
4. “End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business asscciate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.} that receives DHHS
data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract. :

. 5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and
the regulations promulgated thereunder. :

6. ‘“Incident” means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of

-@ system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or. device misplacement, loss

1 DS
- . [ jﬁ .
" Contractor Initiats E

§/22/2024
Date
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Exhibit E
DHHS Information Security Requirements

10.

11.

12.

or misplacement of hardéopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized access,
. use, disclosure, modification or destruction. .

“Open Wireless Network” means any network or segment of a-network that is not,
designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of information Technolagy
or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and approved, by means of the
State, to transmit) will be considered an open network and ‘not adequatély secure for
the transmission of unencryptéd Pi, PFl, PHI or confidential DHHS data. -

"Personal Information” (or “P1") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is Ilnked
or finkable to a specific ‘individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
hame, etc.

“Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Heal[h
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

“Protected Health Information” (or “PHI") has the same meaning as'provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103. . N

“Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

“Unsecured Protected Healih Information” means Protected Health lnformation that is
not secured by a technology standard that.renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed
or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by the

- American National Standards Institute.

1. REQPONSIBIL!TI_ES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disglosure of Confidential Information.

1.

' W5, Last updale 10009118

The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit.Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any mannar that would constitule a violation

Centractor Initials

‘of the Privacy and Security Rule.

5/22/2024
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-

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a request

for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a subpoena, etc.,
without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to consent or object to
the disclosure.

3. if DHHS nofifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional

. restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI’
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End

User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be'used for

any other purposes that are not indicated in this Coniract,

" 6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives of

DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compllance with the terms of this
Contract.

L. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1.

Appllcatlon Encryptzon if End User is transmitting DHHS data containing Confidential
Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have been evaluated
by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said apphcatlon s encryption .
capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

Encrypfed Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if emait

jis encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of persons

authorized to receive such information.

Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential Data, the
secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be secure. SSL encrypls
data transmitted via a Web site.

File Hostlng Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file hosting
services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage to transmit Confidential Data,

Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground

~mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.
. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices fo transmit Confidential Data |

said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

lDS
Conlraclor Initials E
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-

.

10.

11.

Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
wireless network. End User must employ. a virtual private network (VPN) when remofely
transmrmng via an open wireless network.

Remote User Communlcatlon If End Useris employrng remote communlcatlon to access
or fransmit Confidential Data, a viflual private nétwork (VPN) must be installed on the End
User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be transmitted or accessed.

SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If End
User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confi dential Data, End: User will structure the °
Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information. SFTP
folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will be coded for 24-hour .
auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24 hours). . ~

Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duratlon of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will ‘have 30 days to destroy the data and any

deri
this’

A.

1

vative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permltted under.
Contract. To this end, the parties must:

Retention - .

1, The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered.under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shafl also apply in the implementation of .
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabrllt[es and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Céntractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in ptace
to. detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems andfor
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

'3, The Contractor agrees to provide security, awareness and education for its End ‘
Users in support of protecting Departmeént confidential information.

4, The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Conf dentlal Data.
in a secure location and rqentrf ied in section V. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
" FedRAMP/HITECH compliant sdlution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy‘and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the, latest anti-viral,
antihacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as

a whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

C
Contractor [nitials
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-

- 6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's

Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting

. infrastructure. . -

-

B. Disposition

1.

V. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its sub-
coniractor systems), the Coniractor.will maintain a documented process for securely
disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will obtain written
certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the Contractor or
any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery
operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of New
Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in
accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing)
as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines for Media
Sanitization, Nationa! Institute of Standards and Technology, U..S. Department of
Commerce. The Cantractor will document and certify in writing at time of the data
destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department upon request.
The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data has
been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and
professional standards for retention requirements will be'jointly evaluated by the
State and Contractor prior to destruction.

Unless otherwise specified; within thirly (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a secure
method such as shredding. o :

Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this Contract,
Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data by-means
of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

.
e

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract,-and any
derivative data or files, as follows: T

1. - The Contractor will maintain proper security controls'to protect Department confidential

information collected, processed, managed, and/for stored in the delivery of contracted
services. S . .

The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential
information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation,
transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardiess of the media used to
- ‘store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.). !

C
Contractor Initials
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The ,Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect transmil, or store Department confidential mformatlon

" where applicable.

10.

11.

. The Contractor will ensure proper security mé‘nitoring capabilities are in place to detect

potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or Department
confidential information for contractor provided systems ‘

The Contractor will provide reguiar secunty awareness and education for its End Users
in support of protecting:Department confidential information.

If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting: the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security expectations,
and monitering compliance to security requirements that at a minimum match those for
the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

The Contractor will wark with the Department to sign and comply with.all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of obtaining
and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be completed
and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access
heing authorized.

Af the Depar‘tmeni determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45

CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
{BAA) with the Department and is respons&ble for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Depariment and
Contractor to monitor for, any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scopé of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor cQa_nges.

The Contractor wilt not store, knowingly-or unknowingly, any State of New‘Hampshire'
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior
express written consent is obtained from the Informatlon Secunty Office Ieadershlp

member within the Department

Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall make
efforts to mvestlgate the causes of the breach promptly take measures o prevent

DS
Contraclor Initials
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12.

13.

14.

~

future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach. The State
shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery-from

the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, maiting costs ér}d
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to the
breach. . :

Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects maintain
the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less than the level’
and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including, but not limited to,
provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS Privacy Act Regulations
(45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and. Security Rules (45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164} that
govern protections for individually identifiable health information and as applicable
under State law. - . . .

Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to prevent
unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and scope of
security-that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements established
by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Informiation Technology. Refer to
Vendor Resources/Procurement at hitps://iwww.nh.gov/doitivendorfindex.htm for the
Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors. | '

Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident response

" process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the State's Security

18.

16.

Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section
VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or.
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systéms that
connect to the State of New Hampshire network. ' ’

Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this Contract
to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to perform their official
duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract. .

The Contractor must ensure that alt End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above, implemented
to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS under this Contract
from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times. - -
¢. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media contaifing PHI, P!, or

PFl are encrypted and password-protected.
s
| b3
Conlraclor Initials .
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'

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being sent
to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to receive such
information. - . Co-

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Informatior; to the extent permitted by law.

f. Conﬁdential‘lnformation received under this Contract and individually identifiable
data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is physically and
technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons during duty hours
as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, c¢ard keys, biometric identifiers, etc.}.

g. only duthorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when stored
on portable media as required in section IV above. ’

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be'maintained, used and disclosed

using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a rigk-based assessment of the
. circumstances invalved. - :

i, understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not'be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure,
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through a
third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End” Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this Contract,
including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA, and other
applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data is disposed
of in accordance with this Contract. . - :

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security dfﬂcer of any Security
incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in Section Vi.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with thé agency's documented [ncident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. .In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable’ obligations and procedures,
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will: '

1. ldentify incidents;
2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;
3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37, ' .

Ba -
Contractor Initials E—
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4. ldentify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents and
determine risk-based responses to Incidents;. and

5. Determine whether Br_eabh notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate Breach '
notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different options, and
bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressé’d and reported, as applicable,
in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20. '

f
Vi. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer: )
- DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov B.
DHHS Security Officer: '
DHHSInfc[rmationSecurityOfﬁqe@dhhs.nh.gov

{111
Conlraclor initials E_
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BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT.
- The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the'General Provisions of the Agreement (Form P-37)
(‘Agreement’), and any of its agents who recéive use or have access to protected heaith
. information (PHI), as defined herein, shall be referred to as the “Business Associate.” The State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Huiman Services, "Department” shall be referred
to as the “Covered Entity,” The Contractor and the Department are collectively referred to as “the __ .
parties.” ' , , ‘
{ . Y
The parties agree, to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountakility Act, Public
Law 104-191, the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162, and 164 (HIPAA), provisions of.the HITECH Act, Title XIIi,
" Subtitle O, Parts 1&2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, 42 USC 17934,
et sec., applicable to business associates, and as applicable, to be bound by the provisions of

the Confidentiality of Substance Use Disorder Patient Records, 42 USC s. 200 dd-2, 42 CFR Part
- 2, (Part 2), as any of these laws and regulations may be amended from time to time.

(1) Defiiions - | .
a.  The following terms shall have the same meaning as defined in HIPAA, the HITECH
Act,.and Part 2, as they may be amended from time to time: Co-

“Breach,” “Désignated Record Set,” “Data Aggregation,” Designated Record
. Set"” “Health Care Operations,” “HITECH Act,” ‘Individual,” “Privacy Rule,”
*Required by law,” “Security Rule,” and “Secretary.”

b. ~ Business Associate Agreément, (BAA) means the Business Associate Agreement

' that includes privacy and confidentiality requirements of the Business Associate

' working with PHI and as applicable, Part 2 record(s) on behalf of the Covered Entity
. under the Agreement. .

¢.  “Constructively Identifiable,” means there is a reasonable basis to believe that the
information could be used, alone or in combination with other reasonably available
information, by an anticipated recipient to identify an individual who Is a subject of
the information. ' , .

d. "Protected Health Information” (‘PHI") as used in the Agreement and the BAA,
means protected health information defined in HIPAA 46 CFR 160.103, limited to
the information created, received, or used by Business Associate from or on behalf
of Covered Entity, and includes any Part 2 records, if applicable, as defined below.

e. “Part 2 record” means any patient *Record,” relating to a “Patient,” and "Patient
[dentifying Information,” as defined in 42 CFR Part 2.11.

f “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that
_is not secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or enddrsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited

by the American National Standards Institute- . .

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information
" a. Business Associate shall not u,se,' disclose, maintain, store, or transmit Protected

Health Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services.
outlined under the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including bﬁat
- o | N
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limited to all its directors, officers, employees, and agents, shall protect any PHI as
required by HIPPA and 42 CFR Part 2, and not use, disclose, maintain, store, or
transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of HIPAA or 42 CFR
Part 2. . ' .

b. ' Busmess Assoc:ate may use or disclose PHI as applicable: ~
I, For the preper management and administration of the Business Associate;
.  As reqmred by law, according to the terms set forth in paragraph ¢. and d. below:
.  According to the HIPAA minimum necessary standard;

IV. For data aggregation purposes for the heaith care operatlons of the ‘Covered
Entity; and

V . ‘Data that is de-identified or aggregated and remains constructwe[y identifiable
may not be used for any purpose outside the performance .of the Agreement.”

¢ Tothe extent Business Associate is permitted under the BAA or the Agreement to
disclose PHI to any third party or subcontractor prior to making any disclosure, the
Business Associate must obtain, a business associate agreement or other
agreement with the third party or subcontractor, that complies.with HIPAA and
ensures that all requirements and restrictions placed on the Business Associate as
part of this BAA with'the Covered Entity, dre included in those business associate
agreements with the third party or subcontractor.

d.  The Business Associate shall not, disclose any PHI in response to a request or
‘ demand {or disclosure, such as by a subpoena or court order, on the basis that it
is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity can
determine how to best protect the PHI. If Covered Entity objects to the disclosure, "
the Business Associate agrees to refrain from disclosing the PHI and shaEI
cooperate withthe Covered Entity in any effort the Covered Entity undertakes to
contest the request for disclosure, subpoena, or other legal process. If applicable
relating to Part 2 records, the Business Associate shall resist any efforts to access
part 2 recerds in any judicial proceeding.

(3).  Obligations and Adtivities of Business Associate ‘
a. Business Associate shall xmplement appropriate safeguards to prevent

unauthorized use or disclosure of all PHI in accordance with HIPAA Privacy Rute
and Securlty Rule W|th regard to electronic PHI, and Part 2, as apphcab!e

b.” The Business Assoctete shall immediately notify the Covered Entity's Privacy
Officer at the following email address, DHHSanacyOcher@dhhs nh.gov after the
Business Associate has determined that any use or disclosure not provided for by
its contract, including any known or suspected prwacy or security incident or breach

" has occurred potentially exposing or compromising the PHI. This includes -
inadvertent or accidental uses or dlsclosures or breaches of unsecured protected
health information.

¢.  Inthe event of a breach, the Business Assomate shall comply with the terms of this
Business Associate Agreement,” all applicable state and federal laws and
regulations and any additional requirements of the Agreement.

d. The Business Associate shall perform a risk assessment, based on the information
available at the time it becomes aware. of any known or suspected prwtrfr
: o X
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secunty breach as described above and communicate the risk assessment to the
Covered Entity. The risk assessment shall include, but not be limited to:

I. The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identifi cation;

1. The unauthorized person who accessed, used, disciosed, or received the
protected heatth information,

Ifl. Whether the protected health information was actualiy acquired or viewed, and

IV. How. the risk of loss of confidentiality to the protected health information
hasbeen mitigated.

e. The Business Associate shall complete a risk’ assessment report at the conclusion
of its incident or breach investigation and provide the findings in a wiitten report to
the Covered Entity as soon as practicable after the conclusion of ‘the Business
Associate's investigation.

f. Business Associate shall make avallable all of its mtemal policies and procedures,
books and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or
, created or received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the
- US Secretary of Health and Human Services for purposes of determining the
Business Associate’s and the Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the

anacy and Security Rule, and Part 2, .if apphcable .

a. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, se or
" have access to PHI under the BAA to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein.

h. . Within ten (10) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
.Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices
all records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and
-disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to
determine Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the' BAA and the
Agreement. ‘ '

- i. Within ten (10), business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHlina Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet
the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

- Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for
an amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated
Record Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered -
Entity for amendment and incorporate any such- amendment to enable Covered '
Ent:ty to fulfilt its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164. 526

k.  Business Associate shall document any disciosures of PHI and information related
to any disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request
by an individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Sectlon 164.528,

. Wlthm ten (10) business days of receiving a written réquest from Covered Entity for
a request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make
available to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill
its obligations to provide an accounting of dlsclosures with respect to o
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accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

m. Inthe event any individual requests access to amendment of, or accounting of PHI
_directly.from the Business Associate, the Business Assaciate shall within five (5)
" business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have
the responsnblllty of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would.cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business
Associate shall instead respond to the individual's request as requured by such law

and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

n.  Within thity (30) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason,

the Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all

PHI received from or created or received by the Business Assaciate in connection

" with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-ups of such PHl-in any
form or platform.

V1. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been
otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, or if retention is governed by state
or federal law, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections
of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such
PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible. for as
long as the Business Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its
sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHI,
the Business Associate shall cemfy to Covered Entity that the PHI has been.
destroyed.

(4)  Qbligations of Covered Enfity

a. Covered Entity shall post a current version of the Notice of the anacy Practices
on the Covered Entity’s website;

- bitps:/iwww.dhhs.nh. govlooslh:paalpubl:catlons htm-in accordance wnh 45 CFR
Section 164.520.

b. Covered Entlty shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or
revocation of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may
be used or disclosed by Business Associate under this BAA pursuant to 45 CFR

" Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c.  Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrlctlons on thé
use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45
CFR 164.522, to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's
-use or disclosure of PHI. .

(5)  Termination of Aqresment for Cause
a.  In addition to the General Provisions (P-37) of the Agreement,.the Covered Entity
may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's Knowledge of a
material breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate Agreement. The .
Covered Entity may either immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an -
opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a timeframe
specified by Covered Entity.

(6)  Miscellangous
a.  Definitions, lLaws, and Regulatory References. All laws and regulatlons Uﬁa
; Exhibil F ’
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. "herein, shall refer to those laws and regulations as amended from time to time. A
reference’ in .the Agreement, as amended to include this Business Associate
Agreement, to a Section in HIPAA or 42 Part 2, means the Section as in effect or
as amended. . .

b. Change in law - Covered Ent_ity aﬁd Business Associate agree to take such action
as is necessary from time to time for the Covered Entity and/or Business Associate
to comply with the changes in the requwements of HIPAA, 42 CFR Part 2 ‘other

applicable federal and state law.

c. - Data Ownership- The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownershlp
rights with respect to the PHI prov:ded by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation - The parties agree that any ambiguity in the BAA and the
o Agreement shall be resolved.to permit Covered Entity and the Business Assomate

to comply with HIPAA and 42 CFR Part 2,

e. Segregation - If any termor condition of this BAA or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect otherterms
or conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this
end the terms and conditions of this BAA are declared severable.

f.  Survival - Provisions in this BAA regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return

~or destruction of PHI, extensions of the protectmns of the BAA in section (3) g. and’

- (3) n.l., and the defense and indemnification provisions of the General Provisions
(P-37) of the Agreement, shall survive the termination of the BAA.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the - panles hereto have duly executed this Busmess Associate

Agreement.
Department of Health and Human Services' Tri-County Community Action Program
The State Name of the Contractor

- DocuSignad by: DocuSigned by:
| Katja S. For : ' l Seanme Eobillard
: Signature-of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative
j

_ Katja s. Fox Jeanne Robillard
Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Director ) CEO
Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative
. A |
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